

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 13, 2018                                                                                              EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 13th Jun 2018 - Page 1 of 8 


 Item Purpose / Support 


 Agenda  


   


1. Convene Closed Session 5:30 p.m. 


1.1. Roll Call  


1.2. Public Comments prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda 


   


2. Closed Session Items  


2.1. Expulsions 12-17-18 and 13-17-18 Information for a vote in Open Session 


2.2. Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments 


Information for possible action 


2.3. Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
(Govt. Code Section 54957) 


Information for possible action 


2.4. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Govt. 
Code Section 54957.6) 


SCCS Negotiator Parks will provide an update to and 
receive direction from the Trustees regarding negotiations 
with the SCCCE for 2017-18. 


2.5. Special Education Settlement Agreement 
OAH #2018031273 


Final settlement information provided for the Board of 
Education 


2.6. Liability Claim (Govt. Code 54956.95) Claimant: Alexander Pebbles 


Agency Claimed Against: Santa Cruz City Schools 


2.7. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Govt. 
Code Section 54957.6)  


Superintendent re: Employment Work Agreement-Assistant 
Superintendent 


   


3. Convene Open Session 6:30 p.m. 


3.1. Welcome and Pledge of Allegiance  


3.2. Agenda changes, additions or deletions  


3.3. Recognition of Student Board 
Representatives for 2017-18 


 


   


1 of 462







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 13, 2018                                                                                              EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 13th Jun 2018 - Page 2 of 8 


 Item Purpose / Support 


4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 


Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City School 
Board Members appreciate your presence and your 
comments regarding items not on the agenda are 
valued.  Per Santa Cruz City Schools Board Bylaw 
protocols, Trustees will not comment on Public 
Comments during this time. 


   


5. Superintendent's Report  


5.1. Superintendent's Report  


   


6. Board Members' Reports  


6.1. Board Members' Reports  


6.2. Board President's Report  


   


7. Approval of Minutes  


7.1. Minutes of May 23, 2018  


7.2. Minutes of May 30, 2018  


   


8. General Public Business  


   


8.1. Consent Agenda: These matters may be 
passed by one roll call motion.  


Trustees may request a separate discussion and vote for an 
item 


8.1.1. Personnel Actions - Certificated  


8.1.2. Personnel Actions - Classified  


8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Quotes and Bids  


8.1.4. Warrant Register  


8.1.5. Resolution 24-17-18 Authorizing District 
Signatures 


 


2 of 462







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 13, 2018                                                                                              EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 13th Jun 2018 - Page 3 of 8 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.1.6. Resolution 25-17-18 Summer Contract 
Approvals (Annual Resolution) 


 


8.1.7. Resolution 26-17-18 Education Protection 
Act (Annual Resolution) 


 


8.1.8. Resolution 27-17-18 Summer Personnel 
Actions (Annual Resolution) 


 


8.1.9. SCCS Updates to the COE Plan for Expelled 
Students 


 


8.1.10. Out of State Travel Request: Educational 
Services/Special Education-assessment in 
Utah 


 


8.1.11. Parcel Tax Oversight Committee Annual 
Report 


 


8.1.12. Disposition of Surplus Property  


   


8.2. Consent Agenda: General Contracts & 
Agreements 


Trustees may request a separate discussion and vote for an 
item 


8.2.1. Superintendent: Agreement for Legal 
Services for 2018-19: Lozano Smith 


 


8.2.2. Superintendent: Agreement for Legal 
Services for 2018-19: Dannis Woliver Kelley 


 


8.2.3. Superintendent: Agreement for Legal 
Services for 2018-19: Fagen Friedman & 
Fulfrost 


 


8.2.4. Superintendent: Annual Agreement: Online 
Board Book & Policy Manual Maintenance: 
CSBA 


 


8.2.5. Superintendent: Annual Agreement: 
California School Boards Association-2018-
19 Membership  


 


8.2.6. Educational Services: Annual Contract: 
Document Tracking Services 


 


3 of 462







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 13, 2018                                                                                              EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 13th Jun 2018 - Page 4 of 8 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.2.7. Educational Services/Student Services: CSA 
& MOU: Vision to Learn-mobile vision 
screening 


 


8.2.8. Educational Services/Student Services: 
Consultant Service Agreement: Hearing 
Conservation West 


 


8.2.9. Educational Services/Student Services: 
Consultant Service Agreement & MOU: 
SEEDS-Community Resolution 


 


8.2.10. Educational Services/Student Services: 
Consultant Service Agreement-Shahe 
Moutafian-hearing testing 


 


8.2.11. Educational Services/Student Services: 
Consultant Service Agreement-Margaret 
Lacey-hearing testing 


 


8.2.12. Educational Services/CIA: Contract: NWEA-
Measuring Academic Progress (MAP) 


 


8.2.13. Educational Services/Harbor HS: Consultant 
Service Agreement: Organized Binder 


 


8.2.14. Educational Services/Special Education: Out 
of State NPS Contract: Diamond Ranch 
Academy 


 


8.2.15. Educational Services/Special Education: Out 
of State NPS Contract: La Europa Academy 


 


8.2.16. Educational Services/Special Education: 
MOUs with Neighboring Districts 


 


8.2.17. Educational Services/Special Education: 
NPA 2018-19 Master Contract-Easter Seals 


 


8.2.18. Educational Services/Special Education: 
NPA 2018-19 Master Contract-Balance 4 
Kids 


 


8.2.19. Educational Services/Special Education: 
APS SpeechRighter Inc. for Extended School 
Year (Summer) 


 


4 of 462







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 13, 2018                                                                                              EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 13th Jun 2018 - Page 5 of 8 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.2.20. Educational Services/Special Education: 
APS Sunbelt Staffing for Extended School 
Year (Summer) 


 


8.2.21. Business Services: Proposal for Moving 
Services: Locatelli 


 


8.2.22. Business Services: 2018-19 Agreement with 
School Services 


 


8.2.23. Business Services/Information Technology: 
Contract: BorderLAN -content filter for SCCS 


 


8.2.24. Contract: Bogard Construction-133 Mission 
St., SC 


 


   


8.3. Consent Agenda: Bond Projects 
Contracts, Agreements, Proposals, Bids 
& Change Orders 


Trustees may request a separate discussion and vote for an 
item 


8.3.1. Agreement Amendment: Belli Architects-
Branciforte MS Music/MPR improvement 


 


8.3.2. Agreement Amendment: Belli Architects-
Harbor HS athletic fields 


 


8.3.3. Change Order #1: Butano-Harbor HS Athletic 
Fields 


 


8.3.4. Contract: CEL Consulting - proposal & 
contract terms for Branciforte SS 
modernization 


 


8.3.5. Corrected Bid: Garland-Branciforte MS roof 
materials 


 


8.3.6. Corrected Bid: Garland-Harbor HS roof 
materials 


 


8.3.7. Contract: M3 Environmental-proposal & 
contract terms for Branciforte MS roof 


 


8.3.8. Change Orders 1 & 2: XL Construction-
Harbor HS athletic fields 


 


5 of 462







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 13, 2018                                                                                              EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 13th Jun 2018 - Page 6 of 8 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.3.9. Proposal: Garland-Santa Cruz HS roof 
materials 


 


8.3.10. Proposal: Kleinfelder-DeLaveaga ES parking 
lot and shade structure 


 


8.3.11. Bid: D and T Paint-Santa Cruz HS gym 
interior painting 


 


8.3.12. Contract: Leach Group-proposal & contract 
for DSA services for Soquel HS and Small 
Schools 


 


8.3.13. Contract: CRW Industries-bid & contract for 
Natural Bridges gym minor repairs 


 


8.3.14. Contract: CRW Industries-bid & contract for 
Small Schools playground site work 


 


8.3.15. Proposals: Landscape Structures 
materials/labor-Branciforte Small Schools 
playground surface  


 


8.3.16. Proposal: Landscape Structures-Bay View 
playground "drops" 


 


8.3.17. Contract: Artistic Coverings-Santa Cruz HS 
gym wall padding 


 


8.3.18. Proposal/Revised Base Bid: Flint Builders-
fire line work at Bay View ES 


 


8.3.19 Cooperative Purchasing Agreement: 
Houston-Galveston Area Council 
(HGACBuy) 


 


   


8.4. Report of Closed Session Actions  


8.4.1. Vote on Expulsions  


8.4.1.1. Expulsion 12-17-18  


8.4.1.2. Expulsion 13-17-18  


8.4.2. Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session  


6 of 462







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 13, 2018                                                                                              EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 13th Jun 2018 - Page 7 of 8 


 Item Purpose / Support 


   


8.5. Items to Be Transacted and/or Discussed  


   


8.5.1. Educational Services  


8.5.1.1. Staff Report: Harbor High School exploration 
of the International Baccalaureate Program 


Harbor High School is investigating the IB Programme for 
consideration as part of its academic program and offerings 
as an alternative to the College Board’s Advanced 
Placement (AP) courses. 


8.5.1.2. Staff Report: Local Control Accountability 
Plan (LCAP) Process and Recommendations 


Staff will report on the second year of a three year cycle 
regarding our Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). 
Engaging all stakeholders in the LCAP process and 
recommendations is an essential annual component of 
updating our district LCAP.  


8.5.1.3. PUBLIC HEARING: Local Control 
Accountability Plan (LCAP) 


The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and 
annual update provide details regarding Local Educational 
Agencies' (LEAs') actions and expenditures to support pupil 
outcomes and overall performance pursuant to Education 
Code sections 52060, 52066, 47605, 47605.5, and 47606.5. 
A Public Hearing on the 2018-19 LCAP follows to allow 
public input prior to being submitted for adoption at the June 
20th Board meeting. After Board adoption, the LCAP will be 
submitted to the County Office of Education for final 
approval. 


   


8.5.2. Business Services  


8.5.2.1. New Business: Contract: Roofing & Solar-bid 
and contract for Santa Cruz HS roof 


Recommendation: Approve the Roofing & Solar bid and 
contract for the Santa Cruz HS roof 


8.5.2.2. Staff Report: Bond Budget Update Bartos Architecture, Inc. will provide an update on bond 
projects expenditures 


8.5.2.3. Staff Report: Budget Overview Staff will provide an overview of the 2018-19 Budget 


8.5.2.4. PUBLIC HEARING: 2018-19 Budget The purpose of the hearing is to provide a public forum for 
community input regarding the adoption of the 2018-19 
Preliminary Budget. 


   


8.5.3. Human Resources There are no items for discussion or transaction for Human 
Resources for this meeting. 


   


8.5.4. Governance/Superintendent  


7 of 462







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 13, 2018                                                                                              EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 13th Jun 2018 - Page 8 of 8 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.5.4.1. New Business: New/Revised Board Policies: 
1st and/or Final Reading 


 


   


9. Adjournment  


   


10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  


   


11. Closed Session Action Report (if 
necessary) 


 


   


12. Adjournment  


 
 
The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html or may be viewed at the District 
Office, Superintendent’s Office, Room 303, 405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, CA.    
 
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting 
as any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in 
open session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be 
considered in closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Nancy 
Lentz by telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por 
favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Nancy Lentz por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 


 
 
Board Meeting Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on June 20, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 


8 of 462



http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html





 


 


    
 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING/GOVERNANCE SESSION  


OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


May 23, 2018 
 
 
 
 
Convene Closed Session 
Board President Vestal called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. in the Harbor High School 
Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   
SCCCE President Chacanaca, SCCCE Vice Presidents Rodriguez and Adams addressed the Trustees regarding 
SCCCE negotiations for 2018-18 and moving forward.  Paperwork was provided to the Board members with 
information pertinent to the bargaining unit. 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Vestal called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:14 p.m. in the Harbor High 
School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty Deedee Perez-Granados Cynthia Ranii  Jeremy Shonick    
Patty Threet  Deb Tracy-Proulx  Claudia Vestal 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Members of the Audience 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Vestal welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Regular Meeting 
of the Board of Education. 
 
Agenda Changes 
Board Recording Secretary Lentz noted a revised agenda has been provided with the addition of the Closed 
Session Action Report – the change is highlighted in yellow. 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 
   


APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
MSP (Tracy-Proulx/Coonerty) 7-0, the Board of Education approved Minutes of the Regular Meeting on May 9, 
2018. 
  


 


9 of 462







 


 


 
GENERAL PUBLIC BUSINESS 


Consent Agenda 
Ms. Threet pointed out that the funds paying for Item 6.3.5. Contract: Garland-flooring materials for Mission 
Hill MS and Item 6.3.6. Contract: Watertight Restoration-flooring repair services for Mission Hill MS come from 
Bond Measure A – so the motion for approval should contain this correction.  Board Member Shonick asked 
clarifying questions and requested Mr. Gaffney to provide narratives for Item 6.3.1. Contract: Garland-roofing 
materials for Mission Hill MS, Item 6.3.2. Contract: Garland-roofing materials for Gault ES and Item 6.3.3. 
Contract: Landscape Structures-materials for the Small Schools playground.  Ms. Threet asked a clarifying 
question regarding Item 6.2.4. Contract: E3 Systems-internet cabling for 133 Mission Street, Santa Cruz.  Ms. 
Threet will pull this item for a separate discussion and vote.  Ms. Tracy-Proulx moved approval of the Consent 
Agenda, minus Item 6.2.4. Contract: E3 Systems, which has been pulled for a separate vote, and containing the 
provision that the Bond Measure funds expended for the contracts in Item 6.3.5. Garland flooring materials 
for Mission Hill MS and Item 6.3.6. Watertight Restoration flooring repairs for Mission Hill MS will come from 
Bond Measure A.  The Consent Agenda items for consideration in this motion are: Item 6.2.1. Business: 
Contract: Aero-Environmental Consulting-133 Mission Street, SC; Item 6.2.2. Business: Contract: Cruzio-
Internet Service Agreement for 133 Mission Street, SC; Item 6.2.3. Business: Contract: ConvergeOne-Meraki 
network for 133 Mission Street, SC; Item 6.2.5. Business: Contract: JIVE-purchase of phones and monthly 
service for 133 Mission Street, SC; Item 6.3.1. Bond Projects Contract: Garland-roofing materials for Mission 
Hill MS; Item 6.3.2. Bond Projects Contract: Garland-roofing materials for Gault ES; Item 6.3.3. Bond Projects 
Contract: Landscape Structures-materials for the Small Schools playground; Item 6.3.4. Bond Projects 
Contract: Western Design Flooring-materials for the Natural Bridges portable; Item 6.3.5. Bond Projects 
Contract: Garland-flooring materials for the Mission Hill MS locker room; Item 6.3.6. Bond Projects Contract: 
Watertight Restoration-flooring repair for the Mission Hill MS locker room.  Ms. Threet Seconded the motion.  
This motion was passed by the following roll call vote: 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Ranii – Yes Shonick – Yes   
  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx-Yes  Vestal – Yes 
 
Item 6.2.4. Business: Contract: E3 Systems-Internet cabling for 133 Mission Street, Santa Cruz, CA 
Ms. Threet moved approval of this contract in a dollar amount up to $33, 826.37, but not including the name 
of the vendor, in order to leave room for the receipt of other possibly lower bids.  Ms. Tracy-Proulx seconded 
the motion.  This motion was passed by the following roll call vote: 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Ranii – Yes Shonick – Yes   
  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx-Yes  Vestal – Yes 
 
Closed Session Item 
7.1.  Report of Closed Session Actions 


1. The Board of Education heard an update from and provided direction to Ms. Parks 
regarding negotiations with the SCCCE for 2017-18. 


 
GOVERNANCE/STUDY SESSION 


8.1.  BOARD GOVERNANCE 
Facilitator Post presented the results of the Annual Board Self-Evaluation.   The Trustees 
discussed their responses and the overall results of the evaluation. 
 
The Trustees discussed Governance issues and meeting pace and flow, including; the new cover 
sheet for bond project consent agenda items; a discussion on the dollar amount “ceiling” for 


10 of 462







 


 


bond project consent agenda items; checks and balances on bond expenditures; interactions 
with trustees during meetings; the Governance Handbook, including revisions that resulted 
from the January 31, 2018 Governance Session; continuation of the Board/Community 
meetings.  Some of the agreements resulting from discussion were: in general, any bond 
project contract expending more than $1 million dollars will be put on the “Items to be 
Discussed and/or Transacted” portion of the agenda; checks and balances on bond 
expenditures will be provided in quarterly reports, but staff will continue to review ideas to 
provide more information without causing an inequitable workload for staff; more training for 
student representatives will be considered moving forward.  
 
Superintendent Munro presented the Governance Calendar for 2018-19 and discussed items 
that have been added per previous Board Member request, as well as ideas for upcoming study 
sessions.  The Board agreed to: add an additional Governance Session on April 24 during the 
2018-19 school year for Governance and Self-Evaluation; devote the entire Study Session on 
May 29 to Budget. 
  
Board President Vestal noted that Mr. Shonick is very interested in supporting students and 
programs through participation on the Bay Sci Vertical team.  The Board President nominated 
Mr. Shonick for this committee assignment, and the Trustees thanked Mr. Shonick for his 
interest, support and participation on behalf of the District. 
 


8.2. 2018-19 BUDGET PREVIEW 
 Mr. Gaffney shared that the district is working to prepare an Executive Summary of the Budget 


and provide information that will be easily distributed and easily understood.  The 2018-19 
Budget will come forward for a Public Hearing and discussion on June 13 and come back to the 
Trustees for approval on June 20.  Information reported by Mr. Gaffney included: a review of 
the previously agreed upon SCCS guiding budget principles; a review of budget assumptions 
and highlights; revenue and expenditure summary; impact to fund balance; revenue sources 
and projections; expenditure projections; general fund summary of restricted and unrestricted 
sources; multi-year budget assumptions; multi-year projections; funding descriptions (glossary 
of federal and state terms).   


 
8.3 MEETING EVALUATION 
 Facilitator Post provided a handout to the Trustees that will allow them to evaluate tonight’s 


meeting.  The Board Members can fill this out at home and return it to Ms. Post, who will 
compile the information and send it out to Trustees as soon as possible. 
 


9.  Adjournment of Meeting 
As there was no further business to come before the Board of Education, Board President 
Vestal adjourned this Regular Meeting at 9:14 p.m. 


 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Interdistrict Transfer Appeal Hearings Meeting on May 30, 2018, 5:30 p.m., will be held in the 
Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Regular Meeting on June 13, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


11 of 462







 


 


3. The Regular Meeting on June 20, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 
 


* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 
recording: 


 
 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Claudia Vestal, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


12 of 462



http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html

http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html





    MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 


FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 
INTER DISTRICT TRANSFER APPEAL HEARINGS 


May 30, 2018 
 
 
Convene Closed Session for Inter District Transfer Appeals 
Board President Vestal called this Closed Session Meeting for Inter District Transfer Appeals 
Hearings to order at 5:30 p.m. in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa 
Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance for Inter-District Transfer Appeal Hearings 
Board President Vestal 
Board Vice President Perez-Granados 
Board Member Ranii 
Board Member Threet 
Board Member Tracy-Proulx 
 
Absent: Board Member Coonerty 
Absent: Board Member Shonick 
Absent: Family-Student #3 (withdrew from hearing on 5/30/18) 
 
Superintendent Kris Munro 
Student Services Director Brown 
 
Family – Student #1 
Family – Student #2 
Family – Student #4 
Family – Student #5 
Family – Student #6 
 
Inter-District Transfer Appeal Hearings – Presentations of Cases 
Note: Although there were six hearings originally scheduled for this meeting – one of the 
families elected to withdraw from the hearing.  As a result, the Trustees will vote on the 
appeals for five students this evening.  Format:  Trustees and Parties moved to the Library Quiet 
Room.  Parent/Guardian Advocate had five minutes to present the case for the appeal of the 
denial.  Ms. Brown had five minutes to present the case for the denial of the transfer.  The 
Trustees had 10 minutes to ask clarifying questions.  At the conclusion of the presentations, all 
parties returned to the main library. 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Vestal called the Open Session of the Special Meeting Interdistrict Transfer 
Appeal Hearings for the Santa Cruz City Schools Board of Education to order at 6:44 p.m. 


13 of 462







 
Vote on Inter-District Transfer Appeals 
Board President Vestal thanked each family for their presence at the hearing and for sharing 
their personal story.  The Board of Education reviews each hearing packet with respect and 
gives serious consideration to each situation. 


1. MSP (Perez-Granados/Tracy-Proulx) 4-1, the Board of Education upheld the denial of the 
Inter-District Transfer for Student #1.  Ms. Threet voted no. 


2. MSP (Ranii/Perez-Granados) 5-0, the Board of Education upheld the denial of the Inter-
District Transfer for Student #2. 


3. At the request of the family, the hearing for Student #3 was cancelled. 
4. MSP (Ranii/Tracy-Proulx) 5-0, the Board of Education upheld the denial of the Inter-


District Transfer for Student #4.   
5. MSP (Perez-Granados/Tracy-Proulx) 4-1, the Board of Education upheld the denial of the 


Inter-District Transfer for Student #5.  Ms. Threet voted no. 
6. MSP (Perez-Granados/Ranii) 4-1, the Board of Education upheld the denial of the Inter-


District Transfer for Student #6.  Ms. Threet voted no. 
   


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 
 
Adjournment 
As there was no further business to come before the Trustees for the Special Meeting, Board 
President Vestal adjourned the Special Meeting Inter District Transfer Appeal Hearings at 6:50 
p.m. 
 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on June 13, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Regular Meeting on June 20, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 
* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 


recording: 


 


 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  


 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Claudia Vestal, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


14 of 462



http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html

http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html





AGENDA ITEM 8.1.1 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
  
  
  
AGENDA ITEM:                    Certificated Personnel Actions 
  
DATE:                                   June 13, 2018 
  
FROM:                                  Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
  
THROUGH:                          Kris Munro, Superintendent 
  
  
  
  
Recommendation: 
We recommend the Board of Trustees approve the certificated personnel actions as 
submitted. 
  
Background: 
The attached certificated personnel actions are submitted in accordance with District policy, 
California Education Code and the negotiated contract.  
 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college 
and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
  
  
  
  
  
 


15 of 462







This page has been left blank







AGENDA ITEM 8.1.1 


 
2018-2019 APPOINTMENTS: 
  
Certificated: 
  
Luis Chavez, 1.0 English and Social Studies Teacher at Santa Cruz High.  Luis’s educational 
background includes a BA in English Literature from CSU San Bernardino.  Luis holds a 
Preliminary Single Subject Teaching Credential for English an English Learners 
Authorization.  His status is Probationary 1 and he completed his student teaching at JW 
North High School (Riverside, CA). 
  
Mahsa Farhang Sahlevani, 1.0 School Psychologist.  Mahsa’s educational background 
includes a BA in Clinical Psychology from Elm O Farhang University (Iran), an MA in Clinical 
Child Psychology from Tabriz University (Iran) and an MA in School Psychology from Alliant 
University.  Mahsa will hold a Preliminary Pupil Personnel Services Credential for School 
Psychology.  Her status is Probationary 1 and she completed her internship in Santa Ana 
Unified School District 
  
Brady Laub, 1.0 Special Day Class Teacher - ED at Bay View Elementary.  Brady’s educational 
background includes a BA in English and an MA in Education from the University of Nevada, 
Las Vegas.  Brady holds a Level I Education Specialist Instruction Credential for Mild to 
Moderate Disabilities and an Autism Spectrum Disorder Authorization.  His status is 
Probationary 1 and he has fifteen years of teaching experience. 
 
Michelle Laszlo-Rath, 1.0 Speech Therapist.  Michelle’s educational background includes a 
BA in Linguistics from UC Santa Cruz and an MA in Speech-Language Pathology from the 
University of Memphis.  Michelle holds a Clear Speech-Language Pathology Services 
Credential.  Her status is Probationary 1 and she has three years of experience. 
 
Nancy Puhvel, .60 School Counselor at Branciforte Middle and Monarch 
Elementary.  Nancy’s educational background includes a BA in Sociology from UC Los 
Angeles and an MA in Counselor Education from San Jose State University.  Nancy holds a 
Clear Pupil Personnel Services Credential for School Counseling.  Her status is Probationary 
1 and she has six years of experience.  
 
Chanel Robles, .80 Biology Teacher at Harbor High.  Chanel’s educational background 
includes a BA in Biology and an MA in Education from UC Santa Cruz.  Chanel holds a 
Preliminary Single Subject Teaching Credential for Biological Sciences and BCLAD 
Authorization for Spanish.  Her status is Probationary 1 and she has two years of teaching 
experience. 
  
 
 
 
 


17 of 462







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.1 


 
2018-2019 APPOINTMENTS (continued): 
  
Certificated: 
 
Cayla Sandoval, 1.0 Kindergarten/1st Grade Teacher at Monarch Elementary.  Cayla’s 
educational background includes a BA in Fine Arts from San Francisco State 
University.  Cayla holds a Preliminary Multiple Subject Teaching Credential and an English 
Learners Authorization.  Her status is Temporary and she completed her student teaching at 
Grant Elementary (San Lorenzo, CA). 
 
Ayala Younger, .40 4th/5th Grade Teacher at Monarch Elementary.  Ayala’s educational 
background includes a BA in Multicultural Studies from Muhlenberg College (Allentown, PA) 
and an MA in Education from Stanford University.  Ayala holds a Clear Multiple Subject 
Teaching Credential and a BCLAD Authorization for Spanish.  Her status is Temporary and 
she has seven years of teaching experience. 
 
  
 


18 of 462







 


 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT           
 
AGENDA ITEM:        Classified Personnel Actions 
  
MEETING DATE:      June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:                   Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 
  
THROUGH:            Kris Munro, Superintendent   
  
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
To approve the classified personnel actions as submitted. 
  
  
BACKGROUND: 
The attached lists of classified personnel actions are submitted in accordance with the District, 
SCCCE Agreement and the Merit Rules. 
 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 
  
  
  
  
  


19 of 462







This page has been left blank







 


 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE ACTIONS 
  
Reviewed by Director of Classified Personnel: Keneé Houser 6/6/2018 
 
 •Employment Actions Concerning Regular Assignments• 
Probationary (New Hires or Temporary Employees Made Regular): 
Lopez Adame, Daniel, Learning Assistant - BM, 18hrs/9mos, effective 5/8/18 
McInnis, Lauren, Mental Health Specialist - SE, 40hrs/10mos, effective 8/9/18 
Toback, Joshua, Mental Health Specialist - SE, 40hrs/10mos, effective 8/9/18 
Promotion: 
None 
Demotion:   
None 
Increase/Reduction in FTE - Months/Hours of Service: 
None 
Additional FTE/Position:  
None 
39-Mo Reinstatement: 
None 
39-Mo Reinstatement w/Increase in FTE:  
None 
63-Mo Reinstatement: 
None 
Transfer:  
None 
Transfer W/Increase FTE: 
None 
Provisional Assignments (not to exceed 90 working days):  
None 
Leave of Absence:  
None 
 


Separation from Service: 
Bassoni, Allison, Occupational Therapist - SE, 16hrs/10mos, resignation, effective, 6/7/18 
Bocaletti, Andres, Learning Assistant - 15hrs/9mos and Yard Duty - 4.5hrs/9mos - GA, 
resignation, effective 6/7/18  
Bronstein, Dana, Instructional Technician/Life Lab - GA, 15hrs/9mos, resignation,  effective  
6/7/18 


21 of 462







 


 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


Koopmans, Jason, Instructional Technician/PBS - HH, 26hrs/9mos, resignation, effective 8/8/18 
Mooney, Valerie, Instructional Technician/PBS - HH, 26hrs/9mos, resignation, effective 6/7/18  
Nisewaner, Amanda, Mental Health Specialist - SE, 40hrs/10mos, resignation, effective 8/8/18  
Nyland, Barbara, Food Service Worker - FS, 17.5hrs/9mos, resignation, effective 6/30/18 
Oconnell, Benay, Instructional Technician/ASES - GA, 19.5hrs/9mos, resignation, effective 
6/7/18 
Portillo, Jose, Instructional Technician/ASES - BM, 10hrs/9mos, resignation, effective 6/8/18  
Ramirez, Natalie, School Health Clerk - GA, 15hrs/9mos, resignation, effective, 6/7/18 
Shaffer-Tropeano, Lidia, Instructional Technician/Life Lab - DL, 25hrs/9mos, resignation, 
effective 6/7/18 
Retirement: 
Dalbesio, Margaret, Library Media Services Asst. - BM, 35hrs/9mos, effective 8/20/18 
Urbach Jr., Howard, Campus Supervisor - HH, 40hrs/9mos, effective 6/7/18 
Stillinger, Jane, Library Media Service Asst. - GA, 20hrs/9mos, effective, 8/31/18   
 
•Limited Term Project (not to exceed 126 days)/Substitutes: • 
New Temporary Employees/EWA: 
Diaz Perez, Juan, Learning Assistant - Various Sites, 4/16/18 to 6/7/18 
Tapiz Flores, Elliot, Sub Custodian - MO/Various Sites, 5/14/18 to 6/30/18 
Existing Temporary Employees/EWA: 
Arevalo Rivas, Delmy, Sub Custodian - MO, not to exceed 200hrs, 5/7/18 to 6/30/18 
Didion, Gabriela, Learning Assistant - HH, not to exceed 1.83hrs, 3/1/18 to 6/7/18 
Guerrero, Zenaida, Instructional Tech/PBS - SE, not to exceed 160hrs, 4/16/18 to 6/7/18 
Kale, Rasika, Learning Assistant-Coding - MH, not to exceed 15hrs, 10/2/18 to 6/30/18 
Mayo, Darrell, Custodian - SU, not to exceed 8hrs, 5/20/18 
Mayo, Darrell, Sub Custodian - MO, not to exceed 60hrs, 4/17/18 to 6/30/18 
Navarro Linares, Melvin, Sub Custodian - MO/Various Sites, not to exceed 150hrs, 4/23/18 to 
6/30/18 
Rucker, Kyle, Director of Finance/Special Assignments - BS, not to exceed 17.25hrs, 3/2/18 to 
4/16/18 
Torres Ramirez, Beatriz - Learning Assistant - HH, not to exceed 5hrs, 5/11/18 to 6/8/18 
Existing Regular Employees/EWA: 
Bennett, Sarah, Career Development Specialist - SE, not to exceed 130hrs, 6/8/18 to 6/30/18 
Bennett, Sarah, Career Development Specialist - SE, not to exceed 15hrs, 6/11/18 to 6/30/18 
Chavez, Audrey, Instructional Tech. Elem. Intervention - WL, not to exceed 25hrs, 3/12/18 to 
5/18/18 
Elliott Perkins, Pamela, Secretary II - BM, not to exceed 15hrs, 5/10/18 to 6/7/18 
Hayes, Tricia, Project Coordinator - AC, not to exceed 25hrs, 4/20/18 to 5/31/18 
Jones Jr, Jack, Groundskeeper III - SO, not to exceed 15hrs, 5/20/18 


22 of 462







 


 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


Kimpton, Reyena, Instructional Tech Elem. Intervention - BS, not to exceed 20hrs, 5/20/18 to 
6/6/18 
Lazo, Irwing, Translator - BS, not to exceed 20hrs, 6/8/18 to 6/15/18 
Ledbetter, Dorothee, Library/Media Service Ass’t - CU, not to exceed 17hrs, 3/28/18 to 4/8/18 
Linneman, Devon, Career Development Specialist - HH, not to exceed 20hrs, 6/8/18 to 6/30/18 
Lopez, Teodoro, Senior Custodian - BM, not to exceed 100hrs, 4/25/18 to 6/30/18 
Mena, David, Custodian - SU, not to exceed 15hrs, 5/20/18 
Mena Flores, Senior Custodian - SU, not to exceed 15hrs, 5/20/18 
Perez, Ricardo, Custodian - SC, not to exceed 10hrs, 5/11/18 to 5/19/18   
Rodriguez, Joleen, Instructional Technician/PBS - SE, not to exceed 1hr, 4/13/18 
Silks, Tasheena, Custodian - SU, not to exceed 8hrs, 5/20/18 
Slakey, Peggy, Secretary II - MH, not to exceed 25hrs, 5/22/18  to 6/7/18   
Stockton, Frank, Maintenance Specialist - MO, not to exceed 10hrs, 4/4/18 to 6/30/18 
Limited Term Retiree (not to exceed 960 hours per Government Code 21153): 
None 
Out of Class: 
Iniguez, Enrique, Senior Custodian - BV, not to exceed 600hrs, 3/16/18 - 6/30/18 
Sihler, Kris, Lead School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 18hrs, 5/13/18 to 6/30/18 
 
•Employment Actions Concerning Exempt Assignments from the Classified Service• 
Stipend: 
None  
 
Playground Recess Coach, Yard Duty, Child Care: 
Avila Moreno, Mario, Childcare - DL, not to exceed 6hrs, 3/19/18 to 6/7/18 
Avila Moreno, Mario, Yard Duty - DL, not to exceed 80hrs, 5/11/18 to 6/7/18 
Bocaletti, Andres, Yard Duty - GA, not to exceed 13hrs, 5/9/18 - 6/7/18 
Carmichael, Catherine, Yard Duty - WL, not to exceed 45hrs, 5/3/18 to 6/7/18 
Carranza, Helena, Childcare - DL, not to exceed 2hrs, 4/18/18 - 6/7/18 
Mullins, Marsha, Childcare - DL, not to exceed 70hrs, 4/16/18 to 6/7/18 
Mullins, Marsha, Childcare - DL, not to exceed 3hrs, 4/18/18 to 6/7/18  
Mullins, Marsha, Yard Duty - DL, not to exceed 96hrs, 4/23/18 to 6/7/18  
 
•Eligibility Lists Established• 
Instructional Technician-Elementary Intervention (BV) 
 


23 of 462







This page has been left blank







POItem cover Revision Jan 2018 (7)8 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3 


    
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Purchase Orders, Quotes and Bids  
 
MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:   Patrick Gaffney, Asst. Supt., Business Services 
 
THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the purchase orders, quotes and bids 
as submitted. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A detailed report is attached, listing purchase orders, quotes and bids that require Board 
approval prior to release to vendors.  The following definitions are provided to clarify the 
differences between purchase orders, quotes and bids: 
 


Purchase Orders: For purchases routine in nature and over $2,500 but under the amount 
required for a quote. 


 
Quotes:  When purchases will be $6,500 to $15,000 for contracted work or 


$12,000 to $90,200 for materials/supplies, several vendors are 
contacted for written quotations.  This process, though not as rigorous 
as a bid, insures that the District has involved more than one vendor 
and will secure a competitive price. 


 
Bids:  A formal process including advertising to notify prospective bidders, 


distribution of written specification regarding the work or materials, 
and compliance with legal guidelines for bidding, must be followed for 
contracted work projected to cost $15,000 and over, or for materials 
and supplies in the sum of $90,200 or over.  Bids are solicited from a 
wide pool of prospective vendors, thus assuring that when the award is 
made to the lowest responsible bidder, the District receives the best 
price available. 


25 of 462







This page has been left blank







27 of 462







28 of 462







29 of 462







30 of 462







31 of 462







32 of 462







33 of 462







34 of 462







35 of 462







36 of 462







37 of 462







38 of 462







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.4 
 
vendor warrants cover 


 
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Warrant Register 
 
MEETING DATE:  May 9, 2018  
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the warrants on the Board Payment Report.  The report covers vendor warrants 
issued from 4/27/18 – 5/31/18. Hard copies of the report are available for public review at the 
Board Meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


39 of 462







This page has been left blank







41 of 462







42 of 462







43 of 462







44 of 462







45 of 462







46 of 462







47 of 462







48 of 462







49 of 462







50 of 462







51 of 462







52 of 462







53 of 462







54 of 462







55 of 462







56 of 462







57 of 462







58 of 462







59 of 462







60 of 462







61 of 462







62 of 462







63 of 462







64 of 462







 
 AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.5 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution # 24-17-18 


District Signature Authorizations 
 
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve Resolution # 24-17-18, District Signature 
Authorizations, for the period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Section 42632 of the Education Code requires that a majority of the members of the governing board 
sign all prelists, warrants or contracts; or that the governing board authorize an officer or employee of 
the District to sign such orders, warrants or contracts on behalf of the District.  Education Code Section 
42633 requires the governing board to file with the County Superintendent of Schools verified 
signatures of each person authorized to sign payroll and expenditure warrant orders or other district 
documents.  At the beginning of each fiscal year, a new resolution is passed to reauthorize or modify 
signature authority.   
 
  


65 of 462







This page has been left blank







67
 o


f 4
62







68
 o


f 4
62







                          
                       AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.6 
C:\Users\bssec\Desktop\Boardpad 061318\Res to Accept Summer 2018 Bids  cover.doc 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Approve Resolution # 25-17-18 Authorizing the Superintendent, the 
Assistant Superintendent, Business Services & the Director of Finance to 
Accept Construction Bids 


 
MEETING DATE: June 13, 2016 
 
FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution #25-17-18 authorizing the Superintendent, the Assistant Superintendent, 
Business Services, and the Director of Finance to accept construction bids. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Governing Board normally accepts and awards construction bids.  However, the last Board 
meeting in 2017-18 is on 6/20/18, and the first regular Board meeting in 2018-19 is scheduled 
for 8/29/18.  The Board received an update on bond projects on May 9, 2018.  
 
As a prudent measure, should unforeseen conditions or an emergency arise, which may cause 
delay of projects or jeopardize the start of school, the Board is asked to approve a resolution 
authorizing the Superintendent, the Assistant Superintendent of Business Services and the 
Director of Finance to have the ability to award bids from  6/21/18 through 8/28/18. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management  
 
 


69 of 462







This page has been left blank







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION No. 25-17-18 


 
Authorizing the Superintendent, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services and Director of 


Finance to Accept Construction Bids 
 


WHEREAS, effective administration of a school district is dependent upon assignment of 
functional responsibilities; and 


WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz City School District is authorized to 
enter into contracts on behalf of the District; and 
 


WHEREAS, the Governing Board has no regularly scheduled Board meetings scheduled 
between June 21, 2018 and August 29, 2018; and 


 
WHEREAS, pursuant to applicable law, the District intends to continue to accept bids 


and/or proposals for the District to enter into such Contracts (“Bids and/or Proposals”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to keep tranactions moving as rapidly as possible, the Board intends 
to authorize the Superintendent, the Assistant Superintendent, Business Services, and the 
Director of Finance of Santa Cruz City Schools to accept Bids and/or Proposals and to accept and 
award Contracts between June 21, 2018 and August 28, 2018, subject to ratification by motion of 
the Board at a subsequent Board meeting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Education Code section 35160 states in part that a school district’s governing 
board “may initiate and carry on any program, activity, or may otherwise act in any manner 
which is not in conflict with or inconsistent with, or preempted by, any law and which is not in 
conflict with the purposes for which school districts are established;” and 
 
 WHEREAS, Education Code section 35160.1 states in part that school districts “have 
diverse needs unique to their individual communities and programs…. [and] should have the 
flexibility to create their own unique solutions;” and 
 
 WHEREAS, Education Code section 35160.1 further states in part that school districts 
have “authority to carry on activities and programs, including the expenditure of funds for 
programs and activities which, in the determination of the governing board of the school district 
… are necessary or desirable in meeting their needs and are not inconsistent with the purposes 
for which the funds were appropriated;” and 
 
 WHEREAS, Education Code section 35161 states that “the governing board of  any school 
district may execute any powers delegated by law to it or to the district of which it is the 
governing board, and shall discharge any duty imposed by law upon it or upon the district of 
which it is the government board, and may delegate to an officer or employee of the district any 
of those powers or duties.  The governing board, however, retains ultimate responsibility over 
the performance of those powers or duties so delegated;” and 
 


71 of 462







 


 WHEREAS, Education Code section 17604 authorizes a school district’s governing board, 
by a majority vote, to delegate to a school district’s superintendent, or to such persons as the 
superintendent may designate, authority to enter into contracts subject to the provision that “… 
no contract made pursuant to the delegation and authorization shall be valid or constitute an 
enforceable obligation against the district unless and until the same shall have been approved or 
ratified by the governing board, the approval or ratification to be evidenced by a motion of the 
board duly passed and adopted;” and 
 


WHEREAS, Education Code section 17605 authorizes a school district’s governing board, 
by majority vote, to adopt a rule to delegate to any officer or employee of the District as 
designated, “the authority to purchase supplies, materials, apparatus, equipment and services.  
No rule shall authorize any officer or employee to make any purchases involving an expenditure 
by the district in excess of the amount specified by Section 20111 of the Public Contract Code.  
The rule shall prescribe the limits of the delegation as to time, money, and subject matter.  All 
transactions entered into by the officer or employee shall be reviewed by the governing board 
every 60 days;” and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to keep transactions on schedule, the District needs to accept Bids 
and/or Proposals and to accept and award Contracts promptly, subject to ratification by the 
Board at a subsequent Board meeting; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz City School District hereby 
finds, determines, declares, orders, and resolves as follows: 
 
Section 1. That the above recitals are true and correct.  
 
Section 2. That, for the period of June 21, 2018 through August 28, 2018, the Governing 
Board hereby delegates authority to the Superintendent, the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, and the Director of Finance to accept Bids and/or Proposals and to accept and award 
Contracts, limited to the subject matters and monetary limits set forth in Public Contract Code 
section 20111 et seq., and subject to ratification by motion of the Board at a subsequent Board 
meeting. 
 
Section 3. That Contracts approved by the Superintendent, the Assistanct Superintendent, 
Business Services, and the Director of Finance pursuant to this delegation of authority, shall be 
submitted to the Board for ratification. 
 
Section 4. That the Superintendent, the Assistant Superintendent, Business Services, and the 
Director of Finance are authorized pursuant to this Resolution to take any action and execute any 
documents that are necessary to carry out, give effect to, and comply with the terms and intent 
of this Resolution. 
 


72 of 462







 


APPROVED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz City School 
District on this 13th day of June, 2018, by the following vote: 
 


AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 


 ABSENT OR NOT VOTING:  
             
       ________________________________ 


President of the Governing Board  
of Santa Cruz City Schools 


 
           
Attested to: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Secretary of the Governing Board 
of Santa Cruz City Schools 
 


 
        


 
 
 
 


Agenda Item:  8.1.6 
 


              
 
 


73 of 462







This page has been left blank







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.7 
 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 061318\RES. EDUCATION PROJECTION ACT 1819 COVER.DOC 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Adopt Resolution No. 26-17-18 Regarding the Education Protection 


Account Spending Plan for 2018-19 
 
MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution No. 26-17-18, regarding the Education Protection Account Spending Plan 
for 2018-19. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
On November 7, 2012, California voters approved Proposition 30.  The language in Proposition 30, 
the Schools and Local Public Safety Protection Act of 2012, requires that the State Controller 
transfer funds into the Education Protection Act (EPA) during the last ten days of each quarter, 
with a true-up in the last quarter of each year. This means that the funds are available for 
distribution to the District during the last ten days of September, December, March, and June of 
each year from 2013-14 through 2018-19, after which the temporary taxes expire. 


At the beginning of each year, the Department of Finance is to estimate the amount that will be 
transferred into the EPA. This is the amount by which the total revenue limit entitlement after deficit 
is reduced for each district.  Thus, the EPA funds are not ‘new revenue’ but rather an account 
established to account for the estimated cash received by Prop 30.    


Pursuant to Article XIII, Section 36 of the California Constitution, the District is required to determine 
how monies received from the Education Protection Account (EPA) are spent, provided that the 
governing board makes the spending determinations in an open session of a public meeting.  The 
language in the constitutional amendment requires that funds shall not be used for the salaries and 
benefits of administrators or any other administrative costs.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
For 2018-19, the total (elementary and secondary) cash from EPA is estimated to be $1,268,960. 
 
The EPA cash will be used to finance the 2018-19 teacher salaries and benefits. 
 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 


Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


75 of 462







This page has been left blank







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.7 
 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 061318\RES. EDUCATION PROJECTION ACT 1819.DOC 


  
RESOLUTION NO.  26-17-18 


RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
REGARDING THE EDUCATION PROTECTION ACCOUNT – 2018-19 


 


WHEREAS, the voters approved Proposition 30 on November 6, 2012;  


WHEREAS, Proposition 30 added Article XIII, Section 36 to the California Constitution effective 
November 7, 2012;  


WHEREAS, the provisions of Article XIII, Section 36(e) create in the state General Fund an 
Education Protection Account to receive and disburse the revenues derived from the incremental 
increases in taxes imposed by Article XIII, Section 36(f);  


WHEREAS, before June 30th of each year, the Director of Finance shall estimate the total 
amount of additional revenues, less refunds that will be derived from the incremental increases in tax 
rates made pursuant to Article XIII, Section 36(f) that will be available for transfer into the Education 
Protection Account during the next fiscal year;  


WHEREAS, if the sum determined by the State Controller is positive, the State Controller shall 
transfer the amount calculated into the Education Protection Account within ten days preceding the 
end of the fiscal year; 


WHEREAS, all monies in the Education Protection Account are hereby continuously 
appropriated for the support of school districts, county offices of education, charter schools and 
community college districts; 


WHEREAS, monies deposited in the Education Protection Account shall not be used to pay any 
costs incurred by the Legislature, the Governor or any agency of state government; 


WHEREAS, a community college district, county office of education, school district, or charter 
school shall have the sole authority to determine how the monies received from the Education 
Protection Account are spent in the school or schools within its jurisdiction; 


WHEREAS, the governing board of the district shall make the spending determinations with 
respect to monies received from the Education Protection Account in open session of a public 
meeting of the governing board; 


WHEREAS, the monies received from the Education Protection Account shall not be used for 
salaries or benefits for administrators or any other administrative cost; 


WHEREAS, each community college district, county office of education, school district and 
charter school shall annually publish on its Internet website an accounting of how much money was 
received from the Education Protection Account and how that money was spent; 


77 of 462







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.7 
 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 061318\RES. EDUCATION PROJECTION ACT 1819.DOC 


WHEREAS, the annual independent financial and compliance audit required of community 
college districts, county offices of education, school districts and charter schools shall ascertain and 
verify whether the funds provided from the Education Protection Account have been properly 
disbursed and expended as required by Article XIII, Section 36 of the California Constitution; 


WHEREAS, expenses incurred by community college districts, county offices of education, 
school districts and charter schools to comply with the additional audit requirements of Article XIII, 
Section 36 may be paid with funding from the Education Protection Act and shall not be considered 
administrative costs for purposes of Article XIII, Section 36. 


NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved, determined and ordered by the Board of Education of the 
Santa Cruz City Schools as follows: 


1. The monies received from the Education Protection Account shall be spent as required by Article 
XIII, Section 36 and the spending determinations on how the money will be spent shall be made in 
open session of a public meeting of the governing board of Santa Cruz City Schools; 


2. In compliance with Article XIII, Section 36(e), with the California Constitution, the governing board 
of the Santa Cruz City Schools has determined to spend the monies received from the Education 
Protection Act on current certificated teacher salaries and benefits. 


PASSED AND ADOPTED this day, June 13, 2018, by the following vote: 


AYES:  
 
NOES:   
  
ABSTAIN:  
  
ABSENT:     APPROVED: 


 
 
      ___________________________________ 


President of the Board of Education of the 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 
Attest: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Clerk of the Board of Education of the  
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 


78 of 462







79 of 462







80 of 462







AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.8 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Resolution #27-17-18 Authorizing Approval of Personnel Actions 
during Summer Months 


 
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve Resolution #27-17-18 authorizing the Superintendent to approve routine certificated 
and classified personnel actions between June 21, 2018 and August 28, 2018. 


 
 


Background: 
There are no Board meetings scheduled between June 21, 2018 and August 28, 2018.  As 
timely personnel actions are essential to District operations, it is necessary to have a form of 
approval available during this time period. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None 
 
This work is done in support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 


81 of 462







This page has been left blank







AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.8 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 


RESOLUTION #27-17-18 


SUMMER PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 


 


 


WHEREAS timely personnel decisions are essential to the Santa Cruz City Schools district operations, and 


 


WHEREAS there are no schedule meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools Governing Board between June 
21, 2018 and August 28, 2018; 


 


NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Governing Board of Santa Cruz City Schools authorizes the 
Superintendent to approve the routine certificated and classified personnel action items from June 21, 
2018 and August 28, 2018. 


 


PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Santa Cruz City Schools Governing Board held on June 
13, 2018. 


 


AYES: _________    NOES: _________    ABSTENTIONS:_________ ABSENT: _________ 


 


 


 


 


  


Claudia Vestal, President 


Santa Cruz City Schools Governing Board 


 


83 of 462







This page has been left blank







                                         AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.9. 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Updates to the Santa Cruz County Plan for Educating Expelled 
Students and Students at Risk 


 
MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Santa Cruz City Schools updates to the Santa Cruz County plan for educating 
expelled students and students at risk. 


 
BACKGROUND: 
Every three years, the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, in collaboration with each of the 
ten school districts in the county updates the plan for educating expelled students and students 
at risk. 
 
This plan enumerates existing educational alternatives for expelled students, identifies gaps in 
services and provides strategies for satisfying the service gaps. The development and 
implementation of this plan ensures that educational services are provided to all expelled 
pupils in the county. More broadly, this plan continues to extend to all at-risk students a range 
of educational alternatives. We have updated the options available for students in the Santa 
Cruz City Schools to be included in the County plan.  
 
Expelled and at risk students in need of alternatives for education are served.  The County 
Office of Education reviews and evaluates the criteria for the alternatives triennially. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  We retain the ADA for students who remain within our district on suspended 
expulsions or who utilize district alternatives for At Risk students. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 
 


Prepared by Eileen Brown, Director of Student Services 
 


85 of 462







This page has been left blank







SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 


PLAN 


FOR 


EDUCATING EXPELLED AND AT-RISK 


STUDENTS 


 
 


 


The Santa Cruz County Plan for Educating Expelled Students was developed and updated 


through the efforts and talents of the Santa Cruz County Office of Education and representatives 


from each of the Santa Cruz County school districts. This plan enumerates existing educational 


alternatives for expelled students, identifies gaps in services and provides strategies for satisfying 


the service gaps. The development and implementation of this plan ensures that educational 


services are provided to all expelled pupils in the county. More broadly, this plan continues to 


extend to all at-risk students a range of educational alternatives. 


 


Also included within this document is a description of programs that serve students on suspended 


expulsion contracts thereby providing a continuum of interventions. Additionally included, and 


new for this report, is a breakdown of expulsions by district and ethnicity. Following an 


analysis of disproportionality, is a brief description of various efforts being utilized to minimize 


suspensions and expulsions and address significant ethnic disparities in the outcomes. 


 


Educational programs within Santa Cruz County provide numerous opportunities for students in 


need of traditional and/or alternative education programs. Individual school districts offer a 


broad spectrum of services and the Santa Cruz County Office of Education offers supporting 


educational options. This combination provides a continuum of educational alternatives for 


students who are expelled or, for whatever reason, have been unsuccessful in subscribing to the 


requirements of their educational programs. 


 


In addressing the requirements of legislation mandating alternatives for expellees, the planners 


offer that program quality has been paramount in reviewing both current offerings and in 


planning an expansion of program. 


INTRODUCTION TO PLAN 


87 of 462







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


 


ALTERNATIVE FAMILY EDUCATION 
 


Location: Branciforte Small Schools Campus 
840 N. Branciforte Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA 95062 


Grade(s): K-12
th


 


Enrollment: 190 


Site Contact: Michelle McKinney, 429-3878 x228 


An independent, K-12 home study program. Credentialed consultant 


teacher assists parent/guardian in planning and implementing an 


instructional program in the home. A network of other home schooling 


families and a resource center are accessible to each student and to 


parents/guardians. 
 


Parents of students referred to AFE on a suspended expulsion need to be in 


agreement with this placement.  
 
ARK INDEPENDENT STUDY 


 


Location: Branciforte Small Schools Campus 
840 N. Branciforte Ave., Santa Cruz, CA 95062 


Grade(s): 9th - 12th 


Enrollment: 70 


Site Contact: Steve Hambright, Principal, 429-3878 x228 


The Ark is a fully accredited high school with 70 students, grades 9 – 
12. The Ark offers students the opportunity to earn a diploma while 
working independently. Teachers have one-on-one weekly 
meetings with students, help students set individual learning goals, 
and create assignments tailored to meet the students’ needs and 
interests. Over sixty challenging, standards- based courses are 
offered. Additionally, students may attend Cabrillo College 
concurrently or take occupational classes offered through the R.O.P. 
program. 


Special Features: 
 Each student is assigned to one teacher with whom they meet 


weekly for 1-2 hours 
 Curriculum is standards based with special attention given to 


preparing students to pass the high school exit exam 
 Students may enroll concurrently in Cabrillo, R.O.P. classes, or 


pursue part-time  employment 
 Weekly Real World Learning Seminars support students in 


88 of 462







goal setting, internships and connecting their course of study 
to their interests and life goals 


B.                          
 Parents of students referred to AFE on a suspended expulsion need to be in 


agreement with this placement. 


 


 
 
COSTANOA HIGH SCHOOL 


 


Location: Branciforte Small Schools Campus 
840 N. Branciforte Ave., Santa Cruz, CA 95062 


Grade(s): 10th – 12th 


Enrollment: 130 
Site Contact: Steve Hambright, Principal, 429-3878 x3101 


 
Costanoa students benefit from small class sizes and strong 
relationships with staff members. We focus on developing the 
following habits: “Use your mind well. Do the right thing. Work hard.” 
Costanoa has a diverse student population that includes 130 students 
in grades 10 – 12. Curricular offerings include academic courses 
leading to the high school diploma, English Language Development and 
special interest courses such as garden science, early childhood 
education, culinary arts, and weight training. 
Costanoa is fully accredited by the Western Association of Schools 
and Colleges. 


 
Special features: 


▪ Provide intensive guidance and advisory services 
▪ Trauma Informed practices as well as Restorative Justice 


approach 


▪ Work experience and work permits available as required 


▪  


▪ DELTA SCHOOL 
 


Mailing Address:        Cabrillo College Campus Rm. 1195 


6500 Soquel Drive, Bldg. 1190 


Aptos 


Grade(s): 9th (second semester) 10th -12th (all year) 


Enrollment: 135 


Site Contact: Angela Meeker, 477-5212  
 


Delta High School is located on the Cabrillo College campus. It is an 
alternative charter school that is an alternative for students who have 
not experienced success in other school settings. A dedicated faculty and 


89 of 462







staff, class sizes of 15-17 students, and access to college programs are 
cornerstones of the school’s academic program. Delta offers classes that 
are challenging and tailored to a variety of learning styles, interests, and 
academic abilities. The school prides itself on diversity and being a small, 
supportive school community. Delta is on a semester system. Students 
are encouraged to apply at any time and participate in the interview 
process prior to enrollment.  


 


Special Features: 
 Relevant and engaging curriculum tailored to students’ current 


interests and experiences 


 Problem based learning with Full time social-emotional 
counseling available 


 Dedicated academic dean to support graduation planning, dual 
enrollment at Cabrillo and exploring life’s options  


 Independent Studies Program 


 A Cabrillo Cohort of  students who take academic classes at 
Cabrillo as a group with support from Delta staff  


 Job shadow, internships, career panels 


 


 
If you do not expel students, what do you offer students whose behavior meets the requirements for 


expulsion in the Education Code (48915)? 


 


We do not usually expel TK-5th grade students for violations of Education Code 48915. For 


those violations that require a mandatory expulsion we would provide a suspended expulsion 


with a transfer to another campus in our district. We have not had any mandatory expulsions for 


TK-5th grade students in at least ten years.  


 
Are there any gaps in services for these students? 


 


If we had a student requiring expulsion, who we considered dangerous for an elementary campus, we do 


not have an alternative placement at this time. We would need to create an individualized plan for 


education.  
 


90 of 462







                                                  AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.10. 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Out-of-State Travel  –  Special Education Assessment 
 
MEETING DATE: June 13, 2017 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the out-of-state travel of a School Psychologist and a Special Education Teacher to 
complete the assessment of a secondary student who has been unilaterally placed at a 
residential treatment facility in Utah.  The purpose of the assessment is to determine eligibility 
for special education and gather data to make an appropriate offer of placement. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In accordance with Board Policy 3350; all out-of-state travel for which reimbursement will be 
claimed requires Board approval.  Itemized receipts will be submitted for reimbursement and 
every effort will be made to contain total expenses associated with this trip.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $2,275.00.   Funded by Special Education – Restricted 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
 
 


 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 
 


91 of 462







This page has been left blank







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.11 
 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 061318\2017-18 PTOC ANNUAL REPORT COVER.DOC 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Parcel Tax Oversight Committee 2018-19 Annual Report 
 
MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Accept the 2018-19 Annual Parcel Tax Oversight Committee Report. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
The Parcel Tax Oversight Committee’s Bylaws call for an annual written report to be prepared 
and presented to the Board, in open session, which will include a statement indicating whether 
the District’s parcel tax revenue expenditures for the preceding year were made in accordance 
with the stated purposes of each parcel tax measure, and a summary of the Committee’s 
proceedings for the preceding year. 
 
The 2018-19 Annual Parcel Tax Oversight Committee Report is attached for the Board’s review. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 
 
. 
 


93 of 462







This page has been left blank







95 of 462







96 of 462







      AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.12 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 061318\SURPLUS COVER.DOC 


 
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Disposition of Surplus Property  
 
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property on the attached list(s) in 
accordance with Board Policy 3270 and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Education Code Section 17545(a) provides that the Board of Education may sell for cash any 
personal property belonging to the District if the property is not required for school purposes, or if 
it should be disposed of for the purpose of replacement, or if it is unsatisfactory or not suitable for 
school use. (b) The governing board may choose to conduct any sale of personal property 
authorized under this section by means of a public auction conducted by employees of the district 
or other public agencies, or by contract with a private auction firm. The board may delegate to the 
district employee responsible for conducting the auction the authority to transfer the personal 
property to the highest responsible bidder upon completion of the auction and after payment has 
been received by the district.  
 
Section 17546(a) If the governing board, by a unanimous vote of those members present, finds 
that the property, whether one or more items, does not exceed in value the sum of two thousand 
five hundred dollars ($2,500), it may be sold at private sale without advertising, by any employee 
of the district empowered for that purpose by the board. (b) Any item or items of property having 
previously been offered for sale pursuant to Section 17545, but for which no qualified bid was 
received, may be sold at private sale without advertising by any employee of the district 
empowered for that purpose by the board.  (c) If the board, by a unanimous vote of those 
members present, finds that the property is of insufficient value to defray the costs of arranging a 
sale, the property may be donated to a charitable organization deemed appropriate by the board, 
or it may be disposed of in the local public dump on order of any employee of the district 
empowered for that purpose by the board. 
 
Per Ed Code 60530(b), instructional materials may be destroyed by any economical means, 
provided that no instructional material shall be destroyed until 30 days after the governing board 
has given notice to all persons who have filed a request for such notice. 
 


97 of 462







This page has been left blank







SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 


MEETING OF JUNE 13, 2018 
 


SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST 
 


Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  


                 
SITE: DELAVEAGA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 


        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 


 
1. 43 ARTCO-BELL student chairs, 


various colors 
N/A  ~ 20+ yrs Fair TBD 


2. 63 VIRCO small student chairs, 
various colors 


N/A  ~ 20+ yrs Fair TBD 


3. 4 foot Sunset ladder, Model 
F1A04B, 300 lb. cap. 


N/A  Unknown Good TBD 


4. 74 Student oak desks N/A  ~ 20+ yrs Good TBD 
5. GE TV   Model 19GT313C N/A  21 yrs. Obsolete 0 
6. Zenith VCR N/A  Unknown  Unknown   0 
7. 2 Califone speakers N/A  Unknown Unknown 0 
8. 9 Trapezoid student tables N/A  ~ 20+ yrs Fair TBD 
9. 2 metal teachers desks N/A  ~ 20+ yrs Fair TBD 
       
     Total $0 


  
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
       


99 of 462







This page has been left blank







SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 


MEETING OF JUNE 13, 2018 
 


SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST 
 


Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  


                 
SITE:   FACILITY SERVICES 


        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 


 
1. Ford F250 pick-up truck # 57 10112  18 years  Poor, but working $1,000 
       
       
     Total $1,000 


  
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
       


101 of 462







This page has been left blank







SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 


MEETING OF JUNE 13, 2018 
 


SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST 
 


Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  


                 
SITE:   GAULT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 


        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 


 
1. 13” Apple Macbook  13918  2006  Non-functional $0 
       
       
     Total $0 


  
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
       


103 of 462







This page has been left blank







 
   AGENDA ITEM 8.2.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Agreement for 2018-19 Legal Services: Lozano Smith 
 
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve this annual agreement for services as submitted. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This firm is used on an as-needed basis by the District. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The fiscal impact will be determined during the 2018-19 fiscal year by the use of services as 
needed.  General Fund  (Unrestricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


 
 


105 of 462







This page has been left blank







 


1 


 


 


 


AGREEMENT FOR LEGAL SERVICES 


 


THIS AGREEMENT is effective July 1, 2018, between the SANTA CRUZ CITY 


SCHOOLS (“Client”) and the law firm of LOZANO SMITH, LLP (“Attorney”) (each a “Party” 


and collectively the “Parties”).  Attorney shall provide legal services as requested by Client on 


the following terms and conditions:    


 


I. ENGAGEMENT.  Client hires Attorney as its legal counsel with respect to matters the 


Client refers to Attorney.  Attorney shall provide legal services to represent Client in such 


matters, keep Client informed of significant developments and respond to Client’s inquiries 


regarding those matters.  Client understands that Attorney cannot guarantee any particular 


results, including the costs and expenses of representation.  Client agrees to be forthcoming with 


Attorney, to cooperate with Attorney in protecting Client’s interests, to keep Attorney fully 


informed of developments material to Attorney’s representation of client, and to abide by this 


Agreement.  Client is hereby advised of the right to seek independent legal advice regarding this 


Agreement. 


 


II. RATES TO BE CHARGED.  Client agrees to pay Attorney for services rendered based 


on the attached rate schedule.  Agreements for legal fees on other-than-an-hourly basis may be 


made by mutual agreement for special projects (including as set forth in future addenda to this 


Agreement).  


 


III. REIMBURSEMENT.  Client agrees to reimburse Attorney for actual and necessary 


expenses and costs incurred in the course of providing legal services to Client, including but not 


limited to expert, consultant, mediation and arbitration fees.  Attorney shall not be required to 


advance costs on behalf of Client over the amount of $1,000 unless otherwise agreed to in 


writing by Attorney.  Typical expenses advanced for Client, without prior authorization, include 


messenger fees, witness fees, expedited delivery charges, travel expenses, court reporter fees and 


transcript fees.  Client authorizes Attorney to retain experts or consultants to perform services for 


Client in relation to litigation or Specialized Services. 


 


IV. MONTHLY INVOICES.  Attorney shall send Client a statement for fees and costs 


incurred every calendar month (the “Statement”).  Statements shall set forth the amount, rate and 


description of services provided.  Client shall pay Attorney’s Statements within thirty (30) 


calendar days after receipt.  An interest charge of one percent (1%) per month shall be assessed 


on balances that are more than thirty (30) calendar days past due, not to exceed 10% per annum.  


 


V. COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN ATTORNEY AND CLIENT.  The Parties recognize 


that all legal advice provided by Attorney is protected by the Attorney-Client and Work Product 


Privileges.  In addition to regular telephone, mail and other common business communication 


methods, Client hereby authorizes Attorney to use facsimile transmissions, cellular telephone 


calls and text, unencrypted email, and other electronic transmissions in communicating with 


107 of 462







 


 2 


Client.  Unless otherwise instructed by Client, any such communications may include 


confidential information. 


 


VI. POTENTIAL AND ACTUAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  If Attorney becomes 


aware of any potential or actual conflict of interest between Client and one or more other clients 


represented by Attorney, Attorney will comply with applicable laws and rules of professional 


conduct. 


 


VII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  Attorney is an independent contractor and not an 


employee of Client.   


 


VIII. TERMINATION.   


 


a. Termination by Client.  Client may discharge Attorney at any time, with or 


without cause, by written notice to Attorney.   


 


b. Termination by Mutual Consent or by Attorney.  Attorney may terminate its 


services at any time with Client’s consent or for good cause.  Good cause exists if (a) 


Client fails to pay Attorney’s Statement within sixty (60) calendar days of its date, (b) 


Client fails to comply with other terms of this Agreement, including Client’s duty to 


cooperate with Attorney in protecting Client’s interests, (c) Client has failed to disclose 


material facts to Attorney or (d) any other circumstance exists that requires termination of 


this engagement under the ethical rules applicable to Attorney.  Additionally, to the 


extent allowed by law, Attorney may decline to provide services on new matters or may 


terminate the Agreement without cause upon written notice to Client if Attorney is not 


then providing any legal services to Client. 


 


c. Following Termination.  Upon termination by either Party:  (i) Client shall 


promptly pay all unpaid fees and costs for services provided or costs incurred pursuant to 


this Agreement up to the date of termination; (ii) unless otherwise required by law or 


agreed to by the Parties, Attorney will provide no legal services following notice of 


termination; (iii) Client will cooperate with Attorney in facilitating the orderly transfer of 


any outstanding matters to new counsel, including promptly signing a substitution of 


counsel form at Attorney’s request; and (iv) Client shall, upon request, be provided the 


Client’s file maintained for the Client by Attorney and shall sign acknowledgment of 


receipt upon delivery of that file. For all Statements received by Client from Attorney 


prior to the date of termination, Client’s failure to notify Attorney in writing of any 


disagreement with either the services performed or the charges for those services as 


shown in the Statement within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of termination shall be 


deemed Client’s acceptance of and agreement with the Statement.  For any billing 


appearing for the first time on a Statement received by Client from Attorney after the date 


of termination, failure to notify Attorney in writing of any disagreement with either the 


services performed or the charges for those services within thirty (30) calendar days from 


receipt of the Statement shall be deemed to signify Client’s acceptance of and agreement 


with the Statement.   


 


108 of 462







 


 3 


IX. MAINTENANCE OF INSURANCE.  Attorney agrees that, during the term of this 


Agreement, Attorney shall maintain liability and errors and omissions insurance. 


 


X. CONSULTANT SERVICES.  Attorney works with professional consultants that provide 


services, including but not limited to investigations, public relations, educational consulting, 


leadership mentoring and development, financial, budgeting, management auditing, 


board/superintendent relations, administrator evaluation and best practices, and 


intergovernmental relations.  Attorney does not share its legal fees with such consultants.  


Attorney may offer these services to Client upon request. 


 


XI. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. 


 


a. Mediation.  Except as otherwise set forth in this section, Client and Attorney 


agree to make a good faith effort to settle any dispute or claim that arises under this 


Agreement through discussions and negotiations and in compliance with applicable law.  


In the event of a claim or dispute, either Party may request, in writing to the other Party, 


to refer the dispute to mediation.  This request shall be made within thirty (30) calendar 


days of the action giving rise to the dispute.  Upon receipt of a request for mediation, 


both Parties shall make a good faith effort to select a mediator and complete the 


mediation process within sixty (60) calendar days.  The mediator’s fee shall be shared 


equally between Client and Attorney.  Each Party shall bear its own attorney fees and 


costs.  Whenever possible, any mediator selected shall have expertise in the area of the 


dispute and any selected mediator must be knowledgeable regarding the mediation 


process.  No person shall serve as mediator in any dispute in which that person has any 


financial or personal interest in the outcome of the mediation.  The mediator’s 


recommendation for settlement, if any, is non-binding on the Parties.  Mediation 


pursuant to this provision shall be private and confidential.  Only the Parties and their 


representatives may attend any mediation session.  Other persons may attend only with 


the written permission of both Parties.  All persons who attend any mediation session 


shall be bound by the confidentiality requirements of California Evidence Code section 


1115, et seq., and shall sign an agreement to that effect.  Completion of mediation shall 


be a condition precedent to arbitration, unless the other Party refuses to cooperate in the 


setting of mediation. 


 


b. Dispute Regarding Fees.  Any dispute as to attorney fees and/or costs charged 


under this Agreement shall to the extent required by law be resolved under the California 


Mandatory Fee Arbitration Act (Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 6200, et seq.). 


 


c. Binding Arbitration.  Except as otherwise set forth in section (b) above, Client 


and Attorney agree to submit all disputes to final and binding arbitration, either following 


mediation which fails to resolve all disputes or in lieu of mediation as may be agreed by 


the Parties in writing.  Either Party may make a written request to the other for 


arbitration.  If made in lieu of mediation, the request must be made within sixty (60) 


calendar days of the action giving rise to the dispute.  If the request for arbitration is 


made following an unsuccessful attempt to mediate the Parties’ disputes, the request must 


be made within ten (10) calendar days of termination of the mediation.  The Parties shall 


109 of 462







 


 4 


make a good faith attempt to select an arbitrator and complete the arbitration within 


ninety (90) calendar days.  If there is no agreement on an arbitrator, the Parties shall use 


the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Service (JAMS).  The arbitrator’s qualifications 


must meet the criteria set forth above for a mediator, except, in addition, the arbitrator 


shall be an attorney unless otherwise agreed by the Parties.  The arbitrator’s fee shall be 


shared equally by both Parties.  Each Party shall bear its own attorney fees and other 


costs.  The arbitrator shall render a written decision and provide it to both Parties.  The 


arbitrator may award any remedy or relief otherwise available in court and the decision 


shall set forth the reasons for the award.   The arbitrator shall not have any authority to 


amend or modify this agreement.  Any arbitration conducted pursuant to this paragraph 


shall be governed by California Code of Civil Procedure sections 1281, et seq.  By 


signing this Agreement, Client acknowledges that this agreement to arbitrate results in a 


waiver of Client’s right to a court or jury trial for any fee dispute or malpractice claim.  


This also means that Client is giving up Client’s right to discovery and appeal.  If Client 


later refuses to submit to arbitration after agreeing to do so, Client maybe ordered to 


arbitrate pursuant to the provisions of California law.  Client acknowledges that before 


signing this Agreement and agreeing to binding arbitration, Client is entitled, and has 


been given a reasonable opportunity, to seek the advice of independent counsel. 


 


d. Effect of Termination.  The terms of this section shall survive the termination of 


the Agreement. 


 


XII. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement with its exhibit supersedes any and all other 


prior or contemporaneous oral or written agreements between the Parties.  Each Party 


acknowledges that no representations, inducements, promises or agreements have been made by 


any person which are not incorporated herein, and that any other agreements shall be void.  


Furthermore, any modification of this Agreement shall only be effective if in writing signed by 


all Parties hereto. 


 


XIII. SEVERABILITY.   Should any provision of this Agreement be held by a court of 


competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, but the remainder of the Agreement 


can be enforced without failure of material consideration to any Party, then this Agreement shall 


not be affected and it shall remain in full force and effect, unless amended or modified by mutual 


consent of the Parties; provided, however, that if the invalidity or unenforceability of any 


provision of this Agreement results in a material failure of consideration, then, to the extent 


allowed by law, the Party adversely affected thereby shall have the right in its sole discretion to 


terminate this Agreement upon providing written notice of such termination to the other Party. 


 


XIV. NON-WAIVER.  None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be considered waived 


by either Party unless such waiver is specified in writing. 


 


XV. NO THIRD PARTY RIGHTS.  This Agreement shall not create any rights in, or inure to 


the benefit of, any third party. 


 


110 of 462







 


 5 


XVI. ASSIGNMENT.  The terms of this Agreement may not be assigned to any third party.  


Neither Party may assign any right of recovery under or related to the Agreement to any third 


party. 


 


 


SO AGREED: 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS  


 


 


 


       


Kris Munro                                          Date 


Superintendent 


LOZANO SMITH, LLP 


 


 


 


          May 24, 2018 


Karen M. Rezendes           Date 


Managing Partner 


111 of 462







 


6 


 


PROFESSIONAL RATE SCHEDULE 


FOR SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


(Effective July 1, 2018) 


 


 


1. HOURLY PROFESSIONAL RATES 


 


Client agrees to pay Attorney by the following standard hourly rate*: 


 


Partner** / Senior Counsel / Of Counsel    $ 275 - $ 300 per hour 


Associate        $ 215 - $ 275 per hour 


Paralegal / Law Clerk       $ 135 - $ 155 per hour 


Consultant        $ 135 - $ 195 per hour 


* Rates for individual attorneys within each category above vary based upon years of 


experience.  Specific rates for each attorney are available upon request.   


** Rates for work performed by Senior Partners with 20 years of experience or more may 


range from $300 - $350 per hour. 


 


 


2. BILLING PRACTICE 


 


Lozano Smith will provide a monthly, itemized Statement for services rendered.  Time 


billed is broken into 1/10 (.10) hour increments, allowing for maximum efficiency in the 


use of attorney time.  Invoices will clearly indicate the department or individuals for whom 


services were rendered. 


 


Written responses to audit letter inquiries will be charged to Client on an hourly basis, with 


the minimum charge for such responses equaling .5 hours. Travel time shall be prorated if 


the assigned attorney travels for two or more clients on the same trip. 


 


3. COSTS AND EXPENSES 


 


In-office copying/electronic communication printing  $ 0.25 per page 


Facsimile        $ 0.25 per page 


Postage        Actual Usage 


Mileage        IRS Standard Rate 


 


Other costs, such as messenger, meals, and lodging shall be charged on an actual and 


necessary basis. 


112 of 462







 
   AGENDA ITEM 8.2.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Agreement for 2018-19 Legal Services: Dannis, Woliver, Kelley 
 
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve this annual agreement for services as submitted. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This firm is used on an as-needed basis by the District. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The fiscal impact will be determined during the 2018-19 fiscal year by the use of services as 
needed.  General Fund (Unrestricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


 
 


113 of 462







This page has been left blank







11
5 


of
 4


62







11
6 


of
 4


62







11
7 


of
 4


62







11
8 


of
 4


62







11
9 


of
 4


62







This page has been left blank







 
   AGENDA ITEM 8.2.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Agreement for 2018-19 Legal Services: Fagen, Friedman & Fulfrost 
 
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve this annual agreement for services as submitted. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This firm is used on an as-needed basis by the District. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The fiscal impact will be determined during the 2018-19 fiscal year by the use of services as 
needed.  General Fund (Unrestricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


 
 


121 of 462







This page has been left blank







 
AGREEMENT FOR LEGAL SERVICES


 
This agreement is by and between Santa Cruz City Schools (“Client”) and the law firm of Fagen
Friedman & Fulfrost LLP (“Attorney”). In consideration of the promises and the mutual agreements
hereinafter contained, Attorney agrees to provide legal services to Client on the terms set forth
below effective July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019:
 
1. CONDITIONS. This Agreement will not take effect, and Attorney will have no obligation to
provide legal services, until Client returns a signed copy of this Agreement.
 
2. SCOPE OF SERVICES. Client hires Attorney as its legal representative/counsel with respect to
matters Client specifically refers to Attorney. Attorney will provide those legal services reasonably
required to represent Client. Attorney will take reasonable steps to keep Client informed of progress
and to respond to Client’s inquiries.
 
3. CLIENT’S DUTIES. Client agrees to cooperate with Attorney and to communicate with
candor while keeping the Attorney apprised of any information or developments which may come
to Client’s attention, to abide by this Agreement, to pay Attorney’s bills on time and to keep
Attorney advised of Client’s address and telephone number. Client will assist Attorney in providing
information and documents necessary for the representation in the described matter.
 
4. CONSULTANT SERVICES. Attorney may provide consulting services in addition to or in
support of the legal services provided pursuant to this Agreement, through qualified non-attorney
Communication Services and Education Consultants.  These services are intended to support Client
with communications work or educational consultant services related to labor and employment
matters, special education and student matters, high-profile litigation and settlement agreements, in
addition to employee, community, inter-governmental and media relations.
 
5. EMAIL COMMUNICATIONS/CLOUD-BASED COMPUTING.  In order to provide Client
with efficient and convenient legal services, Attorney will frequently communicate and transmit
documents using e-mail.  In addition, Attorney uses a cloud computing service with servers located
in a facility other than Attorney’s office. Most of Attorney’s electronic data, including emails
and documents, are stored in this manner.  Although Attorney will take reasonable precautions to
keep email and other electronic data confidential and secure, because technology and cyber threats
continue to evolve, there may be risks communicating and storing electronic data in this manner,
including risks related to confidentiality and security.  By entering into this Agreement, Client is
consenting to such e-mail transmissions with Client and Client’s representatives and agents, as
well as to having communications, documents and electronic data pertinent to Client’s matter(s)
stored through a cloud-based service.
 
6. LEGAL FEES AND BILLING PRACTICES. Client agrees to pay by the hour, in minimum
units of one tenth (.1) of an hour, at Attorney’s prevailing rates for all time spent on Client’s matter
by Attorney’s legal personnel. Current hourly rates are noted in an attached rate schedule and the
actual rate billed is based on the attorney’s number of years of experience.
 
The rates on this schedule are subject to change on 30 days’ written notice to client. If Client
declines to pay any increased rates, Attorney will have the right to withdraw as Attorney for Client.
The time charged will include the time Attorney spends on telephone calls relating to Client’s
matter, including calls with Client and other parties and attorneys. The legal personnel assigned
to Client’s matter may confer among themselves about the matter, as required and appropriate.
When they do confer, each person will charge for the time expended, as long as the work done is


123 of 462







reasonably necessary and not duplicative. Likewise, if more than one of the legal personnel attends
a meeting or other proceeding, each will charge for the time spent.
 
7. COSTS AND OTHER CHARGES. (a) Attorney will incur various costs and expenses in
performing legal services under this Agreement. Except as otherwise stated, Client agrees to pay
for all costs, disbursements and expenses in addition to the hourly fees. These include fees fixed
by law or assessed by public agencies, messenger and other delivery fees, out of office copying/
reproduction costs, and travel costs (including mileage charged at the standard IRS rate, parking,
transportation, meals and hotel costs, if applicable), and other similar items. The following costs
shall not be charged:
 


In office Photocopying No Charge
Facsimile Charges No Charge
Postage No Charge
On-line Legal Research Subscriptions No Charge
Administrative Overhead No Charge


     
(b) Out of town travel. Client agrees to pay transportation, meals, lodging and all other costs of any
necessary out-of-town travel by law firm personnel. Client will also be charged the hourly rates
for the time legal personnel spend traveling.
 
(c) Consultants and Investigators. To aid in the representation in Client’s matter, it may become
necessary to hire consultants or investigators. Client agrees to pay such fees and charges.
 
8. BILLING STATEMENTS. Attorney will send Client monthly statements for fees and costs
incurred. Each statement will be payable within thirty (30) days of its mailing date. An interest
charge of one percent (1%) per month shall be assessed on balances that are more than thirty (30)
days past due. Client may request a statement at intervals of less than 30 days. If Client requests a
bill, Attorney will provide one within 10 days. The statements shall include the amount, rate, basis
of calculation or other method of determination of the fees and costs, which costs will be clearly
identified by item and amount.
 
9. DISCHARGE AND WITHDRAWAL. Client may discharge Attorney at any time. Attorney
may withdraw with Client’s consent, for good cause or as allowed or required by law upon ten (10)
days written notice. Good cause includes Client’s breach of this Agreement, refusal to cooperate
or to follow Attorney’s advice on a material matter or any fact or circumstance that would render
Attorney’s continuing representation unlawful or unethical. When Attorney’s services conclude, all
unpaid charges will immediately become due and payable. Following the conclusion of Attorney's
representation of Client, Attorney will, upon Client's request, deliver to Client the Client file(s)
and property in Attorney's possession, whether or not Client has paid for all services.  If Client has
not requested delivery of the files, Attorney may destroy all such files in its possession seven (7)
years after the conclusion of the representation.
 
10. DISCLAIMER OF GUARANTEE AND ESTIMATES. Nothing in this Agreement and
nothing in Attorney’s statements to Client will be construed as a promise or guarantee about the
outcome of the matter. Attorney makes no such promises or guarantees. Attorney’s comments about
the outcome of the matter are expressions of opinion only. Actual fees may vary from estimates
given.
 
11. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties. No
other agreement, statement, or promise made on or before the effective date of this Agreement will
be binding on the parties.
 
12. MODIFICATION BY SUBSEQUENT AGREEMENT. This Agreement may be modified
by subsequent agreement of the parties only by an instrument in writing signed by both of them or
an oral agreement only to the extent that the parties carry it out.
 


124 of 462







13. SEVERABILITY IN EVENT OF PARTIAL INVALIDITY. If any provision of this
Agreement is held in whole or in part to be unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of that
provision and of the entire Agreement will be severable and remain in effect.
 
14. MEDIATION CLAUSE. If a dispute arises out of or relating to any aspect of this Agreement
between the Client and Attorney, or the breach thereof, and if the dispute cannot be settled through
negotiation, Attorney and Client agree to use mediation before resorting to arbitration, litigation,
or any other dispute resolution procedure.
 
15. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Agreement will govern all legal services performed by Attorney
on behalf of Client commencing with the date Attorney first performed services. The date at the
beginning of this Agreement is for reference only. Even if this Agreement does not take effect,
Client will be obligated to pay Attorney the reasonable value of any services Attorney may have
performed for Client.
 
THE PARTIES HAVE READ AND UNDERSTOOD THE FOREGOING TERMS AND AGREE
TO THEM AS OF THE DATE ATTORNEY FIRST PROVIDED SERVICES. THE CLIENT
SHALL RECEIVE A FULLY EXECUTED DUPLICATE OF THIS AGREEMENT.
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this Agreement for Legal Services.
 


Santa Cruz City Schools  Fagen Friedman & Fulfrost LLP


   
Chris Keeler


Type or Print Name
 


 Name


  
Managing Partner


Type or Print Title
 


 


Title


 
 
 


District Authorized Signature
 


 


Signature


DATE:______________________________  DATE: May 24, 2018
 


125 of 462







 


 


PROFESSIONAL RATE SCHEDULE
 


Santa Cruz City Schools
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019


 
1.   HOURLY PROFESSIONAL RATES
 
   Client agrees to pay Attorney by the following standard hourly rate:
 


Associate $215 - $245 per hour
Partner $275 - $310 per hour
Of-Counsel $310 per hour
Paralegal/Law Clerk $135 - $165 per hour
Paralegal/Law Clerk (Bar Admitted Outside CA) $205 per hour
Education Consultant $185 per hour
Communication Services Consultant $245 per hour


 
Travel time shall be charged only from the attorney's nearest office to the destination and
shall be prorated if the assigned attorney travels for two or more clients on the same trip.
If Client requests a specific attorney, Client agrees to pay for all travel time of that specific
attorney in connection with the matter.


 
2.   ON-SITE LEGAL SERVICES
 


At Client's discretion and by prior arrangement of Client and Attorney, Attorney may
provide regularly scheduled on-site legal services ("Office Hours") to address legal issues
that may arise in Client's day-to-day operations. Office Hours, which include time Attorney
spends at Client's facility as well as travel time, shall be provided at a reduced hourly rate
of 90% of the Attorney's standard hourly rate.


                                 
3.   COSTS AND EXPENSES
 


In office Photocopying No Charge
Facsimile Charges No Charge
Postage No Charge
On-line Legal Research Subscriptions No Charge
Administrative Overhead No Charge
Mileage IRS Standard Rate


 
Other costs, such as messenger, meals, and lodging shall be charged on an actual and
necessary basis.


126 of 462







 
   AGENDA ITEM 8.2.4.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Agreement for 2018-19 Board Policy Services: CSBA 
 
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve this annual agreement from CSBA to provide our board policy manual maintenance and 
our online board policy services. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools has been using the CSBA board policy online services since July 2010.  
CSBA provides suggested policy revisions approximately six times per year, based on changes in 
Education Code and law.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Manual maintenance: $3,205.00 General Fund (Unrestricted) 
GAMUT Online: $2,840.00 General Fund (Unrestricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


 
 


127 of 462







This page has been left blank







12
9 


of
 4


62







This page has been left blank







 
   AGENDA ITEM 8.2.5. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Agreement for 2018-19 Board Policy Services: CSBA 
 
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve this annual agreement from California School Board Association (CSBA) for District 
Membership and for Education Legal Alliance Membership. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools has been a member of the California School Board Association and the 
Education Legal Alliance since July 2010.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
CSBA Membership 2018-19: $11,474.00 General Fund (Unrestricted) 
ELA Membership 2018-19: $2,868.00 General Fund (Unrestricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


 
 


131 of 462







This page has been left blank







13
3 


of
 4


62







This page has been left blank







 
   AGENDA ITEM 8.2.6. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Contract: 2018-19 Document Tracking Services 
 
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve this annual contract for licensing and services from Document Tracking Services. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Document Tracking Services (DTS) provides a license and a web based application for the 
creation, editing, updating, printing and tracking of documents.  We use DTS templates for the 
LCAP, Single Plans for Student Achievement and Safety Plans  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Approximately $5,000  (based on numbers of documents submitted) LCFF Base (Unrestricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


 
 


135 of 462







This page has been left blank







 
 


LICENSING AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement effective July 1, 2018, is made and entered into by Santa Cruz City 


Schools as Licensee and Document Tracking Services (DTS) as Licensor each a “Party” 
and collectively the “Parties”. 


 
Licensee desires that DTS provide a license to use DTS proprietary web-based application 
in accordance with the following provisions: 


A. License. DTS hereby grants to Licensee a non-exclusive license to use DTS 
application in order to create, edit, update, print and track specific documents as 


described in Exhibit A of this agreement.  


(i) DTS retains all rights, title and interest in DTS application and any registered 
trademarks associated with the license. 


(ii) Licensee retains all rights, title and interest in the documents as described in 
Exhibit A of this agreement. 


B. Internet Areas. All parties including third party licensees shall not be permitted to 
establish any “pointers” or links between the Online Area and any other area on or 
outside of the DTS login without the prior written approval. 


C. Term of License. The term of the Agreement is for one (1) year from the effective 
date (as noted in paragraph one) of the license agreement. 


D. Personnel. DTS will assign the appropriate personnel to represent DTS in all aspects 
of the license including but not limited to account set up and customer license 
inquiries. 


E. Content. DTS will be solely responsible for loading the content supplied by Licensee 
into DTS secure server and provide complete access to Licensee and its 


representatives. 


F. Security of Data. DTS at all times will have complete security of Licensee documents 
on dedicated servers that only authorized DTS personnel will have access to; all login 


by DTS authorized will be stored and saved as to time of log-in and log-out. 


(i) Licensee may request DTS to only store Licensee documents for the period of time 


that allows Licensee and its authorized personnel to create, edit and update their 
documents. 


G. Management of Database. DTS shall allow Licensee to review, edit, create, update 
and otherwise manage all content of Licensee available through the Secure Login of 
DTS. 


H. Customer License. DTS shall respond promptly and professionally to questions, 
comments, complaints and other reasonable requests regarding any aspect of DTS 


application by Licensee. DTS business hours are Monday-Friday 8AM PST to 5PM PST 
except for national/state holidays. 


I. License Fee. Licensee shall pay a fee of $2,925. 


137 of 462







 
J. Document Set Up Fee. The one-time set up fee for documents as described in Exhibit 


A and made a part of this Agreement is $0. 


K. Payment Terms. Licensee shall pay the annual licensing fee upon execution of the 
Agreement between parties and the electronic submittal of the invoice to Licensee. 


L. Number of Documents. The maximum number of documents per school district is 


limited to five (5). 


M. Warranty. Licensee represents and warrants that all information provided to DTS, 


including but not limited to narratives, editorials, information regarding schools, is 
owned by Licensee and Licensee has the right to use and allow use by DTS as called 
for hereunder and that no copyrights, trademark rights or intellectual property rights 


of any nature of any third party will be infringed by the intended use thereof.  In the 
event any claim is brought against DTS based on an alleged violation of the rights 


warranted herein, Licensee agrees to indemnify and hold DTS harmless from all such 
claims, including attorney fees and costs incurred by DTS in defending such claims. 


N. Definitions. 


(i) Document. A document is defined as a) a specific template provided by CDE 
or; b) any specific word document or forms that have different fields or school 


references such as elementary, middle or high schools* submitted by District 
or CDE; or c) individual inserts submitted by District or CDE that are 
integrated into existing documents or are offered as supplemental and/or 


addendums to other report documents. 
 


* Licensee submits a SPSA template for their elementary, middle and high schools, 


which is counted as three (3) separate documents. 


(ii) Customized Documents. Any document that is not a standard CDE template is 
considered a custom document and as such may be subject to additional setup 


fees; DTS shall provide an estimated cost of these additional fees prior to the 
execution of this agreement.  


O. Document Setup Fee. DTS will charge a one-time setup fee of $200 per standard 
document up to a maximum of $850 for customized documents. 


P. Additional Fees. Licensee shall pay additional fees if Licensee exceeds the number of 


documents as described in section L of this agreement. The fee for each additional 
document is $39 per document times the number of schools in the district. The fee 


shall be payable within thirty (30) days from DTS invoice. 


Q. Additional Services. DTS can also provide Data Transfer and Document Translation 


services to Licensee for an additional fee. The fee for each additional service would 
be agreed upon between the parties and invoiced at the time the services were 
requested. The fee shall be payable within thirty (30) days from DTS invoice. 


138 of 462







 


 


The Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 


 
 


Document Tracking Services, LLC 


By:  Aaron Tarazon, Director 
Document Tracking Services 


10225 Barnes Canyon Road, Suite A200 
San Diego, CA 92121 
858-784-0967 - Phone 


858-587-4640 - Corporate Fax 
 


Date: May 17, 2018 
 


Licensee 


By: ______________________ 


Date: ______________________ 


 


139 of 462







 
 


Exhibit A 


 
The following are standard documents to be used in conjunction with the license. 


 


1. 2018 School Accountability Report Card, English (Custom Template) 


2. 2018 School Accountability Report Card, Spanish (Custom Template) 


3. Others to be identified as needed. 


140 of 462







 
 
 
May 17, 2018 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
405 Old San Jose Rd. 
Soquel, CA 95073 
 
Re: Document Tracking Services 


 


INVOICE #9507306 
 


Pursuant to the licensing agreement between Santa Cruz City Schools and Document Tracking Services (DTS): 
 


Document Tracking Services  


Document Tracking Services [7/1/18 to 7/1/19]: 
14 schools and District Personnel = 15 sites 


License Agreement includes up to 5 documents 
 


$250 per site, discounted to $195 per site 
Payment Due 7/1/17 


$2,925 


  


Translation Services  


2018 Spanish School Accountability Report Card 
$150 x 14 School Accountability Report Cards 


$2,100 


  


Total Balance Due: $5,025 


 
Please Make Checks Payable To: Document Tracking Services 
 
Send to: 
 
Aaron Tarazon, Director 
Document Tracking Services 
10225 Barnes Canyon Road, Suite A200 
San Diego, CA 92121 
858-784-0967 - Phone 
858-587-4640 - Corporate Fax 
 
Thank you! 
 


   


Approved Per Payment (Signature)  Name/Role (Printed) 
 


141 of 462







This page has been left blank







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.7. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


AGENDA ITEM   Vision to Learn 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Dr. Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Recommend approval of the CSA for Vision to Learn. 
 
BACKGROUND: 


● Targeted Students – student who need follow up vision screening at Gault and 
Branciforte Middle School 


● Number of students served: 220 
● Vision to Learn is a no cost service funded by the Zuckerberg foundation. They are 


dedicated to providing glasses free of charge to those who otherwise may not access 
services.  


● Evaluation criteria – The number of students who receive glasses.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. There is no cost to the District. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community.  


143 of 462







This page has been left blank







14
5 


of
 4


62







14
6 


of
 4


62







 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 


between 
VISION TO LEARN,  


a California not for profit corporation 
and 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 


 
 
This Agreement is entered into between Vision To Learn, hereafter referred to 
as Provider, and Santa Cruz City Schools, hereafter referred to as District, for the 
purpose of operating a Mobile Vision Clinic (“Mobile Clinic”) on the campus of 
District school(s). 
 
1.  Description of Services. Provider will provide the following vision services 
(the “Services”) to students referred to Provider by the District as having been 
identified as potentially having uncorrected vision difficulties (hereafter referred to 
as “Referred Student(s)”):  
 


A.  Basic vision examination for Referred Students’   
B.  Prescription and fitting of glasses  
C.  Provision of glasses from Provider’s available selection.  Glasses will  
      be delivered on a separate date approximately two weeks after exam. 
D.  As feasible and appropriate, referrals to the school nurse for additional 
     care where indicated.  
 


2.  Services Provided Without Charge. Neither the District nor any student will 
be asked to pay for Provider’s services.   
 
3.  Schools to be Served.  District schools to be served and dates of service will 
be determined jointly by agreement of the District and the Provider (“Selected 
Schools”).  
 
4.  Role of the District.  In order to enable Vision To Learn to provide the 
Services, the District will be responsible for the following:  
 


A. Prescreen all students in a Selected School and identify those with 
potential uncorrected vision difficulties.  


B. Obtain written parental/guardian consents for Referred Students on a 
form provided by Provider. 


C. Provide parking and electrical service for the Mobile Clinic (a converted 
RV) on the date of exams, and classroom or other suitable space for 
glasses delivery on the date of delivery.  


D. Provide staff or volunteers to accompany Referred Students to and 
from the Mobile Clinic.   


147 of 462







 
E. Provide access to photocopy and/or fax machine for incidental use. 


 
5.  Responsibilities of Provider.  
 


A. Provider will be responsible for staffing the Mobile Clinic and obtaining 
any necessary or appropriate licenses, permits or registrations.  


B. Provider will provide the services  
C. Provider will maintain in effect the following forms of insurance in the 


following amounts:  
a. Commercial General Liability Insurance - $1,000,000 per 


occurrence. 
b. Vehicle Liability Insurance - $1,000,000 per occurrence 
c. Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  
d. Professional Liability Insurance - $1,000,000 per occurrence.  


D. Provider will retain records on services provided for Referred Students. 
 
6.  Term & Termination.   This agreement will continue in effect until terminated 
by either party upon 30 days notice to the other, or by mutual consent. 
 
 
In witness whereof this agreement has been executed as of the date set forth 
above: 
 
 
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
 
Print Name: ___________________________ 
 
Title:_________________________________ 
 
 
 
VISION TO LEARN 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
 
Print Name: ___________________________ 
 
Title:_________________________________ 


 


148 of 462







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.8. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


AGENDA ITEM   Consultant Service Agreement (CSA) Hearing Conservation West  
      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Recommend approval of the CSA for Hearing Conservation West 
 
BACKGROUND: 
We are required by law to conduct hearing screening for all 2nd, 5th, and 8th graders and all 
Special Education Students. We need trained audiologists to complete these screenings. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$7048 Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) Base (Unrestricted) 
 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
  


149 of 462







This page has been left blank







15
1 


of
 4


62







15
2 


of
 4


62







15
3 


of
 4


62







15
4 


of
 4


62







15
5 


of
 4


62







15
6 


of
 4


62







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.9. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


AGENDA ITEM   CSA & MOU SEEDS Community Resolution Center 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Dr. Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Recommend approval of the CSA for SEEDS 
 
BACKGROUND: 
SEEDS Community Resolution Center provides Restorative Justice Practices training to schools. 
Restorative Justice is an evidenced based practice to build a culture of community between 
adults and students, students to students, adults to adults. A core group of nine staff from BSSC 
attended an overview training in October of 2017. The entire staff of BSSC now wants the full 
training.  
 
The program will serve all students at Branciforte Small Schools Campus (BSSC) and Soquel High 
School - 1522 total students. The program will be evaluated based on attendance, grades, 
discipline transfer rates and evaluations completed by participants.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The full cost of $20,000 will be paid through MediCal Adminstration Activities (MAA). 
(Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
(Include appropriate goals)  
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community.  


157 of 462







This page has been left blank







15
9 


of
 4


62







16
0 


of
 4


62







161 of 462







162 of 462







163 of 462







164 of 462







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.10. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


AGENDA ITEM   CSA Vision and Hearing Screening  
      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Recommend approval of the CSA for Shahe Moutafian 
 
BACKGROUND: 
We are required by law to conduct vision and hearing screening for all 2nd, 5th, and 8th graders. 
We need extra support in order to complete these screenings. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$1160 Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) Base (Unrestricted) 
 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
  


165 of 462







This page has been left blank







167 of 462







168 of 462







  


  


                        


                                       AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.11. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


AGENDA ITEM Consultant Service Agreement: Vision and Hearing Screening-
Margaret Lacey 


      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Recommend approval of the CSA for Margaret Lacey 
 
BACKGROUND: 
We are required by law to conduct vision and hearing screening for all 2nd, 5th, and 8th graders. 
We need extra support in order to complete these screenings. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$1160 Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) Base (Unrestricted) 
 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
  


169 of 462







This page has been left blank







171 of 462







172 of 462







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.12. 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Northwest Evaluation Association Measures of Academic Progress 
     Contract (NWEA MAP) 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Northwest Evaluation Association Measures of Academic Progress (NWEA MAP) 
contract for the 2018-19 school year. This is an annual renewal. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
At SCCS we are using the Response to Intervention (RtI) framework to provide a systematic 
approach for meeting every child’s academic and social-emotional needs. An essential part of 
the RtI framework is utilizing universal screening assessments for both math and English. A 
universal screener is an assessment given to all students for the purpose of providing an 
objective check or measure of each student’s level of learning.  MAP Assessments also serve as 
objective and valid progress monitoring tools to measure student growth and progress 
throughout the year. 
 
After a pilot, our district adopted the Northwest Evaluation Association (NWEA) Measure of 
Academic Progress (MAP) Growth assessments.  MAP is used by many RtI districts across the 
nation, including both Soquel Elementary District and Pajaro Valley Unified in Santa Cruz 
County.  The 2017-18 school year was our initial implementation year for using MAP 
assessments.   The assessment provides valuable data for determining intervention and 
instructional needs. We also receive CAASPP score predictions based on MAP assessments.  As 
we have evaluated preliminary CAASPP data received this past week, we have been able to 
compare MAP CAASPP predictions to our actual scores, and we have found that the MAP 
predictions of CAASPP results were accurate.  
 
In addition, our district is also using the NWEA CPAA - Children’s’ Progress Academic 
Assessment, which is the primary counterpart to MAP. The CPAA is a shorter, primary oriented 
assessment that measures growth over the year. The CPAA is given three times a year in grades 
kinder, one and two. 
 
 
 


173 of 462







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.12. 


 


MAP Growth Assessment System: 
● Targeted Students -  


○ Kindergarten - 2nd Grade are taking the NWEA Children’s Progress Academic 
Assessment (CPAA) 


○ 3rd - 9th Grades are taking the MAP Growth Assessments in Reading and Math  
○ 10th Grade is taking MAP Growth in Math (Integrated 2) 
○ MAP Growth Science is optional for middle and high school 


 
● Number of students served = 5,008 


 
● CPAA/MAP Purpose and Goals 


○ Provide schools with a universal screener as well as a progress monitoring 


nationally norm referenced tool for determining students’ current skills and 


areas of readiness to learn new skills 


○ Provide valuable and meaningful data that teachers can immediately use to help 


inform instruction  


○ Empower students to set clear and purposeful goals based on data and to track 


their growth and progress 


○ Give teachers, schools, and the district data points on the effectiveness of Tier 1 


instructional practices that provide all our students with foundational skills prior 


to intervention 


 
● MAP Successes  


○ All schools (elementary, middle, and high) have implemented CPAA/MAP testing 
and the majority of students have completed their first test. 


 
● Areas of Needed Improvement 


○ Internet bandwidth is not quite what we need it to be, which is causing 
Chromebooks to slow and only one class at a time is taking the assessments.   
More internet access points are needed at sites, and we are actively 
collaborating with our IT department and schools to resolve this issue. 


○ Due to the number of technology issues that arise when testing, on site tech 
support is desired. 


○ On-going training for all teachers and PLCs to access and use reports is needed 
for MAP to be used to full potential. 


 
Evaluation Criteria:  


○ We are using the student growth data collected from MAP to determine 
students’ academic progress.  Teachers are using individual student data to 


174 of 462







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.12. 


 


inform instruction and administrators are using school and district data to 
evaluate program.  


○ We will conduct an annual teacher, RtI Coordinator, & Administrator MAP survey 
to gather feedback regarding administration and usefulness of the assessment.   


○ We will know MAP is successful if teachers are using it to inform instruction and 
students’ increase their growth in reading and math as measured by MAP, which 
will be reported by principals. 


 
Fiscal Impact: 
CPAA = $11,340 
MAP Growth K-2 = $3,402 
MAP Growth English & Math = $50,355 
MAP Growth Science = $1,000 
MAP Growth Spanish Math Assessment = $125 
Total = $66,222 
 
Funding Source: LCFF Base (Unrestricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 


175 of 462







This page has been left blank







17
7 


of
 4


62







17
8 


of
 4


62







17
9 


of
 4


62







18
0 


of
 4


62







18
1 


of
 4


62







18
2 


of
 4


62







18
3 


of
 4


62







18
4 


of
 4


62







18
5 


of
 4


62







18
6 


of
 4


62







18
7 


of
 4


62







This page has been left blank







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.13 
 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Request for Consultant Services Agreement: Organized Binder-
Harbor High School 


 
MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
 
RECOMMENDATION:     
Approve the attached Consultant Services Agreement with Organized Binder and Harbor 
High School. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
Organized Binder will continue to train Harbor High School teachers to help Grade 9 
students organize a common binder system in all of their core classes.  The color-coded 
system is implemented by the teachers, helping students create a predictable and 
dependable classroom routine.  The program develops students’ time and task 
management, study strategies and organizational skills.  At least one follow-up session 
will be scheduled per semester to check in with the teachers implementing Organized 
Binder. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$5,500.00 to be paid from Title I funds (Restricted). 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding 
metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary 
college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between 
demographic groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on 
supporting effective teaching. 


189 of 462







This page has been left blank







191 of 462







192 of 462







193 of 462







194 of 462







                                                                                                AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.14. 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract  –  Nonpublic School 
 
MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached out-of-state Nonpublic School contract for new services through the 
remaining 2017-2018 school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the identity 


of disabled pupils, the student’s name has been omitted.   


 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for:  Basic Education ($8,741.04), Individual/Family Counseling 
($14,572.80) and Residential Placement Services ($18,381.60) – Plus – Initial Transport Fees 
($4,350.00) for a student in Special Education who requires these services that could not be 
provided in District programs.  Services will be rendered by Diamond Ranch Academy and are 
mandated in the student’s IEP.  Service Period:  March 16, 2018 through June 30, 2018. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $46,045.44.  Funded by Special Education - Restricted 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
 


 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 
 


                                                                                                                       


195 of 462







This page has been left blank







19
7 


of
 4


62







19
8 


of
 4


62







19
9 


of
 4


62







20
0 


of
 4


62







                                    AGENDA ITEM 8.2.15. 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract  –  Nonpublic School 
 
MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached out-of-state Nonpublic School contract for new services through the 
remaining 2017-2018 school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the identity 


of disabled pupils, the student’s name has been omitted.   


 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for:  Basic Education ($11,000.00) and Residential Placement Services 
($18,300.00) for a student in Special Education who requires these services that could not be 
provided in District programs.  Services will be rendered by La Europa Academy and are 
mandated in the student’s IEP.  Service Period:  May 1, 2018 through June 30, 2018. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $29,300.00.  Funded by Special Education - Restricted 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 
 
 
 


                                                                                                                       


201 of 462







This page has been left blank







203 of 462







204 of 462







205 of 462







206 of 462







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Special Education Memorandums of Understanding (MOUs) with 
neighboring districts 


 
MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Retroactively approve the MOUs listed below representing the agreement between Santa Cruz City 
Schools and neighboring Districts to serve students unable to be served at their neighborhood schools. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools (SCCS) is the largest district in our Special Education Local Planning Area 
(SELPA).  As such, SCCS provides the largest continuum of services for special education students in our 
SELPA.  On occasion, neighboring districts may enroll students in their schools that they cannot serve 
within their available programs.  In these instances, SCCS may enter into an agreement whereby SCCS 
places an out of district student into a special education program at one of our schools and then 
charges the neighboring district for such services.  The MOUs listed below represent agreements for 
students who were referred and enrolled in an SCCS program after the start of the school year. A 
sample MOU follows this cover sheet.  
 
District          Elem./Sec. Number of Students Revenue Anticipated 
Live Oak Union School District  Elem.  1   $10,214 
Scotts Valley Unified School District  Sec.  3   $50,674 
San Lorenzo Unified School District  Elem.  1   $19,634 
San Lorenzo Unified School District  Sec.  1   $19,273 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Total anticipated revenue: $99,795 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary 
college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups 
within the SCCS student community. 
 
  


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


207 of 462







This page has been left blank







Board of Trustees 


Sheila Coonerty, Deedee Perez-Granados, Jeremy Shonick, Alisun Thompson, Patricia Threet, Deb Tracy-Proulx, Claudia Vestal 


 


 


 


 


 


 


405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, California 95073  |  (831) 429-3410  |  www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us  


   Kris Munro                  Molly Parks       Patrick K. Gaffney       Frank Wells 


Superintendent of           Assistant Superintendent    Assistant Superintendent               Assistant Superintendent 


     Schools               Human Resources         Business Services    Educational Services 


 
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS / XXX SCHOOL DISTRICT 


MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 


 


  


This memorandum of understanding between Santa Cruz City Schools and XXX School District (XXX) is meant to cover 


the time period XXX through XXX (inclusive).  Santa Cruz City Schools agrees to provide services for (Student), who 


resides in the XXX School District attendance area.  (Student) will attend the XXX Program at XXX School.   


 


Santa Cruz City Schools will be responsible for providing the following as specified in the student’s IEP: 


 


· Specialized academic instruction 


· Individual counseling 


· Occupational therapy 


· Language and Speech 
 


XXX District is responsible for transporting its own students; transportation costs are not included in this agreement.  Should 


this student come to require Intensive Individual Services, the district of residence would be required to contract directly 


for such service. 


 


The estimated budget for this program for XXX District’s student is attached. The budget is based on the SELPA Special 


Education Cost Factors published in February 2017. Program costs are estimated then divided by the number of students 


enrolled to derive a per-student cost. Pupil support services are estimated then divided by caseload to derive a per-student 


cost.  Santa Cruz City Schools will invoice each participating district according to actual enrollment and the resulting per 


pupil costs quarterly. Payment terms will be 30 days from the invoice date. 


 


Dated:  


 


 


_________________________                _________________________ 


Santa Cruz City Schools     XXX District 


Superintendent/Designee    Superintendent/Designee 
     


 


209 of 462







This page has been left blank







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.17. 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract – Nonpublic Agency 
 
MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Nonpublic Agency contract for new and continuing services through the 
2018-2019 summer and regular school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that 
protect the identity of disabled pupils, the student names have been omitted.   
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for:  1:1 Special Circumstance Instructional Aides, Behavior Intervention 
Aides, Behavior Therapeutic Specialist, Health Aides and Nursing Support Services for 17 
students in Special Education who require these services.  They are provided by Easter Seals 
Central California and are mandated in each student’s IEP.   Service Period: 7/1/18 - 6/30/19.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $625,000.00.  Funded by Special Education – Restricted. 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
 
 
 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


211 of 462







This page has been left blank







21
3 


of
 4


62







21
4 


of
 4


62







21
5 


of
 4


62







21
6 


of
 4


62







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.18. 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract  – Nonpublic Agency 
 
MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Nonpublic Agency contract for new and continuing services through the 
2018-2019 summer and regular school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that 
protect the identity of disabled pupils, the student names have been omitted.   
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for:  1:1 Special Circumstance Instructional Aides, Behavior Intervention 
Aides, Behavior Inclusion – Development (BID), Health Care Aides and Nursing Support 
Services for 24 students in Special Education who require these services.  They are provided 
through BALANCE4KIDS and are mandated in each student’s IEP.  Service Period:  7/1/2018 – 
6/30/2019. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $675,500.00.   Funded by Special Education – Restricted 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
 
 
 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


217 of 462







This page has been left blank







21
9 


of
 4


62







22
0 


of
 4


62







22
1 


of
 4


62







22
2 


of
 4


62







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.19. 


 


 
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education  –  Agreement For Professional Services 
 
MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Agreement for Professional Services for new and continuing services 
through Extended School Year 2018.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the 


identity of disabled pupils, the student names have been omitted.   


 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for:  Speech/Language Therapy Services for up to 22 identified students 
enrolled in the Special Education ESY program who require these services that could not be 
provided by District staff.  Services have been contracted through SpeechRighter, Inc. and are 
mandated in each student’s IEP.  Service Period:  July 9, 2018 through August 3, 2018. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $12,320.00.  Funded by Special Education – Restricted. 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
 


 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 
 


223 of 462







This page has been left blank







22
5 


of
 4


62







22
6 


of
 4


62







22
7 


of
 4


62







22
8 


of
 4


62







22
9 


of
 4


62







23
0 


of
 4


62







23
1 


of
 4


62







23
2 


of
 4


62







23
3 


of
 4


62







23
4 


of
 4


62







23
5 


of
 4


62







23
6 


of
 4


62







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.20. 


 


 
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education  –  Agreement For Professional Services 
 
MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Agreement for Professional Services for new and continuing services 
through Extended School Year 2018.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the 


identity of disabled pupils, the student names have been omitted.   


 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for:  Occupational Therapy Services for up to 18 identified students 
enrolled in the Special Education ESY program who require these services that could not be 
provided by District staff.  Services have been contracted through Sunbelt Staffing, LLC, and are 
mandated in each student’s IEP.  Service Period:  July 9, 2018 through August 3, 2018. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $4,500.00.  Funded by Special Education – Restricted. 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
 


 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 
 


237 of 462







This page has been left blank







23
9 


of
 4


62







24
0 


of
 4


62







24
1 


of
 4


62







24
2 


of
 4


62







24
3 


of
 4


62







24
4 


of
 4


62







24
5 


of
 4


62







24
6 


of
 4


62







24
7 


of
 4


62







24
8 


of
 4


62







24
9 


of
 4


62







25
0 


of
 4


62







25
1 


of
 4


62







This page has been left blank







 


                            
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.21 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Locatelli Moving & Storage Inc. Proposal to Relocate 


District Offices to 133 Mission Street 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Locatelli Moving & Storage Inc. Proposal to Relocate District Offices to 133 Mission Street. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The District Office requires assistance to move boxed office supplies, computers, office furniture, filing 
cabinets, etc. to the new office at 133 Mission Street.  Locatelli Moving and Storage will move the office 
in two phases this summer. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Total cost will not exceed $9,617.50, and will be paid from a General Fund Restricted account. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 
 


253 of 462







This page has been left blank







122 Encinal Street Santa Cruz, CA. 831-425-775 / 800-486-7775 Fax 831-25-0827  locatellims@aol.com


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 5/10/2018
405 Old San Jose Rd.
Soquel, CA 95073
Attn: Patrick Gaffney


BID FOR RELOCATION OF OFFICESTO 133 MISSION, SANTA CRUZ
 


Bid is for relocation of cartons, computers, desk, chairs, and filing cabinets, ETC.


 Bid includes:


Computer and fragile items will be move on padded machine carts and plastic wrap
for transportation and safety.
Set up of and placement of office furniture and misc. items
All men power and equipment needed to perform the job ( dollies, moving pads, 
carts, etc.)
Floors, hallways, railings, and elevator will be protected as needed


Phase 1 
Day one-6 workers, 8 hours
Day two-8 workers, 8 hours


Phase  2
Day one-8 workers, 8 hours 
 
Worker hours at $50.00 per hour…..……..…………..$8800.00
Material and Labels 500 cartons …………...………..…817.50
Total Bid not to exceed …………………….……………………$9617.50


All Rates are based on P.U.C. Max 4 Tariff


References are available upon request. If you any questions, please feel free to call.


Thank you for giving Locatelli Moving & Storage the opportunity to submit a bid 
for your up coming move. We hope that we may be of services to you.


Sincerely


Annie Asche


LOCATELLI MOVING & STORAGE INC.
PUC CAL-188949               AGENT FOR UNITED VAN LINES                     ICC # 67234


LOCALLY OWNED AND OPERATED 26 YEARS OF SERVICES
122 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA     831-425-7775 / 800-486-7775     locatellims@aol.com


255 of 462







This page has been left blank







 


                            
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.22 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the School Services of California, Inc. Agreement for Special 


Services for 2018-19 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the School Services of California, Inc. Agreement for Special Services for 2018-19. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
School Services of CA provides fiscal budget services to state school districts, including electronic 
updates on issues of school finance, budgets or practices that impact school district fiscal policies. Also 
included are eight hours of consultant time as needed by district on a variety of topics.  Clients are 
eligible for reduced rates to attend School Services finance conferences and workshops. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The cost of the one year agreement for 2018-19 is $3,300.00, to be paid from the General Fund 
(Unrestricted). 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective 
teaching. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


257 of 462







This page has been left blank







259 of 462







260 of 462







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.23 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Lightspeed Systems RELAY Content Filter for SCCS District 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 132018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Lightspeed Relay as the Internet content filtering system for all district networks to 
which students have access. 
  
BACKGROUND: 
We are required by the Children's Internet Protection Act (CIPA) to filter the Internet content 
available to students on networks to which they have access.  Lightspeed Relay allows us to 
meet this objective with an entirely software-based service; no appliance is required to be 
installed in our datacenter.  Relay will allow us to tailor filtering based on grade level and 
location, and gives classroom teachers the ability to grant access to normally filtered content 
based on their discretion.  Additionally, it gives the District access to detailed logs of the 
content which our students are accessing or attempting to access.  Finally, Relay will provide 
filtering and reporting even when District Chromebooks are off-site, which will cover our 
planned 1:1 Chromebook deployment. 
 
Lightspeed Relay grants access to their DNS (Domain Name System)-based filtering service, 
which will filter BYOD (Bring Your Own Device) devices such as student phones and laptops 
when students use the District network.  This will be our base-level or catch-all filtering 
solution. Relay also includes a built-in AI-based classroom management tool that helps keep 
students engaged and saves teachers time, at no additional cost.  
 
We have used another Lightspeed product, the Rocket appliance, for the past 9 years, and it has 
met our needs for filtering and reporting.  Relay will allow us to continue this level of service 
without having to maintain, and periodically replace, an appliance as our network demands 
grow.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


261 of 462







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.23 


 
Bid Summary 


 


Vendor Bid Term Conditions Price/Year notes 


Lightspeed 
Relay 


$62,000 4 years 18 month grace 
period for new 
devices. Cost is 
per device, for 
life of device.  
 
Plus 
management 
software  add-
on: Classroom 
Orchestrator 


$15,500 Grace period 
will cover 
refresh of 
~2,500 1st gen 
chromebooks 
 
20 year 
URL/Domain 
database 


iBoss $61,500 3 yrs  $20,500  


Securly $40,000 
$58,000 


3 yrs 
5 yrs 


 $13,333 
$11,600 


SCCS tested 
Securly for 3 
months and 
showed several 
flaws which we 
consider severe 
enough to 
disqualify them 
from 
consideration 


 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The cost of Lightspeed RELAY is $62,000.00. The allocated funds are covered by Unrestricted  
General Fund one-time money.  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
  
 


262 of 462







 Reseller Price Quotation for: 
 >>ENDUSER<< 
 
 


LIGHTSPEED RELAY 
Santa Cruz City School District 


405 OLD SAN JOSE ROAD 
SOQUEL, CA 95073 


Prepared by: 


Matt Killian 
matt@borderlan.com 


760-232-4660 


Summary 
Proposal to migrate SCCS from on-prem Lightspeed Rocket to Relay, a new and 


innovative Cloud web filter and management platform.  Proposal includes Cost 
Summary, Product Description and References. 


263 of 462



mailto:matt@borderlan.com





  Price Quotation # : 040418MK 
 


THIS QUOTE IS VALID until June 30th, 2018 
 
 


BorderLAN Security  • Better Products, Best Services • p. (760) 736-8100  f. (860) 736-8100 
www.borderlan.com 


 


 


Item Description 
License/ 
Quantity 


 
PRICE  


1 


 
Lightspeed Relay: SaaS Filtering and Management  
Life of Device License  
Includes Lightspeed Classroom   4,900 $62,000.00 


2 


18 Month Grace / Refresh Period for Relay Licenses  
Customer can transfer Relay licenses to new replacement devices  
within 18 month period (valid until 12/31/2019) 1 Included 


3 DNS Filter for BYOD Unlimited  Included 


4 
 


Installation Support available from Lightspeed Systems  1 Included 


5 Online training provided by Lightspeed Systems  1 Included 


6 
 


24/7 Technical Support for entire term of contract  1  Included 


    
7 Miscellaneous: Electronic Delivery 1 Included 


8 Sales Tax 1  n/a 


 
This quotation contains proprietary information and is confidential, intended for use 


by your company only, and only for the User identified above.  


TOTAL $62,000.00 


 


PRODUCT DESCRIPTION:  
 
Relay combines the power of a filtering appliance and the ease of a cloud solution into one platform that 
will save you time, protect your students, solve your SSL problems, and maximize your school’s use of 
mobile devices.  It filters every device, everywhere, with revolutionary Smart Agent technology.   


 
Contact Name:   Curtis Gomez 


 
Date:  May 16, 2018 


 
Company:  Santa Cruz City School District 


 
Terms:  Net 30 from PO Date  


Address:     405 Old San Jose Rd 
 
Order Payment:  Purchase Order / Money Order 


 
City\State\Zip:    Soquel, CA 95073 


 
Installation:  Assistance provided by Lightspeed  


 
Phone:         (831) 429-3410 


 
Tax & Shipping:   Added to Invoice 


 
E-Mail:      cgomez@sccs.net  


BorderLAN Contact:   Matt Killian  760-232-4660 
matt@borderlan.com  


Special Delivery Notes:  
 


Remit To: BorderLAN Security 
  Receivables 
                            950 Boardwalk #300 
  San Marcos,  CA  92078 
 FAX: (860) 736-8100 


264 of 462



http://www.borderlan.com/

mailto:cgomez@sccs.net

mailto:matt@borderlan.com





  Price Quotation # : 040418MK 
 


THIS QUOTE IS VALID until June 30th, 2018 
 
 


BorderLAN Security  • Better Products, Best Services • p. (760) 736-8100  f. (860) 736-8100 
www.borderlan.com 


STUDENT SAFETY DELIVERED IN REAL-TIME, TO ALL YOUR DEVICES 
 


No matter where your students are, or what device they are on, with Relay your students will 
always be protected. 


 


• Granular activity reports and real-time alerts for suspicious activity 


• Flagged Terms to pinpoint dangerous activity and intervene 


• Full URL decryption on Google and YouTube searches 
 
YOUTUBE SOLVED WITH SMART PLAY 
 


With Smart Play, we've leveraged our industry-leading educational AI database on YouTube to 
intelligently categorize videos, allowing teachers and students the freedom to browse YouTube 
for educational content, without the worry of them accessing inappropriate materials. 


 
SSL SOLVED WITH SMART AGENTS 
 


It's essential for schools to have URL-level details to monitor and protect students. You need to 
know what they are searching for in Google and YouTube. But setting up proxies is always a 
steep trade-off when it comes to security, setup and upkeep. With our new state-of-the-art Smart 
Agents, everything is different. You can get the transparency you need without the compromise 
of a proxy. 


 
INCLUDES LIGHTSPEED CLASSROOM 
 


Robust digital classroom management solution for teachers to better instruct, monitor and 
engage students.  For more info: https://www.lightspeedsystems.com/classroom/  


 
 


REFERENCES  
 
 


1.) Lake Tahoe Unified School District, CA 
4,000 Lightspeed Relay Licenses 
Relay Customer since July 2017 
Scott Ramirez 
sramirez@ltusd.org 


 (530) 541-6404 ext. 1795 
 
 


2.) Eastmont School District, WA 
5,000 Lightspeed Relay Licenses  
Relay customer since June 2017 
Mike Brown 
brownm@eastmont206.org  
(509) 888-4709 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


265 of 462



http://www.borderlan.com/

https://www.lightspeedsystems.com/classroom/

mailto:sramirez@ltusd.org

mailto:brownm@eastmont206.org





  Price Quotation # : 040418MK 
 


THIS QUOTE IS VALID until June 30th, 2018 
 
 


BorderLAN Security  • Better Products, Best Services • p. (760) 736-8100  f. (860) 736-8100 
www.borderlan.com 


 
PAYMENT TERMS:  100% of the total payment of the invoice is due Net 30 from the date of the 
Purchase Order.   If applicable, local and/ or state sales tax will be included in the invoice.     
 
 
 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  The terms and conditions of this Agreement are intended by the parties as the 
final expression of their agreement with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement, and supersede 
all prior discussions, representations and agreements, both oral and written.  This Agreement may only 
be modified by means of a document, signed by both parties.   
 
Upon signing, you agree to have BorderLAN Security invoice you for the amount listed.  This is a binding 
order effective once signed and faxed to BorderLAN Security.  
 


To order, fax signed copy of this agreement and a PO to:  
 
Sales Department: Fax # (860) 736-8100  


 
Agreed and accepted: 
 
    
Customer  BorderLAN Security 
 
 
 
By:   By:   
        SIGNATURE           SIGNATURE 
 
 
Name:    Name:    
 
 
 
Title:    Title:    
 
 
 
Date:    Date:    
 
 


Craig Smith


President


5/16/18


266 of 462



http://www.borderlan.com/





 


                            
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.24 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Bogard Construction, Inc. Contract for Material and Labor 


on Minor Improvements at 133 Mission 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Bogard Construction, Inc. contract for material and labor on minor improvements at 133 
Mission. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The contract for Bogard Construction is to furnish all labor, equipment and materials, including tools, 
implements, and appliances required to demolish some interior walls and construction of some new 
walls to accommodate the new office layouts. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$30,000.00, Building Fund (Restricted), representing 14.4% of the total cost for central office move. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


267 of 462







This page has been left blank







26
9 


of
 4


62







27
0 


of
 4


62







27
1 


of
 4


62







27
2 


of
 4


62







27
3 


of
 4


62







27
4 


of
 4


62







 


                            
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.1 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Agreement Amendment with Belli Architecture Group Inc. for 


Architectural Design and Construction Administration Services  for the 
Branciforte Middle School Music/MPR Improvement Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the agreement amendment with Belli Architecture Group Inc. for architectural design and 
construction administration services for the Branciforte Middle School music/MPR improvement 
project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposed project will modernize portions of the MPR building  and construct one new modular 
building to function as a self-sufficient band room. This is part of the greater site master plan. 
 
The Board previously approved a master agreement with Belli Architectural Group on 12/14/16. This 
agreement amendment is for architectural services to include verification of existing conditions, 
schematic design/research, DSA package development and submittal, bid package preparation and 
administration, and construction administration in connection with the Branciforte Middle School 
Modernization. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$206,700.00, Measure ‘A’ Bond Funds (Restricted),  representing 1.2% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


275 of 462







This page has been left blank







27
7 


of
 4


62







27
8 


of
 4


62







27
9 


of
 4


62







28
0 


of
 4


62







28
1 


of
 4


62







This page has been left blank







 


                            
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.2 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Agreement Amendment with Belli Architecture Group Inc. for 


Architectural Services for the Harbor High School Athletic Fields Project 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the agreement amendment with Belli Architecture Group Inc. for architectural services for the 
Harbor High School Athletic Fields project: PG&E Gas Line Relocation. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposed project will entail PG&E coordination, designing new gas line path ways, developing 
required engineering drawings for relocation, securing approval and coordinating and monitoring 
progress of the Harbor High Athletic Fields Project: PG&E Gas Line Relocation.  
 
The Board previously approved a master agreement with Belli Architectural Group on 12/14/16. This 
agreement amendment is for architectural services to include verification of existing conditions, 
schematic design/research, DSA package development and submittal, bid package preparation and 
administration, and construction administration in connection with the Harbor High athletic field 
project. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$12,770.00, Measure ‘A’ Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 0.04% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


283 of 462







This page has been left blank







28
5 


of
 4


62







28
6 


of
 4


62







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.3 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Change Order # 1 for the Butano Geotechnical Engineering, 


Inc. Professional Services Agreement for the Harbor High Track & 
Field Project 
 


MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Change Order #1 for Butano Geotechnical Engineering, Inc. for additional services for the 
track & field project at Harbor High. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The change order includes additional geotechnical services in connection with moving the Harbor 
High track and field house including additional borings, analysis and drafting services.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Original Contract Amount  $20,800.00  
Change Order #1   $4,410.50 (0.01% increase of the original contract amount) 
Total    $25,210.50  
Measure ‘A’ Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 0.08% of the overall site budget 


 
 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management  
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 
 


287 of 462







This page has been left blank







289 of 462







290 of 462







291 of 462







292 of 462







293 of 462







294 of 462







295 of 462







296 of 462







297 of 462







This page has been left blank







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve CEL Consulting Proposal for Professional Services and 


Standard Contract Terms for Structural Investigation at 
Branciforte Small Schools 
 


MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve CEL Consulting proposal for professional services and standard contract terms for 
structural investigation at Branciforte Small Schools.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
In connection with the Branciforte Small Schools Modernization Project and main building 
ADA accessibility, this proposal entails structural investigation with ground penetrating radar, 
concrete coring, scanning for spacing and depth, and sampling and testing in accordance with 
ASTM C42 and C39. Included under this cover is a standard contract that will be completed 
with the terms of the bid proposal. This item is approving both the proposal and standard 
terms in the attached contract.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$6,658.00, Measure ‘B’ Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 0.04% of the site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management  
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


299 of 462







This page has been left blank







301 of 462







302 of 462







303 of 462







304 of 462







305 of 462







306 of 462







307 of 462







This page has been left blank







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.5 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Corrected Garland Company Bid for Materials for 


Branciforte Middle School Roofing Replacement 
 


MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Garland Company corrected bid for material for Branciforte Middle School roofing 
replacement.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Garland Company bid went to the Board on 03/28/18 and was approved.  The bid contained 
the correct itemized breakdown but an incorrect project total. The corrected material total cost is 
$509,923.42. The previously approved cost was $299,668.34. The original total was incorrect as a 
result of an error in the Excel sheet provided by the vendor. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Measures ‘A’ Bond Funds (Restricted): 
PREVIOUSLY APPROVED Materials Cost $299,668.34 
CORRECTED Materials Cost through CMAS $509,923.42 (2.9% of site budget which represents an 
0.12% increase) 
Total Project Construction Cost $1,602,323.42 (9.3% of site budget) 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management  
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 
 


 


309 of 462







This page has been left blank







1-Feb-18


To: Trevor Miller, Santa Cruz City School District


From: Adam Faville


Re: 2018 Branciforte Middle School


The following are the material needed to complete the building roof project at Branciforte Middle School


Product (Product #) Price Ext. Price:
425- Stressbase 120, 1 sq. roll $ 163.00/roll 69,275.00$          
130 - Stressbase 80, 1.5 sq.roll $ 202.00/roll 26,260.00$          
140 - HPR Glasbase 3sq. Roll $ 118.00/roll 16,520.00$          
215 - GreenLock Membrane Adhesive 5 gal $ 320.00/pail 68,800.00$          
52 - GreenLock Flashing adhesive 3.5 gal $ 269.00/pail 13,988.00$          
49 - KEE Stone 60 mil FB, 8 sq.roll $ 4038.00/roll 197,862.00$        
5- KEE Stone 60 mil FB, 4 sq.roll $2019.00/roll 10,095.00$          
5 - KEE Stone Flashing FB, 2 sq. roll $ 980.00/roll 4,900.00$            
10 - KEE Stone Utility 25 sq.ft. roll $ 137.00/roll 1,370.00$            
21 - KEE Foam Box Set, 20 sq. $ 989.00/box 20,769.00$          
7 - KEE Pipe Boot Flashing 3" - 5" (6/case) $210.19/case 1,471.33$            
4 - KEE Pipe Boot Flashing 1" - 2" (6/case) $197.65/case 790.60$               
2 - KEE Sealant 24 tubes/case $250.24/case 500.48$               
10 - KEE Flashing Detail Non-Reinforced 24" x 100' $657.98/roll 6,579.80$            
2 - T Joint Covers (100/case) $99.48/case 198.96$               
5 - Flashing Bond 5 gal $106.00/pail 530.00$               
5 - Silver Flash 5 gal $145.00/pail 725.00$               
6 - Tuff Stuff Sealant, 24 tubes/case $ 360.00/case 2,160.00$            
2 - Rust Go Primer 5 gal $382.00/pail 764.00$               
20 - Uni Bond Tape 6" x 50" roll $134.00/roll 2,680.00$            
4 - White Knight Plus WC 5 gal $631.00/pail 2,524.00$            


SUB-TOTAL: $448,763.17
CMAS Discount, 1% ($4,487.63)
Sales Tax, 9% $39,984.79
Estimated Freight: $25,663.09
CMAS Total: $509,923.42


Please make the PO out to The Garland Company Inc, 3800 East 91st Street, Cleveland, OH 44105.  
Please add the Garland CMAS # 4-01-56-006A to the front of the Purchase Order 
to ensure compliance with CMAS requirements.  The freight is an estimated cost.


Thanks, Adam


311 of 462







This page has been left blank







�������� 313 of 462







This page has been left blank







AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.6 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Corrected Garland Company Bid for Materials for 


Harbor High School Roofing Replacement 
 


MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Garland Company corrected bid for material for Harbor High School roofing 
replacement.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Garland Company bid went to the Board on 03/28/18 and was approved.  The bid contained 
the correct itemized breakdown but an incorrect project total. The corrected material total cost is 
$667,121.53. The previously approved cost was $385,924.29. The original total was incorrect as a 
result of an error in the Excel sheet provided by the vendor. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Measures ‘A’ Bond Funds (Restricted): 
PREVIOUSLY APPROVED Materials Cost $385,924.29 
CORRECTED Materials Cost through CMAS $667,121.53 (2.2% of site budget which represents an 
0.94% increase) 
Total Project Construction Cost $1,962.121.53 (6.5% of site budget) 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management  
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 
 


315 of 462







This page has been left blank







26-Feb-18


To: Trevor Miller, Santa Cruz City School District


From: Adam Faville


Re: 2018 Harbor High School


The following are the material needed to complete the building roof project at Harbor High School.


Product (Product #) Price Ext. Price:
565- Stressbase 120, 1 sq. roll $ 163.00/roll 92,095.00$          
160 - Stressbase 80, 1.5 sq.roll $ 202.00/roll 32,320.00$          
75 - HPR Glasbase 3sq. Roll $ 118.00/roll 8,850.00$            
280 - GreenLock Membrane Adhesive 5 gal $ 320.00/pail 89,600.00$          
120 - GreenLock Flashing adhesive 3.5 gal $ 269.00/pail 32,280.00$          
20 - Pyramic Top Coat 5 gal $272.00/pail 5,440.00$            
68 - KEE Stone 60 mil FB, 8 sq.roll $ 4038.00/roll 274,584.00$        
3- KEE Stone 60 mil FB, 4 sq.roll $2019.00/roll 6,057.00$            
5 - KEE Stone Flashing FB, 2 sq. roll $ 980.00/roll 4,900.00$            
10 - KEE Stone Utility 25 sq.ft. roll $ 137.00/roll 1,370.00$            
29 - KEE Foam Box Set, 20 sq. $ 989.00/box 28,681.00$          
4 - KEE Pipe Boot Flashing 3" - 5" (6/case) $210.19/case 840.76$               
2 - KEE Pipe Boot Flashing 1" - 2" (6/case) $197.65/case 395.30$               
7 - KEE Sealant 24 tubes/case $250.24/case 1,751.68$            
25 - KEE Stripping Roll 8" x 100' $216.32/roll 5,408.00$            
2 - T Joint Covers (100/case) $99.48/case 198.96$               
4 - Tuff Stuff Sealant, 24 tubes/case $ 360.00/case 1,440.00$            
8 - KEE Flashing Detail Non-Reinforced 24" x 100' $657.98/roll 5,263.84$            


SUB-TOTAL: $591,475.54
CMAS Discount, 1% ($5,914.75)
Sales Tax, 9% $52,700.43
Estimated Freight: $28,860.31
CMAS Total: $667,121.53


Please make the PO out to The Garland Company Inc, 3800 East 91st Street, Cleveland, OH 44105.  
Please add the Garland CMAS # 4-01-56-006A to the front of the Purchase Order 
to ensure compliance with CMAS requirements.  The freight is an estimated cost.


Thanks, Adam


317 of 462







This page has been left blank







�������� 319 of 462







This page has been left blank







 


                            
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.7 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the M3 Environmental Consulting LLC Proposal and Standard 


Contract Terms for Abatement Oversight for the Roof Replacement 
Project at Branciforte Middle School 


      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the M3 Environmental Consulting LLC proposal and standard contract terms for abatement 
oversight for the roof replacement project at Branciforte Middle School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposal and contract terms are for professional services. Is it required by Cal-OSHA to provide an 
abatement specification and abatement oversight services during demolition activities that may disturb 
hazardous materials. Included under this cover is a standard contract that will be completed with the 
terms of the bid proposal. This item is approving both the proposal and standard terms in this contract. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$10,910.00, Measure ‘A’ Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 0.06% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


321 of 462







This page has been left blank







 
 


9821 Blue Larkspur Lane, Suite 100 Monterey, CA 93940 T: 831-649-4623 www.M3environmental.com 
 


April 11, 2018 
 
Mr. Trevor Miller      Via email: 
Director of Facilities      trevormiller@sccs.net 
Santa Cruz City Schools  
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
831.429.3904 (p) 
 
Subject: Proposal for Specification Development and Abatement Oversight for the Roof 


Replacement Project at Branciforte Middle School Located at 315 Poplar Avenue in Santa 
Cruz, California. 


 M3 Proposal No. 182370 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
M3 Environmental Consulting (M3) is pleased to present this proposal to provide an abatement specification 
and abatement oversight services for the roof replacement project at Branciforte Middle School located at 
315 Poplar Avenue in Santa Cruz, California.  This proposal is based on information gathered during the 
initial inspection conducted on February 6-8, 2018 and subsequent telephone conversations and e-mails 
with the District and M3.   
 
Project Understanding 
 
M3 understands that the roofs at the school is to be re-roofed.  Demolition activities will disturb asbestos 
and lead paint and require a hazardous material removal specification, and subsequent abatement 
oversight services. 
 
The Santa Cruz City Schools District (SCCS) is requesting a quote for a written specification for the 
removal of hazardous materials prior to demolition of the roof, as well as abatement oversight services.  
 
The intent of the asbestos inspection is to meet the requirements of the Monterey Bay Air Resources District 
(MBARD) Rule 424 and the California Occupational Safety and Health Administration (Cal-OSHA) asbestos 
construction standard.   
 
The lead and other hazardous materials inspections are to be performed to meet the requirements of the 
Cal-OSHA lead standard and EPA disposal requirements. 
 
Scope of Work 
 
This proposal presents the services needed to successfully complete this project based on the above 
understanding.  M3 will provide the following services to successfully complete this project: 
 
Task 1 - Hazardous Materials Abatement Specification 
 
The specification will identify the materials (primarily ACM and LCP) to be removed during this project and 
will require compliance with regulations issued by the Federal Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration (OSHA), California OSHA (Cal/OSHA), the United States Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA), and the MBARD.  The specification will describe the scope of work and procedures to be followed, 
including: 
 


• Required notifications 
• Applicable regulations 


323 of 462







  


 
SCCS 


Hazardous Material Specification & Oversight 
Branciforte Middle School - Roof Replacement 


M3 Proposal No. 182370 
 


• Air monitoring 
• Work area preparation 
• Work practices 
• Methods of removal 
• Decontamination 
• Condition of occupancy 
• Waste disposal requirements 


 
Task 2 – Hazardous Materials Abatement Oversight 
 


• Provide an industrial hygienist to supervise M3 staff working on the project and attend pre-bid and 
pre-construction meetings, as requested. 
 


• Review the abatement contractor’s submittals for conformance with the abatement specification 
and regulatory requirements 


 
• Observe the work practices and procedures of the abatement contractor during hazardous 


materials removal activities and monitor conformance with the specification and applicable federal, 
state, and local regulations.  We will complete checklists summarizing field observations and will 
include this in a written report at the completion of the project.  As there is no project scope, for the 
purposes of this proposal it is assumed the contractor will complete the abatement within five 8-
hour shifts, including time for visual clearances of the work areas. 


 
• Conduct area air sampling during asbestos and lead removal activities at locations adjacent to the 


work areas to evaluate contractor work practices and to evaluate how well fibers and dust 
emissions are being contained in the regulated work areas.  Up to four samples will be collected 
per day each for lead and asbestos.   


 
In the event that airborne fiber counts exceed the United States Environmental Protection Agency 
(USEPA)-recommended PCM clearance level of 0.01 fibers/cubic centimeter (f/cc), these samples 
will, with your prior authorization, be submitted for confirmatory analysis by TEM, utilizing the 
USEPA Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act (AHERA) analytical protocol.  This method 
differentiates asbestos fibers from other fibers. 
 


• Conduct a visual inspection of the work areas prior to contractor demobilization and re-roofing 
activities.   
 


• Collect two lead waste stream samples for analysis to determine if the waste is hazardous.   
 


• Prepare and submit a written report at the completion of the project documenting project activities 
and air monitoring results.  


 
Fees 
 
All services described will be provided based on the following schedules: 


 
Task 1 – Hazardous Materials Abatement Specification 
 
 Fixed fee   $2,500.00 
 Abatement Specification Total Fee  $2,500.00 
 


324 of 462







  


 
SCCS 


Hazardous Material Specification & Oversight 
Branciforte Middle School - Roof Replacement 


M3 Proposal No. 182370 
 


Task 2 – Hazardous Materials Abatement Oversight 
 


Staff/Expense Budget Unit Total 
Principal 4 hours $205/hour $820.00 
Staff Environmental Consultants 
(Includes prep, travel, survey, report writing) 60 hours $95/hour 5,700.00 
Clerical 4 hours $65/hour 260.00 
PCM air samples (3-day turnaround) 16 samples $14 each 224.00 
Lead FAA air samples (3-day turnaround) 16 samples $16 each 256.00 
Lead waste stream testing (5-day turnaround) 2 samples $350 each 700.00 
Mileage, FedEx, copies, supplies, etc.   450.00 


 Estimated Oversight Fee $8,410.00 
 
 
 Estimated Project Total  $10,910.00 
 
Our estimated fee is based on the following assumptions: 


 
Abatement Oversight 


• M3 rates are based on 8-hour work shifts.  Extra hours for additional or longer shifts, meetings 
outside of the work shift hours, or other necessary activities will be charged according to the 
hourly rates as shown, plus overtime, upon receipt of you prior approval.  The overtime rate for 
a staff consultant is $115/hour.  Costs for M3 to conduct this project are dependent on the 
performance and timeliness of the asbestos abatement contractor. 
 


• As there is no project scope, for the purposes of this proposal it is assumed the contractor will 
complete the abatement within five 8-hour shifts, including time for clearances in one 
containment.  Following the receipt of the abatement contractor’s schedule  the estimated fee 
is subject to change to fit the appropriate timeline. 


 
Limitations 
 
Although a reasonable effort will be made to identify suspect materials, this does not guarantee that all 
possible sources of hazardous materials will be identified as certain building materials may be inaccessible 
or hidden by walls, flooring, partitions, etc.  During demolition or renovation operations, building materials 
may be uncovered that may be suspect.  These materials should be sampled and identified before activities 
resume.  
 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit our proposal to you.  If you have any questions please call me at 
831.649.4623. 
  
Sincerely, 
M3 Environmental Consulting LLC 


 
Chris G. Gatward 
Principal 
California CAC No. 92-0216 
 


325 of 462







This page has been left blank







327 of 462







328 of 462







329 of 462







330 of 462







 


                            
  AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.8 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve XL Construction Change Orders #1 & #2 for the Track & Field 


Project at Harbor High 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve two  XL Construction change orders. Change order #1 is to furnish and install a project site 
camera system. Change order #2 is for additional time for the track and field project at Harbor High.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Change order #1 includes furnishing and installation of a project site camera system from Sensera with 7 
months of cellular service and cloud hosting. Equipment ownership will transfer to Santa Cruz City 
Schools after installation and can be used on other projects. The camera is to provide a live feed of the 
project for our bond website. This will allow the public to monitor the progress of the project. 
 
Change order #2 extends the project schedule by 29 days. The original contract for the athletic field 
improvements assumed a start date of 2/28/18; however, due to the Board’s request that the Harbor 
High School Site Team convene and discuss the various alternated for the field project, the start date 
was delayed. This change order reflects the adjusted schedule.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Original contract $7,770,772.94, Measure ‘A’ Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 26.0% of the overall 
site budget, however, there was no additional cost as a result of these change orders. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


331 of 462







This page has been left blank







33
3 


of
 4


62







33
4 


of
 4


62







33
5 


of
 4


62







33
6 


of
 4


62







33
7 


of
 4


62







33
8 


of
 4


62







33
9 


of
 4


62







34
0 


of
 4


62







Change Order Request #2


300 La Fonda Ave.
4353. SCCS Harbor High Track and Field Project


Santa Cruz, CA  95062


Contract: Date:
Page 1 of 2Page:


To (Owner): Santa Cruz School District


Please find item(s) listed below which XL is requesting a change order for on the above referenced
project


Details: As discussed, the GMP Proposal Schedule For The Athletic Field Improvements For Harbor
High School project was based on receiving a Notice To Proceed by 2-28-18; however, the
Notice To Proceed was received 29 days later due to the approval processes with an issue date
of 3-29-18 pushing the start of construction and thus completion. Please see the attached
documents for reference and approve this change order to equitably adjust the required
completion date from 8-31-18 to 9-29-18, 29 days later, based on the Notice To Proceed date.
We will continue to look for opportunities to accelerate the schedule and complete as much
scope as possible for the 50th Anniversary Event.


AmountDescriptionPCO #


Adjust Project Start & Completion DatesPCO10 $0.00


Subtotal: $0.00


SDI Total $0.00
$0.00Liability Total


Fee Total $0.00


Total:Adjust Project Start & Completion Dates $0.00


Number of Schedule Extension Days*: 29
*If the number of schedule extension days is zero, it is anticipated that this Change Order Request will be authorized
in time to perform this work prior to the current completion date.


If this Change Order Request is not authorized by 5/25/2018, additional supervision and general
conditions costs and a schedule extension may be required in order to complete this change order work.


The shown prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are
authorized to do the work as specified.


XL Construction CorporationSubmitted By:


By:


XL License 647480


Print Title:


By:


Santa Cruz School DistrictApproved By:


Phone: 408/240-6000 Fax: 408/240-6001


Date:


Fax Number:


Jeff Herbage,


Email:
Email: jherbage@xlconstruction.com


341 of 462



jherbage

Text Box



jherbage

JSH Signature







Change Order Request Details


Date:300 La Fonda Ave.
4353. SCCS Harbor High Track and Field Project


Santa Cruz, CA  95062


Contract:


Page 2 of 2Page:


COR: 2


PCO10: Adjust Project Start & Completion Dates


Contract Item 95000.000: Adjust Project Start & Completion Dates $0.00


Phase Phase Description Cost Type


1350. Superintendent Labor $0.00


342 of 462







methods of construction. The Contractor shall (1) provide a preliminary evaluation of the 
Owner’s schedule, cost and design requirements for the Project; (2) develop an anticipated 
construction schedule pursuant to Subsection d. above; (3) develop a preliminary cost estimate 
for each type of work contemplated by the Project pursuant to Subsection e. above; (4) clarify 
and delineate the Architect’s, the Contractor’s, and the Owner’s respective duties and 
responsibilities; and (5) set forth a plan for the administration and coordination of all Work on 
the Project, including pre-construction meetings. The Architect and Owner shall review the 
above for acceptance. Contractor will also ensure that all Work complies with the guidelines 
established by the State of California Office of Public School Construction and any other Federal 
or State agencies having jurisdiction over the Project. The objective of this step will be to develop 
an overall program strategy as relates to timing, budgets, construction materials, means and 
methods and the program interface during construction.


3. Contract Documents. The Contractor and the Owner agree that this Agreement, and all of the 
documents listed in Article 1.1.1 of the General Conditions, together form the “Contract 
Documents,” which form the “Contract.”


4. Time to Complete and Liquidated Damages. Time is of the essence in this Contract. The time 
for completion of the Project shall be August 31st 2018. Approval of the Total Sublease Amount (as 
set forth in Section 5 of this Agreement), pursuant to California Education Code section 17406(a)(3).


Failure to complete the Project or any Construction Increment within the date(s) and in the manner 
provided for by the Contract Documents, shall subject the Contractor to liquidated damages for each 
calendar day by which such completion is delayed beyond the Date for Completion for the Project 
or for such Construction Increment. For purposes of liquidated damages, the concept of substantial 
completion shall not constitute completion and is not part of the Contract Documents. The actual 
occurrence of damages and the actual amount of the damages which the Owner would suffer if the 
Project, or any Construction Increment, were not completed by the Date for Completion are 
dependent upon many circumstances and conditions which could prevail in various combinations 
and, from the nature of the case, it is impracticable and extremely difficult to fix the actual damages. 
Damages that the Owner would suffer if completion is delayed include, but are not limited to, loss 
of the use of the Project, disruption of activities, costs of administration, supervision and the 
incalculable inconvenience and loss suffered by the public.


Accordingly, the Parties agree that the following dollar figure shall be the amount of damages which 
the Owner shall directly incur upon failure of the Contractor to complete the Project within the time 
specified: $1,000.00 for each calendar day by which completion of the Project is delayed beyond 
the Date for Completion, which may be adjusted in accordance with the Contract Documents.


If the Contractor becomes liable under this Section, the Owner, in addition to all other remedies 
provided by law, shall have the right to withhold sublease payments, and to collect the interest 
thereon, which would otherwise be or become due the Contractor until the liability of the Contractor 
under this Section has been finally determined. If the withheld sublease payments are not sufficient 
to discharge all liabilities of the Contractor incurred under this Section, then the Contractor and its 
sureties shall continue to remain liable to the Owner for such liabilities until all such liabilities are 
satisfied in full.


34
3 


of
 4


62



jherbage

Text Box

From Amended And Restated Lease-Leaseback Agreement:



jherbage

Line



jherbage

Arrow







Activity ID Activity Name Original
Duration


Remaining
Duration


Start Finish


Harbor High SchoolHarbor High School 217 133 12-Dec-17 A 20-Aug-18


Track & FieldTrack & Field 217 133 12-Dec-17 A 20-Aug-18


Preconstruction PhasePreconstruction Phase 177 93 12-Dec-17 A 25-Jun-18


BiddingBidding 96 12 12-Dec-17 A 02-Mar-18


69 1st Advertisement 1 0 12-Dec-17 A 12-Dec-17 A


70 2nd Advertisement 1 0 29-Dec-17 A 29-Dec-17 A


74 District Prequalification Due 1 0 18-Jan-18 A 18-Jan-18 A


73 Site Walk For Bidders 1 0 26-Jan-18 A 26-Jan-18 A


71 Drawings For DSA Backcheck Available 1 0 30-Jan-18 A 30-Jan-18 A


72 DSA Backcheck Review, Approval & Incorporation Of Comments 5 0 31-Jan-18 A 06-Feb-18 A


75 Last Addendum Issued 1 0 07-Feb-18 A 07-Feb-18 A


76 Bid Day 1 0 08-Feb-18 A 08-Feb-18 A


77 Create GMP 5 1 09-Feb-18 A 15-Feb-18


A180 Conduct Subcontractor Scope Reviews 4 0 09-Feb-18 A 14-Feb-18 A


78 Review GMP With District, Update & Submit For Board Agenda 2 2 16-Feb-18 19-Feb-18


79 Board Approval of GMP 1 1 27-Feb-18 27-Feb-18


A178 Notice To Proceed For GMP Issued 1 1 28-Feb-18 28-Feb-18


A182 Create & Issue Subcontracts 2 2 01-Mar-18 02-Mar-18


ProcurementProcurement 81 81 05-Mar-18 25-Jun-18


Musco LightsMusco Lights 81 81 05-Mar-18 25-Jun-18


A214 Create Submittal  - Musco Lights 10 10 05-Mar-18 16-Mar-18


A216 XL Review Submittal - Musco Lights 5 5 19-Mar-18 23-Mar-18


A218 Design Team Review & Approve Submittal - Musco Lights 6 6 26-Mar-18 02-Apr-18


A220 Order & Procure - Musco Lights 60 60 03-Apr-18 25-Jun-18


Construction PhaseConstruction Phase 121 121 05-Mar-18 20-Aug-18


81 Issue Subcontractor Notices To Proceed 1 1 05-Mar-18* 05-Mar-18


Support & ControlSupport & Control 102 102 06-Mar-18 25-Jul-18


A30 Install Temporary Construction Fencing, Barriers & Signage 3 3 06-Mar-18 08-Mar-18


A32 Survey/Stake For Control & Rough Grade 4 4 09-Mar-18 14-Mar-18


A34 Survey/Stake For Utilities 3 3 15-Mar-18 19-Mar-18


A33 Survey/Stake For Curbs & Concrete Inside & At Track 2 2 15-Mar-18 16-Mar-18


A35 Survey/Stake For Fencing & Gates 1 1 15-Mar-18 15-Mar-18


A36 Survey/Stake For Fine Grade 3 3 20-Mar-18 22-Mar-18


A202 Conformance Survey - Turf Field Subgrade 2 2 12-Apr-18 13-Apr-18


A206 Conformance Survey - Track Curb Formwork 2 2 16-Apr-18 17-Apr-18


A208 Conformance Survey - Track Curb As-Built 2 2 20-Apr-18 23-Apr-18


A204 Conformance Survey - Turf Field Base Rock 2 2 26-Apr-18 27-Apr-18


A210 Conformance Survey - Track Asphalt As-Built 2 2 02-May-18 03-May-18


A212 Conformance Survey - Track Surfacing As-Built 2 2 24-Jul-18 25-Jul-18


Site Demo & GradingSite Demo & Grading 96 96 06-Mar-18 17-Jul-18


A10 Mobilize To The Site - Site Demo & Grading 1 1 06-Mar-18 06-Mar-18


A12 Install Construction Entrances & Erosion Control 2 2 07-Mar-18 08-Mar-18


A14 Relocate Items To Be Salvaged 1 1 09-Mar-18 09-Mar-18


A16 Install Tree Protection 1 1 12-Mar-18 12-Mar-18


A18 Demolish Site 2 2 13-Mar-18 14-Mar-18


A20 Clear & Grub Site 1 1 15-Mar-18 15-Mar-18


Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep


2017 2018


20-Aug-18, Harbor High School


20-Aug-18, Track & Field


25-Jun-18, Preconstruction Phase


02-Mar-18, Bidding


1st Advertisement


29-Dec-17 A 2nd Advertisement


18-Jan-18 A District Prequalification Due


26-Jan-18 A Site Walk For Bidders


30-Jan-18 A Drawings For DSA Backcheck Available


31-Jan-18 A DSA Backcheck Review, Approval & Incorporation Of Comments


07-Feb-18 A Last Addendum Issued


08-Feb-18 A Bid Day


09-Feb-18 A Create GMP


09-Feb-18 A Conduct Subcontractor Scope Reviews


16-Feb-18 Review GMP With District, Update & Submit For Board Agenda


27-Feb-18 Board Approval of GMP


28-Feb-18 Notice To Proceed For GMP Issued


01-Mar-18 Create & Issue Subcontracts


05-Mar-18 25-Jun-18, Procurement


05-Mar-18 25-Jun-18, Musco Lights


05-Mar-18 Create Submittal  - Musco Lights


19-Mar-18 XL Review Submittal - Musco Lights


26-Mar-18 Design Team Review & Approve Submittal - Musco Lights


03-Apr-18 Order & Procure - Musco Lights


05-Mar-18 20-Aug-18, Construction Phase


05-Mar-18* Issue Subcontractor Notices To Proceed


06-Mar-18 25-Jul-18, Support & Control


06-Mar-18 Install Temporary Construction Fencing, Barriers & Signage


09-Mar-18 Survey/Stake For Control & Rough Grade


15-Mar-18 Survey/Stake For Utilities


15-Mar-18 Survey/Stake For Curbs & Concrete Inside & At Track


15-Mar-18 Survey/Stake For Fencing & Gates


20-Mar-18 Survey/Stake For Fine Grade


12-Apr-18 Conformance Survey - Turf Field Subgrade


16-Apr-18 Conformance Survey - Track Curb Formwork


20-Apr-18 Conformance Survey - Track Curb As-Built


26-Apr-18 Conformance Survey - Turf Field Base Rock


02-May-18 Conformance Survey - Track Asphalt As-Built


24-Jul-18 Conformance Survey - Track Surfacing As-Built


06-Mar-18 17-Jul-18, Site Demo & Grading


06-Mar-18 Mobilize To The Site - Site Demo & Grading


07-Mar-18 Install Construction Entrances & Erosion Control


09-Mar-18 Relocate Items To Be Salvaged


12-Mar-18 Install Tree Protection


13-Mar-18 Demolish Site


15-Mar-18 Clear & Grub Site


Harbor High School XL Project ID: 4353-0


Data Date: 15-Feb-18


Run Date: 15-Feb-18 Page 1 of 3 Layout: Full Schedule


344 of 462



jherbage

Rectangle



jherbage

Arrow



jherbage

Text Box

From GMP Proposal:







34
5 


of
 4


62







This page has been left blank







 


                            
  AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.9 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Garland Company Bid for Material for Santa Cruz High 


School Roofing Replacement Project 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Garland Company bid for material for the Santa Cruz High School roofing replacement 
project.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposed Santa Cruz High School Re-Roofing project will include removal and replacement of 
approximately 52,000 sq ft of roofing and associated components. We are purchasing the roofing 
materials through the California Multiple Award Scheduled (CMAS) process. The Garland Company was 
awarded contract 4-01-56-0006A through the CMAS procurement program. We verified the vendor’s 
Excel documents with this contract.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$673,769.57, Measure ‘A’ Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 2.09% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


347 of 462







This page has been left blank







7-May-18


To: Trevor Miller, Santa Cruz City School District


From: Adam Faville


Re: 2018 Santa Cruz High School Caferteria &Home Ec. Building Roof Replacement Project


The following are the material needed to complete the building roof project at Santa Cruz High School Cafeteria & Home Ec, Buildings


Product (Product #) Price Ext. Price:
115 -  Stressbase 120, 1 sq. roll $ 163.00/roll 18,745.00$          
15 - Stressbase 80, 1.5 sq.roll $ 202.00/roll 3,030.00$            
40 - HPR Glasbase 3sq. Roll $ 118.00/roll 4,720.00$            
56- GreenLock Membrane Adhesive 5 gal $ 320.00/pail 17,920.00$          
25 - GreenLock Flashing adhesive 3.5 gal $ 269.00/pail 6,725.00$            
11 -  KEE Stone 60 mil FB, 8 sq.roll $ 4038.00/roll 44,418.00$          
12 - KEE Stone Flashing FB, 2 sq. roll $ 980.00/roll 11,760.00$          
8 - KEE Stone Utility 25 sq.ft. roll $ 137.00/roll 1,096.00$            
2 - Solar Brite KEE 60 mil Membrane 5' x 100' $ 1368.50/roll 2,737.00$            
8 - KEE Inside Corners $10.47/ each 83.76$                 
14 - KEE Outside Corners $11.85/ each 165.90$               
7 - KEE Foam Box Set, 20 sq. $ 989.00/box 6,923.00$            
2 - KEE Sealant 24 tubes/case $250.24/case 500.48$               
4 - KEE Flashing Detail Non-Reinforced 24" x 100' $657.98/roll 2,631.92$            
1 - T Joint Covers (100/case) $99.48/case 99.48$                 
2- Tuff Stuff Sealant, 24 tubes/case $ 360.00/case 720.00$               


SUB-TOTAL: 122,275.54$        
CMAS Discount, 1% ($1,222.75)
Sales Tax, 9% $10,993.75
Estimated Freight: $9,446.33
CMAS Total: 141,492.87$        


Please make the PO out to The Garland Company Inc, 3800 East 91st Street, Cleveland, OH 44105.  
Please add the Garland CMAS # 4-01-56-0006A to the front of the Purchase Order 
to ensure compliance with CMAS requirements.  The freight is an estimated cost.


Thanks, Adam


349 of 462







30-May-18


To: Trevor Miller, Santa Cruz City School District


From: Adam Faville


Re: 2018 Santa Cruz High School Gym Roof


The following are the material needed to complete the building roof project at Santa Cruz High School Gym Roof 


Product (Product #) Price Ext. Price:
315 - Stressbase 120, 1 sq. roll $ 163.00/roll 51,345.00$          
40 - Stressbase 80, 1.5 sq.roll $ 202.00/roll 8,080.00$            
105 - HPR Glasbase 3sq. Roll $ 118.00/roll 12,390.00$          
150 - GreenLock Membrane Adhesive 5 gal $ 320.00/pail 48,000.00$          
50 - GreenLock Flashing adhesive 3.5 gal $ 269.00/pail 13,450.00$          
35 - KEE Stone 60 mil FB, 8 sq.roll $ 4038.00/roll 141,330.00$        
4 - KEE Stone 60 mil FB, 4 sq.roll $2019.00/roll 8,076.00$            
20 - KEE Stone Flashing FB, 2 sq. roll $ 980.00/roll 19,600.00$          
20 - KEE Stone Utility 25 sq.ft. roll $ 137.00/roll 2,740.00$            
3 - Solar Brite KEE 60 mik Membrane 5' x 100' $ 1368.50/roll 4,105.50$            
14 - KEE Inside Corners $10.47/ each 146.58$               
26 - KEE Outside Corners $11.85/ each 308.10$               
18 - KEE Foam Box Set, 20 sq. $ 989.00/box 17,802.00$          
3 - KEE Sealant 24 tubes/case $250.24/case 750.72$               
3 - KEE Flashing Detail Non-Reinforced 24" x 100' $657.98/roll 1,973.94$            
1 - T Joint Covers (100/case) $99.48/case 99.48$                 
4- Tuff Stuff Sealant, 24 tubes/case $ 360.00/case 1,440.00$            


SUB-TOTAL: 331,637.32$        
CMAS Discount, 1% ($3,316.37)
Sales Tax, 9% $29,548.88
Estimated Freight: $18,892.66
CMAS Total: 376,762.49$        


Please make the PO out to The Garland Company Inc, 3800 East 91st Street, Cleveland, OH 44105.  
Please add the Garland CMAS # 4-01-56-0006A to the front of the Purchase Order 
to ensure compliance with CMAS requirements.  The freight is an estimated cost.


Thanks, Adam


350 of 462







30-May-18


To: Trevor Miller, Santa Cruz City School District


From: Adam Faville


Re: 2018 Santa Cruz High School Math Building Roof Replacement Project


The following are the material needed to complete the building roof project at Santa Cruz High School, Math Building


Product (Product #) Price Ext. Price:
65 -  Stressbase 120, 1 sq. roll $ 163.00/roll 10,595.00$          
5- Stressbase 80, 1.5 sq.roll $ 202.00/roll 1,010.00$            
23 - HPR Glasbase 3sq. Roll $ 118.00/roll 2,714.00$            
35 - GreenLock Membrane Adhesive 5 gal $ 320.00/pail 11,200.00$          
5 - GreenLock Flashing adhesive 3.5 gal $ 269.00/pail 1,345.00$            
8 -  KEE Stone 60 mil FB, 8 sq.roll $ 4038.00/roll 32,304.00$          
4 - KEE Stone Flashing FB, 2 sq. roll $ 980.00/roll 3,920.00$            
4 - KEE Stone Utility 25 sq.ft. roll $ 137.00/roll 548.00$               
1 - Solar Brite KEE 60 mil Membrane 5' x 100' $ 1368.50/roll 1,368.50$            
8 - KEE Inside Corners $10.47/ each 83.76$                 
4 - KEE Outside Corners $11.85/ each 47.40$                 
4 - KEE Foam Box Set, 20 sq. $ 989.00/box 3,956.00$            
1 - KEE Sealant 24 tubes/case $250.24/case 250.24$               
2 - KEE Flashing Detail Non-Reinforced 24" x 100' $657.98/roll 1,315.96$            
1 - T Joint Covers (100/case) $99.48/case 99.48$                 
1- Tuff Stuff Sealant, 24 tubes/case $ 360.00/case 360.00$               


SUB-TOTAL: 71,117.34$          
CMAS Discount, 1% ($711.17)
Sales Tax, 9% $6,336.55
Estimated Freight: $5,044.22
CMAS Total: 81,786.94$          


Please make the PO out to The Garland Company Inc, 3800 East 91st Street, Cleveland, OH 44105.  
Please add the Garland CMAS # 4-01-56-0006A to the front of the Purchase Order 
to ensure compliance with CMAS requirements.  The freight is an estimated cost.


Thanks, Adam


351 of 462







7-May-18


To: Trevor Miller, Santa Cruz City School District


From: Adam Faville


Re: 2018 Santa Cruz High School Music Building Roof Replacement Project


The following are the material needed to complete the building roof project at Santa Cruz High School, Music Building


Product (Product #) Price Ext. Price:
80 -  Stressbase 120, 1 sq. roll $ 163.00/roll 13,040.00$          
6 - Stressbase 80, 1.5 sq.roll $ 202.00/roll 1,212.00$            
27 - HPR Glasbase 3sq. Roll  $118.00/roll 3,186.00$            
40 - GreenLock Membrane Adhesive 5 gal $ 320.00/pail 12,800.00$          
9 - GreenLock Flashing adhesive 3.5 gal $ 269.00/pail 2,421.00$            
9 -  KEE Stone 60 mil FB, 8 sq.roll $ 4038.00/roll 36,342.00$          
6 - KEE Stone Flashing FB, 2 sq. roll $ 980.00/roll 5,880.00$            
6 - KEE Stone Utility 25 sq.ft. roll $ 137.00/roll 822.00$               
1 - Solar Brite KEE 60 mil Membrane 5' x 100' $ 1368.50/roll 1,368.50$            
25 - KEE Outside Corners $11.85/ each 296.25$               
4 - KEE Foam Box Set, 20 sq. $ 989.00/box 3,956.00$            
1 - KEE Sealant 24 tubes/case $250.24/case 250.24$               
2 - KEE Flashing Detail Non-Reinforced 24" x 100' $657.98/roll 1,315.96$            
1 - T Joint Covers (100/case) $99.48/case 99.48$                 
1- Tuff Stuff Sealant, 24 tubes/case $ 360.00/case 360.00$               


SUB-TOTAL: 83,349.43$          
CMAS Discount, 1% ($833.49)
Sales Tax, 9% $7,426.43
Estimated Freight: $10,446.33
CMAS Total: 100,388.70$        


Please make the PO out to The Garland Company Inc, 3800 East 91st Street, Cleveland, OH 44105.  
Please add the Garland CMAS # 4-01-56-0006A to the front of the Purchase Order 
to ensure compliance with CMAS requirements.  The freight is an estimated cost.


Thanks, Adam


352 of 462







30-May-18


To: Trevor Miller, Santa Cruz City School District


From: Adam Faville


Re: 2018 Santa Cruz High School Trident Building Roof Replacement Project


The following are the material needed to complete the building roof project at Santa Cruz High School, Trident Building


Product (Product #) Price Ext. Price:
50 -  Stressbase 120, 1 sq. roll $ 163.00/roll 8,150.00$            
15- Stressbase 80, 1.5 sq.roll $ 202.00/roll 3,030.00$            
16 - HPR Glasbase 3sq. Roll $ 118.00/roll 1,888.00$            
25 - GreenLock Membrane Adhesive 5 gal $ 320.00/pail 8,000.00$            
15 - GreenLock Flashing adhesive 3.5 gal $ 269.00/pail 4,035.00$            
6 -  KEE Stone 60 mil FB, 8 sq.roll $ 4038.00/roll 24,228.00$          
8 - KEE Stone Flashing FB, 2 sq. roll $ 980.00/roll 7,840.00$            
4 - KEE Stone Utility 25 sq.ft. roll $ 137.00/roll 548.00$               
1 - Solar Brite KEE 60 mil Membrane 5' x 100' $ 1368.50/roll 1,368.50$            
8 - KEE Inside Corners $10.47/ each 83.76$                 
20 - KEE Outside Corners $11.85/ each 237.00$               
4 - KEE Foam Box Set, 20 sq. $ 989.00/box 3,956.00$            
1 - KEE Sealant 24 tubes/case $250.24/case 250.24$               
2 - KEE Flashing Detail Non-Reinforced 24" x 100' $657.98/roll 1,315.96$            
1 - T Joint Covers (100/case) $99.48/case 99.48$                 
1- Tuff Stuff Sealant, 24 tubes/case $ 360.00/case 360.00$               


SUB-TOTAL: 65,389.94$          
CMAS Discount, 1% ($653.89)
Sales Tax, 9% $5,826.24
Estimated Freight: $5,943.45
CMAS Total: 76,505.74$          


Please make the PO out to The Garland Company Inc, 3800 East 91st Street, Cleveland, OH 44105.  
Please add the Garland CMAS # 4-01-56-0006A to the front of the Purchase Order 
to ensure compliance with CMAS requirements.  The freight is an estimated cost.


Thanks, Adam


353 of 462







This page has been left blank







�������� 355 of 462







This page has been left blank







 


                            
  AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.10 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Kleinfelder Proposal for Special Inspection and Testing Services 


for the Delaveaga Parking Lot and Shade Structure Project 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Kleinfelder proposal for special inspection and testing services for the Delaveaga parking lot 
and shade structure project.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposal is for professional services. It is based on the DSA requirement to have an independent 
approved Laboratory of Record do described special materials testing and inspection services. The 
inspector will prepare the required final DSA close-out reports upon the completion of the field work 
(DSA 291 and 293). 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$60,700.00, Measure “B” Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.43% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


357 of 462







This page has been left blank







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P79081 Page 1 of 4 May 31, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


 
 
 
 
May 31, 2018 
Proposal No. LOCALMKT.WEOH 
 
 
Trevor Miller 
Director of Facility Services 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
 
CC: Ralph Le Roux (Madi Group, Inc.) 
 
SUBJECT: Proposal for Soils/Materials Special Inspection and Testing Services 
  De Laveaga Parking Lot and Shade Structure Project 
  1145 Morrissey Boulevard, Santa Cruz, California 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
Pursuant to your recent request, Kleinfelder is pleased to submit the enclosed budgetary 
estimate to perform the soils and materials special inspection and testing services required by 
the specifications, DSA, and local building codes for the subject project. This proposal is based 
on review of the project plans entitled “New Shade Structure at De Laveaga Elementary” by 
MADI Architecture and Planning, last stamped and dated June 16, 2017. It should be noted that 
this estimate is based on assumed quantities, our experience on similar projects, and 
communications with you as no schedule was available.  
 
Kleinfelder’s key qualifications include: 
 


Strong Project Manager and Technical Staff - We have assembled a group of experienced 
professionals with a depth of relevant background, led by Mrs. Andrea Traum, P.E. 


 
Familiarity with DSA Requirements - Because of our long history of working on various 


school projects, and more specifically on school projects requiring materials 
testing/special inspection services, we have developed a deep understanding of the 
criteria specified by the California Education Code (CEC), the California Building Code 
(CBC) and Title 24 for approval by the California Division of the State Architect, and 
required formats for deliverables. 


 
Experience with Similar Projects - Our team includes individuals with a vast amount of local 


special inspection and materials testing experience. This experience will ensure that 
there will be no learning curve in working with the code enforcement agency on this 
project. 


 
Cost-Effective Services - We offer cost-effective services with labor rates based on 1-hour 


minimums.  
 


359 of 462







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P79081 Page 2 of 4 May 31, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
We understand that the proposed project includes construction of a new parking and drop off 
area as well as a single shade structure.  The parking area will consist of both standard asphalt 
and pervious paving. There is also a storm water retention basin planned. We anticipate our 
scope of work will include the following; 
 


• Compaction tests of all subgrade receiving flatwork or paving 
• Compaction test of backfill of utility lines 
• Compaction tests of base under flat work or paving 
• Verification of mill certs and tagging of rebar cages for light pole bases and footings for 


shade structure 
• Casting of concrete cylinders for shade structure footings and light pole bases 
• Material ID of structural members for structure 
• Shop inspection of shade structure fabrication 
• Field inspection of shade structure erection (welding and bolting) 


 
The anticipated timeline for all the work to take place is twelve weeks.  Please note a schedule 
was not available during the preparation of this proposal. 
 
BUDGETARY ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF CHARGES 
 
The estimated man-hour breakdown and costs associated with the scope of work anticipated for 
this project are summarized below. These costs are based on a general estimate of the 
timeframe and scope of work.  No schedule was available during the preparation of this 
proposal.  The testing agency must conform to the contractor’s schedules, and these could vary 
according to job conditions.  The detailed estimate provided totals $60,700. 
 
Scope Item        Cost 
 
Prevailing Wage Inspector (12 weeks at half-time)   $ 44,000 
Laboratory Testing        $  4,700 
Travel         $  5,000 
Dispatch/Project Management/Reporting    $  7,000 
         $60,700 
 
 
Please note that our services do not include (1) review of project plans and specifications with 
respect to local codes, (2) supervision, direction, or acceptance of the contractor’s work, (3) 
interpretation or modification of the project plans and specifications, or (4) job site safety. 
 
Kleinfelder’s charges will be made on a time and expense basis for testing and inspection 
services actually performed at the rates noted in the budgetary estimate. The estimate includes 
provisions for normal quality control and review of acceptance testing by the Project Manager. 
Any required overtime, re-inspection, conflict resolution, evaluation of alternative construction 
methods or materials, or items not included in this proposal will be charged at the rates current 
at the time the work is performed. Travel time for our technicians, engineers, and project 
managers will be billed on a portal to portal basis from our Salinas office.  When specialized 
equipment is necessary the time for our technicians will be billed on a portal to portal basis from 
our Hayward office. 
 


360 of 462







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P79081 Page 3 of 4 May 31, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


In the event conditions arise which are beyond our control, unknown at the time this proposal 
was prepared, unanticipated based on the available information, or differ significantly from the 
assumptions outlined in this proposal, it may be necessary to revise our scope and estimated 
fee in order to complete the project. Should this occur, we would contact you for authorization 
prior to proceeding with any additional work. 
 
If a portion of this proposal does not meet your needs, or if those needs have changed, 
Kleinfelder stands ready to consider appropriate modifications, subject to the standards of care 
to which we adhere as professionals. Modifications such as changes in scope, methodology, 
scheduling, and contract terms and conditions may result in changes to the risks assumed by 
you and may require adjustments to our fees. 
 
PREVAILING WAGE PROJECT 
 
The California Prevailing Wage Law requires payment of a local “prevailing wage” to workers on 
publicly funded projects. This includes projects “paid for in whole or in part out of public funds” 
and has been expanded to include various types of payments, credits and monetary equivalents 
provided by the State or public entity. The Prevailing Wage Law extends to geotechnical 
engineering consultants, their soils/material testing and building inspection personnel. Services 
subject to prevailing wage are typically non-professional field services and are applicable during 
design as well as construction. This law significantly increases employee wages for qualified 
activities on publicly funded projects. It is our understanding that this project falls under the 
definition of a prevailing wage project. We need to be notified if certified payroll is required. 
Certified payroll will incur administrative processing fees in addition to those listed in this 
proposal. 
 
DISPATCH COORDINATION 
 
Kleinfelder’s dispatcher Amy James can be reached at 925.225.4575 or at 
ajames@kleinfelder.com between the hours of 7:00 AM and 3:00 PM. Please provide 24 hours’ 
notice for us to coordinate requested site visits. For weekend and/or night work, please provide 
as much notice as possible so that we may accommodate your project scheduling needs.  
 
REPORTING 
 
Daily field reports (DFRs) will be prepared during each site visit, and a copy left with the 
superintendent. Additionally, the DFRs will be uploaded to the Division of State Architect Box 
site. Laboratory test results will also be uploaded to the Box. 
 
WORK SAFETY 
 
The safety of our employees is of paramount concern to Kleinfelder. Our employees actively 
participate in onsite safety, and attend safety, tailgate, and preconstruction meetings. You will 
be notified if the site conditions on your project represent a potential safety concern to our 
employees. Unsafe conditions for fieldwork will require a modification of our estimated scope of 
work and associated fees. We will advise you of the additional costs necessary to mitigate these 
unanticipated conditions, if applicable.  
 
  


361 of 462







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P79081 Page 4 of 4 May 31, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


LIMITATIONS 
 
Our work will be performed in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily 
exercised by other members of Kleinfelder’s profession practicing in the same locality, under 
similar conditions and at the date the services are provided. Our conclusions, opinions and 
recommendations will be based on a limited number of observations and data. It is possible that 
conditions could vary between or beyond the data evaluated. Kleinfelder makes no guarantee or 
warranty, express or implied, regarding the services, communication (oral or written), report, 
opinion, or instrument of service provided. Even with diligent monitoring, construction defects 
may occur. In all cases the contractor is solely responsible for the direction and quality of the 
work, adherence to plans and specifications, and repair of defects. 
 
This proposal is valid for a period of 45 days from the date of this proposal, unless a longer 
period is specifically required by the RFP in which case that time frame will apply. This proposal 
was prepared specifically for the client and its designated representatives and may not be 
provided to others without Kleinfelder’s express permission. 
 
AUTHORIZATION 
 
The current Master Services Agreement between Kleinfelder and Santa Cruz City Schools, 
dated September 14, 2016, is on file. If this proposal meets with your approval, please sign and 
date the enclosed Work Order; then return it to us as our authorization to proceed with the 
services outlined. A fully executed copy will be returned for your files. 
 
CLOSURE 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal and trust that we may be of service on 
this project. If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact us at 
408-595-3275. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
KLEINFELDER, INC. 
 
 
 
Stephanie Sanchez Andrea M. Traum, PE, LEED AP 
Project Controls Professional Senior Project Manager 
 
 
Attachments: Work Order (1 page) 
  


362 of 462







 


LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18W79082  __________Kleinfelder 
© 2018 Kleinfelder  __________Client 
May 31, 2018 


EXHIBIT 1 
WORK ORDER NO: SAL18W79082 


 
Issued Pursuant to Master Services Agreement SAL16C46701 by and between Kleinfelder, Inc. (KLEINFELDER) 
and Santa Cruz City Schools (CLIENT) dated September 14, 2016. 
 
CLIENT Office: (Location) 536 Palm Street         KLEINFELDER Project No:  
    Santa Cruz, CA 
    Mr. Trevor Miller 
 
 Work Order Type:  Time and Material 
    Fixed Price 
   Other (describe): 
   
CLIENT Reference No:   
 
KLEINFELDER Office: San Jose 
KLEINFELDER Contact:  Andrea Traum (Project Manager) atraum@kleinfelder.com – 408.595.3275  
                       Amy James (Dispatch) ajames@kleinfelder.com – 925.225.4575  
 
1. SCOPE OF WORK: Provide on-call special inspection and testing services for the shade structure 
and parking lot improvement project in accordance with provided plans and specifications. Anticipated scope of 
work to include foundation observation, utility trench backfill, concrete & rebar, shop and field welding, anchor 
inspections, associated administration/project management time, and preparation of final reports per the 
attached cost estimate.  


 
2.  LOCATION/CLIENT FACILITY INVOLVED: De Laveaga Parking Lot and Shade Structure Project, 


1145 Morrissey Boulevard, Santa Cruz, CA 95065 
 
3. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE:  FROM: TO:  
 
4.   AUTHORIZED FEES: $60,700. 
 
5. SPECIAL PROVISIONS: 
 
 
NOTICE TO PROCEED IS GIVEN ON (DATE):  
 
 
CLIENT:   SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS   CONSULTANT:   KLEINFELDER, INC. 
     
By:     By:  


 (Signature)   (Signature) 
       


Name:   Name: Eric J. Hinzel 


 (Please Print)   (Please Print) 
Title:     Title:   Vice President 


        
Date Signed:     Date Signed:  6/1/18 
 


363 of 462







This page has been left blank







AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.11 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve D and T Painting Bid for Interior Painting of the Gymnasium 


Building at Santa Cruz High School   
 


MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the D and T Painting Bid for interior painting of the gymnasium building at Santa Cruz High 
School.   


 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
The project consists of interior painting at the gymnasium building (Building K) of Santa Cruz High 
School. The proposed project will entail lead abatement and painting of all interior surfaces of the 
gymnasium building at Santa Cruz High School. 
 
A request for bids was sent out to all contractors on our Uniform Construction Cost Accounting 
Construction Application list, noticed to the builder’s plan rooms and advertised in the local 
newspapers.  Seven bids were received. D and T Painting was the successful low bidder. 


BID SUMMARY 
 


CONTRACTOR CITY BASE BID 
Vera’s Painting Woodland Hills $139,000.00 
Metro Structural Painting So. San Francisco $99,300.00 
Color New Company Woodland Hills $96,000.00 
Athens Painting Pittsburg $79,000.00 
Fresh Start Painting Co. Millbrae $105,284.00 
Satellite Painting Inc. San Jose $115,000.00 
D and T Painting Manteca $70,000.00 
LOW BID D and T Painting $70,000.00 


     
Staff recommends that the bid be awarded to D and T Painting the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$70,000.00, Measure ‘A’ Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 0.21% of the site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management  
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


365 of 462







This page has been left blank







AGREEMET{T BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR


This Agreement effective June 13, 2Ot8, by and between Santa Cruz City Schools, Santa Cruz County,
California, hereinafter called the "Owner" and D and T Painting, hereinafter called the "Contractor."


WITNESSETH: That the Contractor and the Owner for the consideration hereinafter named agree as


follows:


ARTICLE l. SCOPE OF WORK. The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials,
including tools, implements, and appliances required, and to perform all the work in a good and
workmanlike manner, free from any and all liens and claims from mechanics, material suppliers,
subcontractors, artisans, machinists, teamsters, freight carriers, and laborers required for:


Santa Cruz High School Gymnasium lnterior Painting Project,


The extent of work includes but is not limited to:
r Lead containing paint removal/stabilization as described in lead abatement technical


specifications.
r Labor, materials, and equipment to paint all interior surfaces at the Gymnasium building, per


drawings and paint technical specifications.
o Cleaning.


all in strict compliance with the coordination therefore provided by:


Bartos Architecture
1730 South Amphlett Blvd, Suite 225


San Mateo, CA944O2


and other contract documents relating thereto.


Article ll, Contract Documents
The Contractor and the Owner agree that all of the documents listed in Article 1.1.1 of the General
Conditions form the Contract Documents which form the Contract.


Article lll, Time to Complete and Liquidated Damages
Time is of the essence in this contract, and the time of completion for this Project shall be by
16 July, 2018. Failure to complete the Project within the time and in the manner provided for by the
Contract Documents shall subject the Contractor to liquidated damages of 5250.00 for each calendar day
by which completion of the Project is delayed beyond the completion date. The actual occurrence of
damages and the actual amount of the damages which the Owner would suffer if the Project were not
completed within the specified times set forth are dependent upon many circumstances and conditions
which could prevail in various combinations and, from the nature of the case, it is impracticable and
extremely difficult to fix the actual damages. Damages which the Owner would suffer in the event of
delay include, but are not limited to, loss of the use of the Project, disruption of activities, costs of
administration, supervision and the loss suffered by the public. Accordingly, the parties agree that the
amount set forth above shall be presumed to be the amount of damages which the Owner shall directly
incur upon failure of the Contractor to complete the Project within the time specified, during or as a result
of each calendar day by which completion of the Project is delayed beyond the completion date. lf the
Owner accepts any work or makes any payment under this Agreement after a default by reason of delays,
the payment or payments shall in no respect constitute a waiver or modification of any Agreement
provisions regarding time of completion and liquidated damages.


367 of 462







lf the Contractor becomes liable under this section, the Owner, in addition to all other remedies provided


by law, shall have the right to withhold any and all retained percentages of payments and/or progress


payments, and to collect the interest thereon, which would otherwise be or become due the Contractor
until the liability of the Contractor under this section has been finally determined. lf the retained
percentages and withheld progress payments appear insufficient to discharge all liabilities of the
Contractor incurred under this Article, the Contractor and its sureties shall continue to remain liable to
the Owner for such liabilities until all such liabilities are satisfied in full.


Article lV, Payments
The Owner agrees to pay the Contractor the Contract Sum in current funds for the Contractor's
performance of the Contract and to make payments on account thereof as provided in the General


Conditions. The Contract Sum shall be Seventy Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents ($70,000.00).


The Contract Sum is based upon the following A,lternates, which are described in the Contract Documents
and are hereby accepted by the Owner:


Additive Alternate Price L. Remove, Protect, and Store Existing Awards and Banners. Storage Room to be
provided By District: Eight Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents (58,000.00).


Additive Alternate Price 2. Re-install existing banners and framed jersey shirts. lnstall new banners:


Twelve Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents {$12,000.00).


Article V, Changes
Changes in this Agreement or in the Work to be done under this Agreement shall be made as provided in


the General Conditions.


Article Vl, Termination
The Agreement may be terminated as provided in the General Conditions.


Article Vll, Prevailing Wages


Pursuant to the provisions of Section t77O et seq. of the Labor Code of the State of California, which are


hereby incorporated by reference and made a part hereof, the Director of lndustrial Relations has


determined the general prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday and


overtime work in the locality in which the work is to be performed, for each craft, classification or type of
worker needed to execute this Contract. Per diem wages shall be deemed to include employer payments


for health and welfare, pension, vacation, apprenticeship or other training programs, and similar
purposes. Copies of the rates are on file at the Owner's principal office and are available upon request.
The rate of prevailing wage for any craft, classification or type of workmanship to be employed on this
Project is the rate established by the applicable collective bargaining agreement which rate so provided is


hereby adopted by reference and shall be effective for the life of this Agreement or until the Director of
the Department of lndustrial Relations determines that another rate be adopted. lt shall be mandatory
upon the Contractor and on any subcontractor to pay not less than the said specified rates to all workers
employed in the execution of this Agreement.


The Contractor and any subcontractor under the Contractor as a penalty to the Owner shall forfeit not
more than Fifty Dollars {550.00} for each calendar day or portion thereof for each worker paid less than


the stipulated prevailing rates for such work or craft in which such worker is employed. The difference


between such stipulated prevailing wage rates and the amount paid to each worker for each calendar day


or portion thereof for which each worker was paid less than the stipulated prevailing wage rate shall be
paid to each worker by the Contractor or Subcontractor.


The Contractor and each Subcontractor shall keep or cause to be kept an accurate record for work on this
Project showing the names, addresses, social security numbers, work classification, straight time and


368 of 462







overtime hours worked and occupations of all laborers, workers and mechanics employed by them in
connection with the performance of this Contract or any subcontract thereunder, and showing also the
actual per diem wage paid to each of such workers, which records shall be open at all reasonable hours to
inspection by the Owner, its officers and agents and to the representatives of the Division of Labor Law


Enforcement of the State Department of lndustrial Relations. Contractor and Subcontractor shall comply
with Labor Code section L776.


Article Vlll, Working Hours
ln accordance with the provisions of Sections 18L0 to 1815, inclusive, of the Labor Code of the State of
California, which are hereby incorporated and made a part hereof, the time of service of any worker
employed by the Contractor or a Subcontractor doing or contracting to do any part of the Work
contemplated by this Agreement is limited and restricted to eight hours during any one calendar day and


forty hours during any one calendar week, provided, that work may be performed by such employee in


excess of said eight hours per day or forty hours per week provided that compensation for all hours


worked in excess of eight hours per day, and forty hours per week, is paid at a rate not less than one and


one-half (1%) times the basic rate of pay. The Contractor and every Subcontractor shall keep an accurate


record showing the name of and the actual hours worked each calendar day and each calendar week by


each worker employed by them in connection with the Work. The records shall be kept open at all


reasonable hours to inspection by representatives of the Owner and the Division of Labor Law


Enforcement. The Contractor shall as a penalty to the Owner forfeit Twenty-five Dollars (525.00) for each


worker employed in the execution of this Agreement by the Contractor or by any subcontractor for each


calendar day during which such worker is required or permitted to work more than eight hours in any one


calendar day, and forty hours in any one calendar week, except as herein provided.


Article lX, Apprentices
The Contractor agrees to comply with Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2, Sections 1777.5 and 1777.6 of the
California Labor Code, which are hereby incorporated and made a part hereof. These sections require


that contractors and subcontractors employ apprentices in apprenticeable occupations in a ratio of not
less than one hour of apprentice's work for each five hours of work performed by a journeyman {unless
an exemption is granted in accordance with Section t777.51and that contractors and subcontractors shall


not discriminate among otherwise qualified employees as indentured apprentices on any public works


solely on the ground of sex, race, religious creed, national origin, ancestry or color. Only apprentices as


defined in Labor Code Section 3O77, who are in training under apprenticeship standards and who have


signed written apprentice agreements, will be employed on public works in apprenticeable occupations.


The responsibility for compliance with these provisions and Labor Code section 7777.5 is fixed with the


Contrastor for all apprenticeable occupations.
Artlcle X, lndemnification and lnsurance
The Contractor will defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, its governing board, officers, agents,


trustees, and employees as provided in the Contract Documents.


By this statement the Contractor represents that it has secured the payment of Workers' Compensation in


compliance with the provisions of the Labor Code of the State of California and during the performance of
the work contemplated herein will continue so to comply with said provisions of said Code. The


Contractor shall supply the Owner with certificates of insurance evidencing that Workers' Compensation


lnsurance is in effect and providing that the Owner will receive thirty (30) days' notice of cancellation.


Contractor shall provide the insurance set forth in the General Conditions.


Article Xl, Entire Agreement
The Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the parties relating to the Project, and


supersedes any prior or contemporaneous agreement between the parties, oral or written, including the


Owner's award of the Project to Contractor, unless such agreement is expressly incorporated herein. The


Owner makes no representations or warranties, express or implied, not specified in the Contract. The


369 of 462







Contract is intended as the complete and exclusive statement of the parties' agreement pursuant to Code
of Civil Procedure section 1855.


Article Xll, Execution of Other Documents
The parties to this Agreement shall cooperate fully in the execution of any and all other documents and in
the completion of any additional actions that may be necessary or appropriate to give full force and effect
to the terms and intent ofthe Contract.


ARTICTE XIII. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS


This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the signatures may appear on separate
signature pages. A copy, or an original, with all signatures appended together, shall be deemed a fully
executed Agreement.


Article XlV, Binding Effect
Contractor, by execution of this Agreement, acknowledges that Contractor has read this Agreement and
the other Contract Documents, understands them, and agrees to be bound by their terms and conditions.
The Contract shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the Contractor and the Owner and
their respective successors and assigns.


Article XV, Severability
lf any provision of the Contract shall be held invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction,
such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof. The Contract shall
be governed by the laws of the State of California. Any action or proceeding seeking any relief under or
with respect to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior Court of the State of California for
the County of Santa Clara, subject to transfer of venue under applicable State law.


Article XVl, Amendments
The terms of the Contract shall not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented or amended in any
manner whatsoever except by wriften agreement signed by the parties and approved or ratified by the
Governing Board.


Artlcle XVll, Assignment of Contract
The Contractor shall not assign or transfer by operation of law or otherwise any or all of its rights,
burdens, duties or obligations without the prior written consent of the surety on the payment bond, the
surety on the performance bond and the Owner.


370 of 462







Article XVlll, Written Notice
Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person to the individual or
member of the firm or to an officer of the corporation for whom it was intended, or if delivered at or sent
by registered or certified or overnight mail to the last business address known to the person who gives


the notice.


Santa Cruz City Schools D and T Painting


District


405 Old San Jose Road


Soquel, California 95073


Name of Company as Licensed


1775 Cork Oak Lane


Manteca, CA 95336


Address


{8311429-3447


Address


(41s\ 240-2930
Telephone Number Telephone Number


a^n lav',.t( " D
Signature Signature


Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent Dimitrios Tantaros, Owner
Business Services


Name / Title Name / Title


1015299


Contractor License Number


C33l June 30,2020
Class / Expiration Date


Corporate Seal (if anyl:


Attachments:
General Conditions for Contract of Construction
Attachments described in Article l, Scope of Work.


Note
Contractor must give the full business address of the Contractor and sign with Contracto/s usual


signature. Partnerships must furnish the full name of all partners and the Agreement must be signed in


the partnership name by a general partner with authority to bind the partnership in such matters,
followed by the signature and designation of the person signing. The name of the person signing shall


also be typed or printed below the signature. Corporations must sign with the legal name of the
corporation, followed by the name of the state of incorporation and by the signature and designation of
the chairman of the board, president or any vice president and then followed by a second signature by


the secretary assistant secretary, the chief financial officer or assistant treasurer. All persons signing must


be authorized to bind the corporation in the matter. The name of each person signing shall also be typed
or printed below the signature. Satisfactory evidence of the authority of the officer signing on behalf of a


corporation shall be furnished.


371 of 462







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


General Conditions 
 


for 
 


Contract of Construction 
 
 


 
 
 


For 
 


Gymnasium Interior Painting 
Santa Cruz High School 


Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
 
 


17 May 2018 
 
 
 


 


372 of 462







373 of 462







 


Table of Contents 
 
ARTICLE 1: General Conditions…………………………………………………………………………………………………………  Page 1


ARTICLE 2: Owner……………………………………………………………………………………………………………….……………  Page 2


ARTICLE 3: The Contractor……………………………………………………………………………………………….…………………  Page 3


ARTICLE 4: Administration of the Contract………………………………………………………………………………………  Page 6


ARTICLE 5: Subcontractors………………………………………………………………………………………….……………………  Page 9


ARTICLE 6: (Reserved)…………………………………………………………………………………………….………………………  Page 10


ARTICLE 7: Changes in the Work………………………………………………………………………………………………………  Page 10


ARTICLE 8: Time………………………………………………………………………………………………..……………………………  Page 12


ARTICLE 9: Payments and Completion………………………………………………………………………………………………  Page 14


ARTICLE 10: Protection of Persons and Property………………………………………………………………………………  Page 16


Article 11: Insurance and Bonds…………………………………………………………….……………………………………….  Page 17


ARTICLE 12: Uncovering and Correction of Work……………………………….……………………………………………..  Page 18


ARTICLE 13: Miscellaneous Provisions…………………………………………….………………………………………………..  Page 19


ARTICLE 14: Termination or Suspension of the Contract……………..……………………………………………………  Page 20


 


Note: Strikethrough sections in this documents shall not be considered part of the contract.  


 


 


374 of 462







375 of 462







  1


ARTICLE 1: General Conditions 
1.1  Basic Definitions 


1.1.1 The Contract Documents 
The Contract Documents consist of the Agreement between Owner and Contractor (hereinafter the 
Agreement), Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and other Conditions), Drawings, 
Specifications, addenda issued prior to bid, instructions to bidders, notice to bidders, the Proposal, 
Payment Bond, Performance Bond, required insurance certificates, additional insured endorsement and 
declarations page, Designation of Subcontractors, Noncollusion Declaration, and the Fingerprinting Notice 
and Acknowledgment and Independent Contractor Student Contact Form, other documents referred to in 
the Agreement, and written modifications issued after execution of the Agreement. 


1.1.2 The Contract 
The Contract Documents form the Contract.  The Contract represents the entire and integrated 
agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or 
agreements, either written or oral.  The Contract Documents shall not be construed to create any kind of 
contractual relationship other than between the Owner and Contractor. 


1.1.3 The Work 
The Work shall include all labor, materials, services, manuals, training, as‐builts, and equipment necessary 
for the Contractor to fulfill all of its obligations pursuant to the Contract Documents.   


1.1.4 The Project 
The Project is the total construction of the Work performed in accordance with the Contract Documents 
in whole or in part and which may include construction by the Owner or by separate contractors. 


1.1.5 The Drawings 
The Drawings are graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents prepared for the Project and 
approved changes thereto, wherever located and whenever issued, showing the design, location, and 
scope of the Work, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules, and diagrams as 
drawn or approved by the Architect. 


1.1.6 The Specifications 
The Specifications are that portion of the Contract Documents consisting of the written requirements for 
material, equipment, construction systems, instructions, quality assurance standards, workmanship, and 
performance of related services. 


1.1.7 The Project Manual 
The Project Manual is the volume usually assembled for the Work which may include, without limitation, 
the bidding requirements, sample forms, Agreement, Conditions of the Contract, and Specifications. 


1.2 Execution, Correlation and Intent 
The Contract Documents are complementary and are intended to include all items required for the proper 
execution and completion of the Work.  Any item of work mentioned in the Specifications and not shown 
on the Drawings, or shown on the Drawings and not mentioned in the Specifications, shall be provided by 
Contractor as if shown or mentioned in both.  In the event there is a discrepancy between the various 
Contract Documents, the Agreement shall control unless there is not an applicable provision in the 
Agreement, in which case the Conditions (General, Supplementary or other Conditions) shall control.  
Without limiting Contractor’s obligation to identify conflicts for resolution by the Architect, it is intended 
that the more stringent, higher quality, and greater quantity of Work shall apply.  Each and every 
provision of law required by law to be inserted in this Contract shall be deemed to be inserted herein, and 
the Contract shall be read and enforced as though it were included herein, and if through mistake or 
otherwise any such provision is not inserted, or is not correctly inserted, then upon application of either 
party the Contract shall be amended in writing to make such insertion or correction. 


1.3  Ownership and Use of Architect’s Drawings, Specifications and Other Documents 
The Drawings, Specifications, and other documents prepared on behalf of the Owner are  instruments of 
the services of the Architect and its consultants and are the property of the Owner.  The Contractor may 
retain one contract record set. 


376 of 462







  2


ARTICLE 2 Owner 


2.1  Definition 
The  term  "Owner" means  the person or  entity  identified  as  such  in  the Agreement  and  is  referred  to 
throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number. The term "Owner" means the Owner or the 
Owner's authorized representative. 


2.2  Existing Utility Lines, Site Survey; Contractor Reliance 
Pursuant to Government Code section 4215, the Owner assumes the responsibility for removal, relocation, 
and protection of utilities  located on  the Site at  the  time of commencement of construction under this 
Contract with respect to any such utility facilities which are not identified in the drawings and specifications 
made part of the invitation to bid. The Contractor shall not be assessed for liquidated damages for delay in 
completion of the Project caused by failure of the Owner to provide for removal or relocation of such utility 
facilities.  Owner shall compensate the Contractor for the costs of locating, repairing damage not due to 
the failure of the Contractor to exercise reasonable care, removing or relocating such utility facilities, and 
for equipment necessarily idle during such work. 


When required by the scope of the Project, the Owner will furnish, at its expense, a legal description or a 
land  survey  of  the  site,  giving,  as  applicable,  grades  and  lines  of  streets,  alleys,  pavements,  adjoining 
property, rights‐of‐way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries, and 
contours  of  the  site.    Surveys  to  determine  locations  of  construction,  grading,  and  site work  shall  be 
provided by the Contractor. 


Any test borings and soils reports for the Project have been made for the Owner to indicate the subsurface 
materials that might be encountered at particular  locations on the Project.   The Owner has made these 
documents available to the Contractor and the Contractor has studied the results of such test borings and 
information that it has as to the subsurface conditions and Site geology as set forth in the test borings and 
soils reports.  The Owner does not assume any responsibility whatsoever with respect to the sufficiency or 
accuracy of the borings made, or of the logs of the test borings, or of other investigations, or of the soils 
reports furnished pursuant hereto, or of the interpretations to be made beyond the location or depth of 
the borings.  There is no warranty or guarantee, either express or implied that the conditions indicated by 
such  investigations, borings,  logs,  soil  reports or other  information are  representative of  those existing 
throughout the site of the Project, or any part thereof, or that unforeseen developments may not occur.  At 
the Owner's request, the Contractor shall make available to the Owner the results of any Site investigation, 
test borings, analyses, studies or other tests conducted by or in the possession of the Contractor of any of 
its agents.  Nothing herein contained shall be deemed a waiver by the Contractor to pursue any available 
legal right or remedy it may have at any time against any third party who may have prepared any report 
and/or test relied upon by the Contractor. 


The Contractor may rely upon the accuracy of any utility services or site survey information that the District 
may provide, except that the Contractor may not rely upon and must question in writing to the Owner and 
the Architect any information which appears incorrect based upon Contractor's Site inspection, knowledge 
of  the Project,  and prior  experience with  similar projects, unless  specifically  stated  in writing  that  the 
Contractor may rely upon the designated information. 


2.3  Owner’s Right to Stop the Work 
If the Contractor fails to correct Work, which is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract 
Documents as required by paragraph 12.2, or persistently fails to carry out Work in accordance with the 
Contract  Documents,  the  Owner,  by  written  order  signed  personally  or  by  an  agent  specifically  so 
empowered by the Owner in writing, may order the Contractor to stop the Work or any portion thereof, 
until the cause for such order has been eliminated. 


2.4  Owner’s Right to Carry out the Work 
If the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and 
fails (within a seven‐day period after receipt of written notice or the time period expressly stated  in the 
written notice  from  the Owner)  to  commence and  continue  correction of  such default or neglect with 
diligence and promptness, the Owner may correct such deficiencies by whatever reasonable method the 


377 of 462







  3


Owner may deem expedient without prejudice to other remedies the Owner may have, and may withhold 
for the cost of such correction. 


 


ARTICLE 3 The Contractor 


3.1  Definition 
The Contractor is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the 
Contract  Documents  as  if  singular  in  number.    The  term  "Contractor" means  the  Contractor  or  the 
Contractor's authorized representatives.  To the extent that any portion of the Work is provided with the 
Contractor's own forces, any reference to Subcontractors shall be equally applicable to the Contractor.  If 
any of the Work is performed by contractors retained directly by the Owner, Contractor shall be responsible 
for the coordination and sequencing of the Work of those other contractors so as to avoid any impact on 
the Project Schedule. 


 
3.2 Supervision and Construction Procedures 
 
3.2.1  Contractor  


The Contractor  shall  supervise and direct  the Work using  the Contractor's best  skill and attention. The 
Contractor shall be solely responsible for and have control over construction means, methods, techniques, 
sequences, procedures,  and  coordinating all portions of  the Work under  the Contract, unless Contract 
Documents give other specific instructions concerning these matters.   


 
3.2.2  Contractor Responsibility 


The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for acts and omissions of the Contractor's employees, 
Subcontractors,  material  and  equipment  suppliers,  and  their  agents,  employees,  invitees,  and  other 
persons performing portions of the Work under direct or indirect contract with the Contractor or any of its 
Subcontractors. 


 
3.2.3  Obligations not Changed by Architect's Actions 


The Contractor shall not be relieved of obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents either by activities or duties of the Architect in the Architect's administration of the Contract, 
or by  activities or duties of  the  Inspector of Record, or by  tests,  inspections, or  approvals  required or 
performed by persons other than the Contractor. 


 
3.2.4  Contractor Responsibility for Readiness for Work 


The  Contractor  shall  be  responsible  for  inspection  of  Work  already  performed  under  the  Contract 
Documents to determine that such portions are in proper condition to receive subsequent work. 


 
3.3  Superintendent 


The Contractor shall provide a competent superintendent and assistants as necessary, all of whom shall be 
reasonably proficient in speaking, reading and writing English and, who shall be in attendance at the Project 
site  during  performance  of  the  Work.    The  superintendent  shall  represent  the  Contractor,  and 
communications  given  to  the  superintendent  shall  be  as  binding  as  if  given  to  the  Contractor.    The 
Contractor and each Subcontractor  shall:  furnish a  competent and adequate  staff as necessary  for  the 
proper administration, coordination, supervision, and superintendence of its portion of the Work; organize 
the procurement of all materials and equipment so that the materials and equipment will be available at 
the  time  they are needed  for  the Work;  and  keep  an  adequate  force of  skilled workers on  the  job  to 
complete the Work in accordance with all requirements of the Contract Documents.  Owner shall have the 
right, but not the obligation, to require the removal from the Project of any superintendent, staff member, 
agent, or employee of any Contractor, Subcontractor, material or equipment supplier, etc., for cause. 
 
 
 


378 of 462







  4


3.3 Labor and Materials 
Unless otherwise provided  in  the Contract Documents,  the Contractor  shall provide and pay  for  labor, 
material, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, 
and other  facilities  and  services necessary  for proper  execution  and  completion of  the Work whether 
temporary  or  permanent  and whether  or  not  incorporated  or  to  be  incorporated  in  the Work.    The 
Contractor shall be responsible for cutting, fitting, or patching required to complete the Work or to make 
its parts fit together properly. 


 
3.4 Warranty 


The Contractor warrants  to  the Owner and Architect  that material and equipment  furnished under  the 
Contract  will  be  of  good  quality  and  new  unless  otherwise  required  or  permitted  by  the  Contract 
Documents, that the Work will be free from defects not inherent in the quality required or permitted, and 
that the Work will conform with the requirements of the Contract Documents, per Section 12.2.  


 
3.6  Taxes 


Contractor will pay all applicable Federal, State, and local taxes on all materials, labor, or services furnished 
by  it, and all  taxes arising out of  its operations under  the Contract Documents.   Owner  is exempt  from 
Federal Excise Tax, and a Certificate of Exemption shall be provided upon request.  


 
3.7  Permits, Fees and Notices 


The  Contractor  shall  secure  and  pay  for  all  permits  and  governmental  fees,  licenses,  and  inspections 
necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work which are customarily secured after execution 
of the Contract and are legally required by any authority having jurisdiction over the Project, except those 
required by the Division of the State Architect (DSA).   


 
3.8  Allowances 


The Contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents.  Items 
covered by allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons or entities as the Owner 
may direct, but  the Contractor  shall not be  required  to  employ persons or  entities  against whom  the 
Contractor makes reasonable and timely objection. 


 
3.9  Contractor’s Construction Schedules 


The Contractor, promptly after being awarded the Contract, shall prepare and submit for the Owner's and 
the Architect's  information the construction schedule  for the Work. The schedule shall not exceed time 
limits current under the Contract Documents and shall comply with all of the scheduling as required by 
Division 1 of the Specifications.  Failure of the Contractor to provide proper schedules as required by this 
paragraph may, at the sole discretion of Owner, constitute either grounds to withhold, in whole or in part, 
progress payments to the Contractor, or a breach of contract allowing Owner to terminate the Agreement 
between Owner and Contractor. 


 
3.10  Documents and Samples at the Site 


The Contractor shall maintain at the Site for the Owner one applicable copy of Titles 19 and 24 and record 
copy of the Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders, and other Modifications, in good order and 
marked currently to record changes and selections made during construction.  In addition, the Contractor 
shall maintain at the Site approved Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar required submittals.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


379 of 462







  5


3.11  Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples 
 
  3.11.1.1 Shop Drawings 


The term "shop drawings" as used herein means drawings, diagrams, schedules, and other data, which are 
prepared by Contractor, Subcontractors, manufacturers, suppliers, or distributors illustrating some portion 
of  the Work.    The  Contractor  shall  obtain  and  submit with  the  shop  drawings  all  seismic  and  other 
calculations and all product data from equipment manufacturers.  Shop drawings shall: establish the actual 
detail of all manufactured or fabricated items, indicate proper relation to adjoining work, amplify design 
details of mechanical and electrical systems and equipment  in proper relation  to physical spaces  in  the 
structure, and incorporate minor changes of design or construction to suit actual conditions. 


 
  3.11.1.2 Samples. 


The term "samples" as used herein are physical examples furnished by Contractor to illustrate materials, 
equipment, or quality.  All Work shall be in accordance with the approved samples. 
 


  3.11.1.3 Contractor's Responsibility. 
Contractor shall obtain and shall submit to Architect all required shop drawings and samples in accordance 
with Contractor's "Schedule for Submission of Shop Drawings and Samples" as required in the Specifications 
with such promptness as to cause no delay in its own Work or in that of any other contractor, Owner or 
subcontractor but in no event later than ninety (90) days after the execution of the Agreement.  Review by 
Owner  and  Architect  shall  not  relieve  the  Contractor  or  any  Subcontractor  from  its  responsibility  in 
preparing and submitting proper shop drawings, product data and samples in accordance with the Contract 
Documents.  Any submission, which in Architect's opinion is incomplete, contains numerous errors, or has 
been checked only superficially by Contractor will be returned unreviewed by the Architect for resubmission 
by the Contractor.  Contractor shall not commence any portion of the Work requiring a shop drawing or 
sample submission until the Architect has approved the submission. 


 
  3.11.1.4 Extent of Review. 


In reviewing shop drawings, the Architect will not verify dimensions and field conditions.  The Architect will 
review and approve shop drawings, product data, and samples for aesthetics and for conformance with the 
design concept of the Work and the information given in the Contract Documents.  The Architect’s review 
shall not relieve the Contractor from responsibility for any deviations from the requirements of the Contract 
Documents unless the Architect has given specific written approval.  Contractor and Subcontractors shall 
be solely responsible for determining any quantities, whether or not shown on the shop drawings. 


 
  13.11.1.5 Substitution. 


Unless the Specifications state that no substitution is permitted, whenever in the Contract Documents any 
specific brand or trade name is specified such specification shall be deemed to be followed by the words 
“or equal.”  The Owner may consider an untimely substitution request if the product specified is no longer 
commercially available. 


 
3.12  Cleaning Up 


The Contractor  shall  keep  the  Site  and  surrounding  area  free  from  accumulation of waste material or 
rubbish caused by operations under the Contract.  The Site shall be maintained in a safe, neat and orderly 
condition.  If the Contractor fails to clean up as provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner may do so, 
without prior notice to the Contractor and the cost thereof shall be invoiced to the Contractor and withheld 
from progress payments and/or retention.  When directed by the Owner or the Architect, Contractor and 
Subcontractor shall dismantle temporary structures, if any, and remove from the Site all construction and 
installation equipment, fences, scaffolding, surplus materials, rubbish, and supplies belonging to Contractor 
or Subcontractor.   


 
 
 


380 of 462







  6


3.13  Access to the Work 
The Contractor shall provide the Owner, the Architect, and the Inspector, access to the Work in preparation 
and progress wherever located. 


 
3.14  Royalties from Patents 


The Contractor  shall pay  all  royalties  and  license  fees.    The Contractor  shall defend  suits or  claims of 
infringement of patent rights and shall hold the Owner and the Architect harmless and  indemnify them 
from loss on account thereof but shall not be responsible for such defense or loss when a particular design, 
process, or product of a particular manufacturer is required by the Contract Documents, unless Contractor 
has reason to believe it is an infringement of a patent and does not inform Architect.   


 
3.15  Indemnification 


To  the  fullest extent permitted by  law,  the Contractor  shall defend,  indemnify,  and hold harmless  the 
Owner, the construction manager, Architect, Architect's consultants, the Inspector of Record, the State of 
California, and their respective agents, employees, officers, volunteers, Boards of Trustees, members of the 
Boards  of  Trustees,  and  directors,  from  and  against  claims,  liability,  damages,  losses,  and  expenses 
(including, but not  limited  to, attorneys'  fees and  costs  including  fees of  consultants) arising out of or 
resulting  from  performance  of  the Work  by  Contractor;  or  any  act,  omission,  negligence,  or  willful 
misconduct  of  the  Contractor  or  its  Subcontractors  or  their  respective  agents,  employees, material  or 
equipment suppliers, invitees, or licensees but only to the extent caused in whole or in part by the acts or 
omissions of the Contractor, its Subcontractors, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or 
anyone for whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss, or expense 
is  caused  in part by a party  indemnified hereunder.   Such obligation  shall not be  construed  to negate, 
abridge, or  reduce other  rights or obligations of  indemnity, which would otherwise exist as  to a party, 
person, or entity described in this paragraph. 


 
ARTICLE 4:  Administration of the Contract 
 
4.1  Architect 


The term "Architect" means the Architect or the Architect's authorized representative, shall also refer to 
all consultants under the Architect's direction and control, and is referred to as if singular in number.  The 
Architect is one of potentially several agents and representatives on the Project. 


 
4.2 Architect’s Administration of the Contract 
 
4.2.1 Status 


The Architect may provide administration of the Contract as described in the Contract Documents and 
may be one of several Owner's representatives during construction. 


 
4.2.2  Limitations of Construction Responsibility 


The Contractor shall not be relieved of obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents either by activities or duties of the Architect, or by tests, inspections, or approvals required or 
performed by persons other than the Contractor.   
 


4.2.3  Communications Facilitating Contract Administration 
Except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents or when direct communications are warranted by 
special circumstances, the Owner and the Contractor shall communicate through the Architect, unless there 
is a construction manager for the Project or the Owner directs otherwise.   
 


4.2.4  Rejection of Work‐ 
In addition to the rights, duties, and obligations of the Inspector under this Article, the Architect may 
recommend to the Owner that the Owner reject Work which does not conform to the Contract 
Documents.   


381 of 462







  7


4.3  Project Inspector 
If determined necessary by  the Owner and Architect, one or more project  inspectors employed by  the 
Owner and approved by the Division of the State Architect will be assigned to the Work in accordance with 
the  requirements  of  Title24  of  the  California  Code  of  Regulations.    The  Inspector(s)  duties will  be  as 
specifically defined  in Title24.   All Work shall be under the observation of or with the knowledge of the 
Inspector.  The Inspector shall have free access to any or all parts of the Work at any time.  The Contractor 
shall  furnish  the  Inspector  such  information as may be necessary  to  keep  the  Inspector  fully  informed 
regarding progress and manner of work and character of materials.  Such observations shall not, in any way, 
relieve the Contractor from responsibility for full compliance with all terms and conditions of the Contract, 
or be construed to lessen to any degree the Contractor's responsibility for providing efficient and capable 
superintendence.  The Inspector is not authorized to make changes in the drawings or specifications.  The 
Inspector shall have the authority to reject work that does not comply with the provisions of the Contract 
Documents.  In addition, the Inspector may stop any Work which poses a probable risk of harm to persons 
or property.   


 
4.4  Responsibility for Additional Charges Incurred by the Owner for Professional Service 


If at any time prior to the completion of the requirements under the Contract Documents, through no fault 
of its own, the Owner is required to provide or secure additional professional services for any reason by any 
act or omission of  the Contractor,  the Contractor  shall be  invoiced by  the Owner  for  any  actual  costs 
incurred for any such additional services, which costs may, among other remedies, be withheld from the 
progress payments and/or retention.   


 
4.5  Claims 
 
4.5.1  General 


A Claim is a demand or assertion by Contractor seeking, as a matter of right, adjustment or interpretation 
of Contract terms, payment of money, extension of time, or other relief with respect to the terms of the 
Contract.  Claims must be made by written notice.  The responsibility to substantiate Claims shall rest with 
the Contractor.  Contractor may only submit a Claim after having complied with the requirements in Article 
7, as applicable, for the same matters. 
 
Claims, including those alleging an error or omission by the Architect, shall be submitted to the Architect 
and Owner.  A timely decision by the Owner shall be provided.  Claims must be made by written notice prior 
to the final progress payment.  An additional Claim made after the initial Claim has been implemented by 
Change Order will not be considered.  The failure of the Contractor to make a Claim within the specified 
time  shall  constitute  an  express  waiver  of  any  right  to  assert  such  Claim,  whether  affirmatively  or 
defensively.    Despite  submission  or  rejection  of  a  Claim,  the  Contractor  shall  proceed  diligently with 
performance  of  the  Contract,  and  the  Owner  shall  continue  to  make  any  undisputed  payments  in 
accordance with the Contract.  When any excavation or trenching extends greater than four feet below the 
surface, Public Contract Code section 7104 shall control. 
 
The Contractor shall certify, at the time of submission of a Claim, as follows: 
 


I, ___________, being the ________ (Must be an officer) of _________ (Contractor), 
declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, and do 
personally certify and attest that:  I have thoroughly reviewed the attached Claim for 
additional cost and/or extension of time, and know its contents, and said Claim is made in 
good faith; the supporting data is truthful, accurate and complete; that the amount 
requested accurately reflects the adjustment for which the Contractor believes the Owner 
is liable; and further, that I am familiar with California Penal Code section 72 pertaining to 
false claims, and further know and understand that submission or certification of a false 
claim may lead to fines, imprisonment and/or other severe legal consequences. 
By:  _____________ 


382 of 462







  8


Contractor understands and agrees that any Claim submitted without this certification does not meet the terms of 
the Contract Documents, that Owner, or Owner's representatives, may reject the Claim on that basis and that 
unless Contractor properly and timely files the Claim with the certification, Contractor cannot further pursue the 
Claim in any forum.  A condition precedent will not have been satisfied. 
 
4.5.2  Claims for Concealed or Unknown Conditions 
 
  4.5.2.1  Trenches or Excavations Less Than Four Feet Below the Surface. 


If  Contractor  encounters  conditions  at  the  Site which  are  subsurface  or  otherwise  concealed  physical 
conditions, which differ materially from those indicated in the Contract Documents, or unknown physical 
conditions of an unusual nature, which differ materially from those ordinarily found to exist and generally 
recognized as inherent in construction activities of the character provided for in the Contract Documents, 
then notice by the Contractor shall be given to the Owner promptly before conditions are disturbed and in 
no event  later  than  ten  (10) days after  first observance of  the  conditions.   The Architect will promptly 
investigate  such  conditions,  and  if  they  differ  materially  and  cause  an  increase  or  decrease  in  the 
Contractor's  cost  of,  time  required  for,  or  performance  of  any  part  of  the Work, will  recommend  an 
equitable adjustment  in the Contract Sum, Contract Time, or both.    If the Architect determines that the 
conditions at the Site are not materially different from those indicated in the Contract Documents and that 
no change in the terms of the Contract is justified, the Architect shall so notify the Owner and the Contractor 
in writing, stating the reasons.  Claims by either party in opposition to such determination must be made 
within ten (10) days after the Architect has given notice of the decision.  If the Owner and the Contractor 
cannot agree on an adjustment in the Contract Sum or the Contract Time, the adjustment shall be referred 
to the Architect for initial determination, subject to other proceedings pursuant to paragraph 4.6. 


 
  4.5.2.2  Trenches or Excavations Greater Than Four Feet Below the Surface. 


Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 7104, when any excavation or trenching extends greater than four 
feet below the surface: 


 
    4.5.2.2.1  The Contractor shall promptly, and before the following conditions are disturbed, notify 


the public entity, in writing, of any: 
 
      (1)  Material that the Contractor believes may be material that is hazardous waste, 


as defined in Section 25117 of the Health and Safety Code, that is required to be removed to a 
Class I, Class II, or Class III disposal site in accordance with the provisions of existing law. 


 
      (2)  Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site differing from those 


indicated by information about the site made available to bidders prior to the deadline for 
submitting bids. 


 
      (3)  Unknown physical conditions at the site of any unusual nature, different 


materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the 
character provided for in the Contract. 


 
    4.5.2.2.2  The public entity shall promptly investigate the conditions, and if it finds that the 


conditions do materially so differ, or do involve hazardous waste, and cause a decrease or 
increase in the Contractor's cost of, or the time required for, performance of any part of the 
work shall issue a change order under the procedures described in the Contract. 


 
    4.5.2.2.3  In the event that a dispute arises between the public entity and the Contractor whether 
the conditions materially differ, or involve hazardous waste, or cause a decrease or increase in the Contractor's 
cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the work, the Contractor shall not be excused from any 
scheduled completion date provided for by the Contract, but shall proceed with all work to be performed under 
the Contract.  The Contractor shall retain any and all rights provided either by Contract or by law which pertain to 


383 of 462







  9


the resolution of disputes and protests between the contracting parties. 
 
4.6  Claims of $375,000 or less 


Notwithstanding any other provision herein, claims of $375,000 or  less shall be handled pursuant to the 
procedures set forth  in Public Contract Code sections 20104.2,  including claim, response,  informal meet 
and confer conference, and Government Code claim.  As a precedent to initiation of any litigation against 
the  Owner,  Contractor  must  observe  and  comply  with  the  Government  Code  claim  procedures  in 
Government  Code  sections  901  et  seq.  after  completion  of  the  contractual  claim  procedures  above, 
including  but  not  limited  to  timely  presentation  of  a Government  Code  claim.    The  claim  procedures 
described herein do not supercede or replace the requirement of a Government Code claim, and the two 
claim procedures shall be sequential. 


 
4.7  Claims in excess of $375,000 


Claims over $375,000 shall be handled by Contractor and Owner pursuant to Section 4.6, above, except as 
follows:  (a) Procedures in Public Contract Code section 20104.2(b) shall not be applicable; (b) Owner shall 
respond in writing to all written Claims within 90 days of receipt of the Claim, or may request, in writing, 
within 45 days of receipt of the Claim, any additional documentation supporting the Claim or relating to 
defenses to the Claim the Owner may have against the Contractor; (c) Owner shall respond within 45 days 
after receipt of the further documentation, or within a period of time no greater than that taken by the 
Contractor  in  producing  the  additional  information  or  documentation,  whichever  is  greater;  and  (d) 
following any meet and confer conference pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20104.2(d), if the Claim 
or any portion of  it  remains  in dispute and Contractor wishes  to pursue  it, Contractor must demand  in 
writing within fifteen (15) days that the parties mediate, and such requirement for mediation shall not toll 
or  supercede  the  requirement  for  submission  of  a Government Code  claim,  as  specifically  required  in 
Section 4.6 above.  If Contractor fails to timely notify the Owner that it wishes to mediate pursuant to this 
paragraph,  then  Contractor will  have waived  all  rights  to  further  pursue  the  Claim.    The  parties  shall 
reasonably cooperate to schedule and attend a mediation as soon as reasonably possible. 


 
ARTICLE 5:  Subcontractors 
 
5.1  Definitions 
 
5.1.1  Subcontractor 


A Subcontractor is a person or entity, who has a contract with the Contractor to perform a portion of the 
Work at the Site.  The term "Subcontractor" is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular 
in number and means a Subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Subcontractor.   The term 
"Subcontractor" does not include a separate contractor or subcontractors of a separate contractor.  To the 
extent that the term Trade Contractor is utilized in the Contract Documents, it shall have the same meaning 
as the term "Subcontractor."  


 
5.1.2  Sub‐Subcontractor  


A Sub‐subcontractor  is a person or entity who has a direct or  indirect contract with a Subcontractor  to 
perform a portion of  the Work at  the Site. The  term "Sub‐subcontractor"  is  referred  to  throughout  the 
Contract  Documents  as  if  singular  in  number  and  means  a  Sub‐subcontractor  or  an  authorized 
representative of the Sub‐subcontractor. 
 
 


 
5.2  Award of Subcontracts and other Contracts for Portions of the Work 


Subcontractors shall be listed by Contractor pursuant to Public Contract Code section 4104.  Subcontractor 
substitution  shall be handled  in accordance with Public Contract Code  sections 4107 and 4107.5.   Any 
substitutions of Subcontractors shall not result in any increase in the Contract Sum or the granting of any 
extension of time for the completion of the Project. 


384 of 462







  10


5.3  Sub contractual Relations 
By appropriate agreement, written where  legally required  for validity, the Contractor shall require each 
Subcontractor,  to  the  extent  of  the Work  to  be performed by  the  Subcontractor,  to  be  bound  to  the 
Contractor by terms of the Contract Documents, and to assume toward the Contractor all obligations and 
responsibilities, which  the Contractor, by  the Contract Documents, assumes  toward  the Owner and  the 
Architect 


 
5.4  Contingent Assignment of Subcontracts 
 


Each subcontract agreement for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Contractor to the Owner provided 
that: 


 
  A.  Assignment is effective only after termination of the Contract with the Contractor by the Owner 


for cause pursuant to Article 14 and only for those subcontract agreements which the Owner 
accepts by notifying the Subcontractor in writing; and 


 
  B.  Assignment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under any bond relating 


to the Contract. 
 
ARTICLE 6[reserved] 
ARTICLE 7:  Changes in the Work 
 
7.1  Changes 
 
7.1.1  No Changes Without Authorization 


The Owner reserves the right to make such alterations, deviations, additions to, or deletions from the 
plans and specifications, as may be deemed by the Owner to be necessary or advisable for the proper 
completion or construction of the Work contemplated, and the right to require Contractor to perform 
such work.  There shall be no change whatsoever in the drawings, specifications, or in the Work without 
an executed Change Order, Construction Change Directive, or order by the Architect for a minor change in 
the Work as herein provided.  Owner shall not be liable for the cost of any extra work or any substitutions, 
changes, additions, omissions, or deviations from the Drawings and Specifications unless the same shall 
have been authorized by and the cost thereof approved in writing by Change Order or executed 
Construction Change Directive.  No extension of time for performance of the Work shall be allowed 
hereunder unless claim for such extension is made at the time changes in the Work are ordered, and such 
time duly adjusted in writing in the Change Order. 


 
7.1.2  Architect Authority 


The Architect will have authority to order minor changes in the Work not involving any adjustment in the 
Contract Sum, an extension of the Contract Time, or a change which is inconsistent with the intent of the 
Contract Documents.  Such changes shall be effected by written Change Order and shall be binding on the 
Owner and the Contractor.  The Contractor shall carry out such written orders promptly. 


 
7.2  Change Orders ("CO") 


A CO  is a written  instrument prepared by  the Architect and  signed by  the Owner,  the Contractor,  the 
Architect, and the DSA, stating their agreement upon all of the following: (A) A change in the Work; (B) the 
amount of the adjustment in the Contract Sum, if any; and (C) the extent of the adjustment in the Contract 
Time, if any. 


 
7.3  Construction Change Directives ("CCD") 


A CCD is a written order prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner and the Architect, directing a 
change in the Work and stating a proposed basis for adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or Contract 
Time, or both. The Owner may by CCD, without invalidating the Contract, order changes in the Work within 


385 of 462







  11


the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions, or other revisions the Contract Sum 
and Contract Time being adjusted accordingly.  A CCD shall be used in the absence of agreement on the 
terms of a CO. 


 
7.4  Request For Information ("RFI") 


An  RFI  is  a  written  request  prepared  by  the  Contractor  asking  the  Architect  to  provide  additional 
information necessary to clarify an item which the Contractor feels is not clearly shown or called for in the 
drawings or specifications, or to address problems which have arisen under field conditions.  The RFI shall 
reference  all  the  applicable  Contract Documents  including  specification  section,  detail,  page  numbers, 
drawing numbers, and sheet numbers, etc.  The Contractor shall make suggestions and/or interpretations 
of  the  issue raised by  the RFI.   An RFI cannot modify  the Contract Cost, Contract Time, or  the Contract 
Documents.  The Owner and Contractor agree that an adequate time period for the Architect to respond to 
an RFI is generally fourteen (14) calendar days after the Architect’s receipt of an RFI, unless the Owner and 
Contractor agree otherwise in writing.  However, in all cases, the Architect shall take such time, whether 
more or  less  than 14 days, as  is necessary  in  the Architect’s professional  judgment  to permit adequate 
review and evaluation of the RFI.  The Contractor shall be invoiced by the Owner for any costs incurred for 
professional services, which shall be withheld from progress payments and/or retention, if an RFI requests 
an  interpretation or decision of a matter where the  information sought  is equally available to the party 
making such request. 


 
 
7.5  Request for Proposal ("RFP") 


An RFP is a written request prepared by the Architect asking the Contractor to submit to the Owner and the 
Architect an estimate of the effect of a proposed change on the Contract Sum and the Contract Time.  An 
RFP shall contain adequate  information,  including any necessary drawings and specifications,  to enable 
Contractor to provide the cost breakdowns required by paragraph 7.7.  The Contractor shall not be entitled 
to any Additional Compensation for preparing a response to an RFP, whether ultimately accepted or not. 


 
7.6  Change Order Request ("COR") 


A COR is a written request prepared by the Contractor asking the Owner and the Architect to incorporate a 
proposed change called for in an RFP or a notice of claim into a CO.  A COR shall include breakdowns to 
validate  any  change  in  Contract  Sum  due  to  proposed  change  or  claim.    (See  attached  COR  form  for 
breakdowns.)  A COR shall also include any additional time required to complete the Project.  Any additional 
time requested shall not be the number of days to make the proposed change, but must be based upon the 
impact to the Project Schedule as defined in paragraph 3.9 and Division 1 of the Specifications. 


 
7.7  Cost of Change Orders 
 
7.7.1  Scope 


Within ten (10) days or such lesser period of time as may be required by Owner after a request is made for 
a change that impacts the Contract Sum or the Contract Time, the Contractor shall provide to the Owner 
and the Architect in writing an estimate of the effect of the proposed CO upon the Contract Sum and the 
actual cost of construction, which shall include a complete itemized cost breakdown of all labor and material 
showing actual quantities, hours, unit prices, wage rates, required for the change, and the effect upon the 
Contract Time of such CO.  Changes may be made by Owner by an appropriate written CO, or, at the Owner's 
option, such changes shall be implemented immediately upon the Contractor's receipt of an appropriate 
written CCD. 


 
7.7.2  Determination of Cost 


The amount of the increase or decrease in the Contract Sum resulting from a CO, if any, shall be determined 
in one or more of the following ways as applicable to a specific situation: (A) Mutual acceptance of a lump 
sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to permit evaluation; (B) unit prices 
stated in the Contractor's original bid, the Contract Documents, or subsequently agreed upon between the 


386 of 462







  12


Owner and the Contractor; (C) cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually 
acceptable fixed or percentage fee; or (D) by cost of material and labor and percentage of overhead and 
profit.    Contractor  and  Subcontractors may mark  up  their  own work  by  15%  for  overhead,  bond  and 
insurance premiums, and profit.  Contractor may mark up a Subcontractor’s total costs by 15%. 


 
7.7.3  Accounting Records 


With respect to portions of the Work performed by COs and CCDs on a time‐and‐materials, unit‐cost, or 
similar basis, the Contractor shall keep and maintain cost‐accounting records satisfactory to the Owner, 
which shall be available to the Owner on the same terms as any other books and records the Contractor is 
required to maintain under the Contract Documents. 


 
7.7.4  Notice Required 


If  the  Contractor  desires  an  increase  in  the  Contract  Sum,  or  any  extension  in  the  Contract  Time  for 
completion, it shall give the Owner and the Architect written notice thereof within ten (10) days after the 
occurrence of  the event giving  rise  to  the claim,  together with detailed estimates of  the  impact on  the 
Contract Sum and/or the Contract Time.  This notice shall be given by the Contractor before proceeding to 
execute the Work, except in an emergency endangering life or property, in which case the Contractor shall 
proceed  in  accordance  with  paragraph  10.4  hereof.    No  notice  shall  be  considered  unless  made  in 
accordance with this Subparagraph; however, the mere presentation of such claim shall not establish the 
validity of the cause giving rise to such claim, or of the extension of the Contract Time, and/or the increase 
in the Contract Sum.  Contractor shall proceed to execute the Work even though the adjustment has not 
been agreed upon.  Any change in the Contract Sum or extension of the Contract Time resulting from such 
claim shall be authorized by a CO. 


 
ARTICLE 8: Time 
 
8.1          Definitions 
 
8.1.1  Contract Time 


Unless otherwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized adjustments, allotted 
in the Contract Documents for Completion of the Work. 
 


8.1.2  Notice to Proceed 
The date of commencement of the Work is the date established in the Notice to Proceed.  The date shall 
not be postponed by the failure to act of the Contractor or of persons or entities for whom the Contractor 
is responsible. 


 
8.1.3  Days 


The term "day" as used in the Contract Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise specifically 
defined. 


 
8.2  Hours of Work 
 
8.2.1  Sufficient Forces 


Contractors and Subcontractors shall  furnish sufficient  forces  to ensure  the prosecution of  the Work  in 
accordance with the Construction Schedule. 
 


8.2.2  Performance During Working Hours 
Work shall be performed during regular working hours except that in the event of an emergency or when 
required to complete the Work in accordance with job progress, work may be performed outside of regular 
working hours with the advance written consent of the Owner. 


 
 


387 of 462







  13


8.2.3  Labor Code Application 
As provided in Article 3 (commencing at § 1810), Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 of the Labor Code, eight (8) 
hours of labor shall constitute a legal day's work.  The time of service of any worker employed at any time 
by the Contractor or by any Subcontractor on any subcontract under this Contract, upon the work or upon 
any part of the work contemplated by this Contract, is limited and restricted to eight (8) hours during any 
one  calendar day  and  forty  (40) hours during  any one  calendar week,  except  as hereinafter provided.  
Notwithstanding  the provision hereinabove  set  forth, work performed by  employees of Contractors  in 
excess of eight (8) hours per day and forty (40) hours during any one week shall be permitted upon this 
public work with compensation provided for all hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours per day at not less 
than one and one‐half (1‐1/2) times the basic rate of pay. 
 
Contractor or  subcontractor  shall pay  to  the Owner a penalty of Twenty‐five Dollars  ($25.00)  for each 
worker employed  in the execution of this Contract by the Contractor, or by any Subcontractor, for each 
calendar day during which such worker is required or permitted to work more than eight (8) hours in any 
calendar day and forty (40) hours in any one (1) calendar week, in violation of the provisions of Article 3 
(commencing at § 1810), Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 of  the  Labor Code, unless  compensation  for  the 
workers so employed by Contractor is not less than one and one‐half (1‐1/2) times the basic rate of pay for 
all hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours per day. 
 


8.3  Progress and Completion 
Time  limits  stated  in  the  Contract  Documents  are  of  the  essence  of  the  Contract.    By  executing  the 
Agreement the Contractor confirms that the Contract Time is a reasonable period for performing the Work.  
The Contractor shall not knowingly, except by agreement or instruction of the Owner, in writing, commence 
operations on the Site or elsewhere prior to the effective date of  insurance required by Article 11 to be 
furnished by the Contractor.  The date of commencement of the Work shall not be changed by the effective 
date of such insurance.  The Contractor shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve 
Completion within the Contract Time. 
 


8.4  Extensions of Time – Liquidated Damages 
 
8.4.1  Excusable Delay 


The Contractor shall not be charged for liquidated damages, as set forth in the Agreement, because of any 
delays in completion of the Work due to acts of God, acts of public enemy, acts of Government, acts of the 
Owner or anyone employed by it, acts of another contractor in performance of a contract (other than this 
Contract)  with  the  Owner,  fires,  floods,  epidemics,  quarantine  restrictions,  strikes,  unusually  severe 
weather, or delays of subcontractors due to such causes. 


 
8.4.2  Notice by Contractor Required 


The Contractor shall within ten (10) calendar days of beginning of any such delay (unless Owner grants in 
writing a further period of time to file such notice prior to the date of final payment under the Contract) 
notify the Owner in writing of causes of delay.  Owner will then ascertain the facts and extent of the delay 
and grant an extension of time for completing the Work when, in its judgment, the findings of fact justify 
such  an  extension.    The Owner's  findings of  fact  thereon  shall be  final  and  conclusive on  the parties.  
Extensions of time shall apply only to that portion of the Work affected by the delay and shall not apply to 
other portions of the Work not so affected.  The sole remedy of Contractor for extensions of time under 
paragraph 8.4.1 shall be an extension of the Contract Time at no cost to the Owner. 


 
8.4.3  Conditions for Extension of Time 


If the Contractor  is delayed at any time  in progress of the Work by an act or neglect of the Owner, the 
Architect, an employee of either, or of a separate contractor employed by the Owner, by changes ordered 
in  the Work,  by  labor  disputes,  fire,  unusual  delay  in  deliveries,  or  unavoidable  casualties,  by  delay 
authorized by the Owner pending arbitration, or by other causes which the Architect determines may justify 
delay, then the Contract Time shall be extended by Change Order for such reasonable time as the Architect 


388 of 462







  14


may determine.  Claims relating to time extensions shall be made in accordance with applicable provisions 
of Article 7.  


 
8.4.4  Early Completion 


Regardless of the cause therefore, the Contractor may not maintain any Claim or cause of action against 
the Owner for damages incurred as a result of its failure or inability to complete its work on the Project in 
a shorter period than established in the Contract Documents. 


 
8.4.5  Liquidated Damages 


Failure to complete the Project within the time and in the manner provided for by the Contract Documents 
shall subject the Contractor to liquidated damages, as described in the Agreement.   


 
8.5  Government Approvals 


Owner shall not be  liable for any delays or damages related to the time required to obtain government 
approvals. 


 
ARTICLE 9: Payments and Completion 
 
9.1  Contract Sum 


The Contract Sum is stated in the Agreement and, including authorized adjustments, is the total amount 
payable by the Owner to the Contractor for performance of the Work under the Contract Documents. 


 
9.2  Cost Breakdown 


On forms approved by the Owner within ten (10) days of the mailing, faxing or delivery of the Notice of 
Award of the Contract, the Contractor shall furnish a schedule of values and a list of all subcontractors and 
suppliers.  The Owner shall review all submissions received in a timely manner.  All submissions must be 
approved by the Owner before becoming the basis of any payment. 
 


9.3  Applications for Payment 
On or before the fifth (5th) day of each calendar month during the progress of the portion of the Work for 
which payment is being requested, the Contractor shall submit to the Owner an itemized Application for 
Payment for operations completed in accordance with the Schedule of Values.  As the Contractor is required 
to order, obtain, and store materials and equipment sufficiently in advance of its Work at no additional cost 
or advance payment from Owner, to assure that there will be no delays, payment by the Owner for stored 
material shall be made only in unusual circumstances where the Owner specifically approves the payment 
in writing.  The Contractor warrants that title to all Work covered by an Application for Payment will pass 
to the Owner no later than the time of payment.   


 
9.4  Review of Progress Payment 


The Owner will, within  seven  (7) days after  receipt of  the Contractor's Application  for Payment, either 
approve such payment or notify the Contractor in writing of the Owner's reasons for withholding approval 
in whole or in part.  The review of the Contractor's Application for Payment by the Owner is based on the 
Owner’s observations at the Site and the data comprising the Application for Payment whether the Work 
has progressed to the point indicated and whether, to the best of the Owner’s knowledge, information, and 
belief, the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents.   
 


 
9.5  Decision to Withhold Payment 


The Owner may decide to withhold payment  in whole, or  in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to 
protect the Owner.  In addition, the Owner may withhold payment, in whole, or in part, to such extent as 
may be necessary to protect the Owner from loss because of any acts or omissions by Contractor, including 
any rights to withhold mentioned in the Contract Documents. 


 


389 of 462







  15


9.6  Progress Payments 
Progress payments shall be made in accordance with Public Contract Code section 20104.50.   
 


9.7  Completion of the Work 
Upon  receipt  of  the  Contractor's  request  for  final  inspection,  the  Owner  will make  an  inspection  to 
determine whether  the Work,  or  designated  portion  thereof,  is  complete.    If  the Owner's  inspection 
discloses any item which is not completed in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, 
the Contractor shall, before Owner's issuance of the Notice of Completion, diligently complete or correct 
such item.   


 
9.8  Partial Occupancy or Use 


Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any stage without 
accepting  that work and without waiving rights  to claim damages as  to  that work.   The Owner and  the 
Contractor shall agree  in writing to the responsibilities assigned to each of them for payments, security, 
maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work, insurance, the period for correction of the Work, and the 
commencement of warranties required by the Contract Documents.   


 
9.9  Acceptance, Notice of Completion and Final Payment 


If the Owner’s representatives find the Work fully performed under the Contract Documents, they shall so 
notify Contractor, who shall then submit to the Owner its final application for progress payment.  After the 
Owner’s  representatives  find  the Work  fully performed,  the Owner’s governing body should accept  the 
Work as fully complete.  After completion, the Owner may record a Notice of Completion with the County 
Recorder  in  accordance with Civil Code  section  3093.   Contractor  shall, upon  receipt of  final progress 
payment from Owner, pay the amounts due Subcontractors.   Owner shall pay the retainage pursuant to 
Public Contract Code section 7107.  Any application for final progress payment shall be accompanied by the 
same  details  required  for  monthly  progress  payments.    Acceptance  of  final  progress  payment  shall 
constitute a waiver of Claims except for those previously identified in writing and identified by that payee 
as unsettled at the time of final payment. 


 
9.10  Substitution of Securities 


In accordance with section 22300 of the Public Contract Code, the Owner will permit the substitution of 
securities for any monies withheld by the Owner to ensure performance under the Contract.  At the request 
and expense of the Contractor, securities equivalent to the amount withheld shall be deposited with the 
Owner, or with a state or federally chartered bank as the escrow agent, who shall then pay such monies to 
the  Contractor.   Upon  completion  of  the Contract,  the  securities  shall  be  returned  to  the  Contractor. 
Securities eligible for investment under this section shall include those listed in Government Code section 
16430, bank or savings and loan certificates of deposit, interest‐bearing, demand‐deposit accounts, standby 
letters of credit, or any other security mutually agreed to by the Contractor and the Owner.  The Contractor 
shall be the beneficial owner of any securities substituted for monies withheld and shall receive any interest 
thereon.  Any escrow agreement used shall be substantially similar to the form set forth in Public Contract 
Code section 22300. 


390 of 462







  16


ARTICLE 10: Protection of Persons and Property 
 
10.1  Safety Precautions and Programs 


The Contractor shall have responsibility for  initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with the performance of the Contract.  Subcontractors have the responsibility 
for participating in, and enforcing, the safety and loss prevention programs established by the Contractor 
for  the  Project,  which  will  cover  all  Work  performed  by  the  Contractor  and  its  Subcontractors.  
Subcontractors shall promptly report in writing and by phone to the Contractor all accidents whatsoever 
arising out of, or in connection with, the performance of the Work, whether on or off the Site, which caused 
death, personal injury, or property damage, giving full details and statements of witnesses.  The Contractor 
will provide and maintain at the Site first‐aid supplies for minor injuries. 


 
10.2  Safety of Persons and Property 


The Contractor shall take reasonable precautions for the safety of, and shall provide reasonable protection 
to prevent damage, injury, or loss to: (A) Employees on the Work and other persons who may be affected 
thereby; (B) the Work, material, and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off 
the  Site,  under  the  care,  custody,  or  control  of  the  Contractor  or  the  Contractor's  Subcontractors  or 
Sub‐subcontractors; and  (C) other property at the Site or adjacent thereto such as trees, shrubs,  lawns, 
walks, pavement, roadways, structures, and utilities not designated for removal, relocation, or replacement 
in  the  course  of  construction.    The  Contractor  shall  give  notices  and  comply  with  applicable  laws, 
ordinances, rules, regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities bearing on the safety of persons or 
property or their protection from damage, injury, or loss. 
 
The  Contractor  shall  erect  and maintain,  as  required  by  existing  conditions  and  performance  of  the 
Contract,  reasonable  safeguards  for  safety  and  protection,  including  posting  danger  signs  and  other 
warnings against hazards, promulgating safety regulations, and notifying owners and users of adjacent Sites 
and utilities. 
When use or  storage of  explosives, other hazardous materials or  equipment, or unusual methods  are 
necessary for execution of the Work, the Contractor shall exercise utmost care and carry on such activities 
under supervision of properly qualified personnel.   The Contractor shall notify the Owner any time that 
explosives  or  hazardous  materials  are  expected  to  be  stored  on  Site.    Location  of  storage  shall  be 
coordinated with the Owner and local fire authorities. 


 
10.3  Protection of Work and Property 


The Contractor and Subcontractors shall continuously protect  the Work,  the Owner's property, and  the 
property of others, from damage, injury, or loss arising in connection with operations under the Contract 
Documents.  The Contractor and Subcontractors shall make good any such damage, injury, or loss, except 
such as may be solely due to, or caused by, agents or employees of the Owner. 
 
The Contractor and the Subcontractors shall use only those  ingress and egress routes designated by the 
Owner, observe the boundaries of the Site designated by the Owner, park only in those areas designated 
by  the Owner, which  areas may  be  on  or  off  the  Site,  and  comply with  any  parking  control  program 
established by the Owner such as furnishing license plate information and placing identifying stickers on 
vehicles. 


 
10.4  Emergencies 


In an emergency affecting the safety of persons or property, the Contractor shall take any action necessary, 
at the Contractor's discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss.  Additional compensation or 
extension of time claimed by the Contractor on account of an emergency shall be determined as provided 
in Article 7.  The Contractor shall promptly report in writing to the Owner all accidents arising out of or in 
connection with the Work, which caused death, personal injury, or property damage, giving full details and 
statements of any witnesses.  In addition, if death, serious personal injuries, or serious property damages 
are caused, the accident shall be reported immediately by telephone or messenger to the Owner. 


391 of 462







  17


 
10.5  Hazardous Materials 


In the event the Contractor encounters or suspects the presence on the Site material reasonably believed 
to be asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), or any other material defined as being hazardous by section 
25249.5 of the California Health and Safety Code, which has not been rendered harmless, the Contractor 
shall immediately stop Work in the area affected and report the condition to the Owner and the Architect 
in writing, whether or not such material was generated by the Contractor or the Owner.   


 
ARTICLE 11: Insurance and Bonds 
 
11.1.       Contractor’s Liability Insurance 
 
11.1.1  Liability Insurance Requirements 


Before the commencement of the Work and within  limits acceptable to the Owner, the Contractor shall 
purchase from and maintain in a company or companies lawfully authorized to do business in California as 
admitted carriers with a financial rating of at least A+, Class XII status as rated in the most recent edition of 
Best's Insurance Reports commercial general liability insurance per occurrence for bodily injury, personal 
injury and property damage in the amount of $1,000,000 and automobile liability insurance per accident 
for bodily injury and property damage combined single limit in the amount of $1,000,000,  as will protect 
the Contractor, which may arise out of or result from the Contractor's operations under the Contract and 
for which  the  Contractor may  be  legally  liable, whether  such  operations  are  by  the  Contractor,  by  a 
Subcontractor, by  Sub‐subcontractor, by anyone directly or  indirectly employed by any of  them, or by 
anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable.  This insurance shall be subject to the approval of Owner, 
and Owner’s approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  The Contractor shall require its Subcontractors 
and any Sub‐subcontractors to take out and maintain similar public liability insurance and property damage 
insurance in like amounts.   


 
Owner may partially or fully occupy and/or use the Project before acceptance of the entire Project by the 
Owner.  All of contractor’s required insurance must allow such occupancy and/or use without prior consent 
from insurer. 


 
11.1.2  Additional Insured Endorsement Requirements 


The Contractor shall name, on any policy of insurance, the Owner and the Architect as additional insureds.   
 
11.1.3  Workers’ Compensation Insurance 


During the term of this Contract, the Contractor shall provide workers' compensation insurance for all of 
the Contractor's employees engaged in Work under this Contract on or at the site of the Project and, in case 
any of the Contractor's work is sublet, the Contractor shall require the Subcontractor to provide workers' 
compensation insurance for all the Subcontractor's employees engaged in Work under the subcontract.   


 
11.1.4  Builder’s Risk/“All Risk” Insurance 


Contractor,  during  the  progress  of  the Work  and  until  final  acceptance  of  the Work  by Owner  upon 
completion of the entire Contract, shall maintain Builder’s Risk/Course‐of‐Construction insurance,  issued 
on a completed value basis on all insurable Work included under the Contract Documents.  This insurance 
shall be subject to the approval of Owner, and Owner’s approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  This 
insurance shall  insure against all risks,  including but not  limited to the following perils: vandalism, theft, 
malicious mischief, fire, sprinkler leakage, civil authority, sonic boom, explosion, collapse, flood, earthquake 
(for projects not solely funded through revenue bonds, limited to earthquakes equivalent to or under 3.5 
on the Richter Scale  in magnitude), wind, hail,  lightning, smoke, riot or civil commotion, debris removal 
(including demolition) and reasonable compensation for the Architect’s services and expenses required as 
a result of such insured loss.  This insurance shall provide coverage in an amount not less than the full cost 
to repair, replace or reconstruct the Work.  Such insurance shall include the Owner, the Architect, and any 
other person or entity with an insurable interest in the Work as an additional named insured. 


392 of 462







  18


 
11.1.5  Fire Insurance 


Before the commencement of the Work, the Contractor shall procure, maintain, and cause to be maintained 
at the Contractor's expense, fire insurance on all Work included under the Contract Documents, insuring 
the full replacement value of such Work as well as the cost of any removal and demolition necessary to 
replace or repair all Work damaged by fire.  This insurance shall be subject to the approval of Owner, and 
Owner’s approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  The amount of fire insurance shall be $1,000,000 


 
11.1.6  Other Insurance 


The Contractor shall provide all other insurance required to be maintained under applicable laws, 
ordinances, rules, and regulations.  Such insurance shall be subject to the approval of Owner, and Owner’s 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 


 
11.1.7  Proof of Carriage of Insurance 


The Contractor shall not commence Work nor shall it allow any Subcontractor to commence Work under 
this  Contract  until  all  required  insurance,  certificates,  and  an  Additional  Insured  Endorsement  and 
Declarations Page have been obtained and delivered  in duplicate  to  the Owner  for approval, and  such 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 
 


11.1.8  Compliance 
In the event of the failure of any contractor to furnish and maintain any insurance required by this Article, 
the Contractor shall be in default under the Contract.     


 
11.2      Performance and Payment Bonds 


Unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents, prior to commencing any portion of the Work, the 
Contractor shall apply for and furnish Owner separate payment and performance bonds for its portion of 
the Work which shall cover 100% faithful performance of and payment of all obligations arising under the 
Contract Documents and/or guaranteeing the payment in full of all claims for labor performed and materials 
supplied  for  the Work.   Only  bonds  executed  by  admitted  Surety  insurers  as  defined  in  Code  of  Civil 
Procedure  section995.120  shall  be  accepted.  The  surety  insurers must,  unless  otherwise  agreed  to  by 
Owner in writing, at the time of issuance of the bonds, have a rating not lower than “A‐” as rated by A.M. 
Best Company, Inc. or other independent rating companies. Owner reserves the right to approve or reject 
the surety insurers selected by Contractor and to require Contractor to obtain bonds from surety insurers 
satisfactory to the Owner. 


 
ARTICLE 12: Uncovering and Correction of Work 
12.1  Uncovering of Work 


If  a  portion  of  the Work  is  covered  contrary  to  the  Inspector's  request,  the Architect's  request,  or  to 
requirements  specifically  expressed  in  the  Contract Documents,  it must,  if  required  in writing  by  the 
Inspector or the Architect, be uncovered for the Inspector's or the Architect's observation and be replaced 
at the Contractor's expense without change in the Contract Sum or Time. 


 
12.2  Correction of Work; Warranty 


The  Contractor  shall  promptly  correct  the  Work  rejected  by  the  Inspector  or  the  Owner  upon 
recommendation of the Architect for failing to conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents, 
whether observed before or after Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed, or completed.  The 
Contractor shall bear costs of correcting the rejected Work, including additional testing, inspections, and 
compensation for the Inspector's or the Architect's services and expenses made necessary thereby. 
 
If, within one (1) year after the date of acceptance by the Owner’s governing body of the Work (see Section 
9.9) or a designated portion thereof, or by terms of an applicable special warranty required by the Contract 
Documents,  any of  the Work  is  found  to be not  in  accordance with  the  requirements of  the Contract 
Documents, the Contractor shall correct it promptly after receipt of written notice from the Owner to do 


393 of 462







  19


so  unless  the  Owner  has  previously  given  the  Contractor  a written  specific  acceptance  of  such  non‐
conforming condition.  If the Owner’s governing body does not accept the Work as complete within ninety 
(90) days of full performance of the Work by Contractor, then the time periods for the above warranties 
shall be deemed to have started to run from the date of Contractor’s full performance of the Work. 
 
The Contractor  shall  remove  from  the  site portions of  the Work which are not  in accordance with  the 
requirements of  the Contract Documents and are not  corrected by  the Contractor or  accepted by  the 
Owner.  If the Contractor fails to correct nonconforming Work within a reasonable time, the Owner may 
correct it in accordance with paragraph 2.4.  The Contractor shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or 
damaged construction of the Owner or separate contractors, whether completed or partially completed, 
caused by the Contractor's correction or removal of the nonconforming Work.  Nothing in this Section 12.2 
shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to other obligations which the Contractor 
might have under the Contract Documents.   


 
ARTICLE 13: Miscellaneous Provisions 
 
13.1  Governing Law 


The Contract shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located. 
 
13.2  Successors and Assigns 


Owner  shall, at Contractor’s cost,  timely notify Contractor of Owner’s  receipt of any  third party claims 
relating to the Contract.    


 
13.3  Rights and Remedies; No Waiver 


Duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and rights and remedies available thereunder 
shall be in addition to and not a limitation of duties, obligations, rights, and remedies otherwise imposed 
or available by law.  No action or failure to act by the Inspector, the Owner, or the Architect shall constitute 
a waiver of a right or duty afforded them under the Contract Documents, nor shall such action or failure to 
act constitute approval of or acquiescence in a breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in 
writing. 


 
13.4  Tests and Inspections 


Tests, inspections, and approvals of portions of the Work required by the Contract Documents will comply 
with Title 24, and with all other laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of public authorities having 
jurisdiction. 


 
13.5  Trench Excavation 


Pursuant to Labor Code section 6705, if the Contract Sum exceeds $25,000 and involves the excavation of 
any trench or trenches five (5) feet or more in depth, the Contractor shall, in advance of excavation, submit 
to the Owner or a registered civil or structural engineer employed by the Owner a detailed plan showing 
the design of shoring for protection from the hazard of caving ground during the excavation of such trench 
or trenches.  If such plan varies from the Shoring System Standards established by the Construction Safety 
Orders, the plan shall be prepared by a registered civil or structural engineer, but in no case shall such plan 
be  less effective than that required by the Construction Safety Orders.   Pursuant to Labor Code section 
6705, nothing in this Article shall impose tort liability upon the Owner or any of its employees. 


 
13.6  Debarment  


Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 6109, no contractor or subcontractor may perform work on a 
public works project if ineligible to perform work on the project pursuant to sections 1777.1 or 1777.7 of 
the Labor Code.  
 
 
 


394 of 462







  20


13.7  Assignment of Antitrust Claims 
Pursuant to Government Code section 4552, in entering into a public works contract or a subcontract to 
supply goods, services, or materials pursuant to a public works contract, the Contractor or Subcontractor 
offers and agrees to assign to the Owner all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may 
have  under  Section  4  of  the  Clayton  Act,  (15  U.S.C.  § 15)  or  under  the  Cartwright  Act  (Chapter  2 
[commencing with § 16700] of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Bus. & Prof. Code), arising from the purchase of 
goods, services, or materials pursuant to the public  works contract or the subcontract.  This assignment 
shall be made and become effective at the time the awarding body tenders final payment to the Contractor, 
without further acknowledgment by the parties.   
 


13.8  Audit 
Contractor’s Contract books, records and files shall be subject to audit and examination under Government 
Code section 8546.7 and any amendments thereto. 
 


 
13.9  Storm Water Discharge Permit 


If applicable, the Contractor shall file a Notice of Intent to comply with the terms of the general permit to 
discharge storm water associated with construction activity (WQ Order No. 920‐08‐DWQ) prior to the start 
of any construction activity. 


 
ARTICLE 14: Termination or Suspension of the Contract 
 
14.1  Termination by Owner for Cause 


The Owner may terminate the Contract  if the Contractor:  (A) refuses or fails to supply enough properly 
skilled workers or proper materials; (B) fails to make payment to Subcontractors for materials or labor in 
accordance with Public Contract Code section 10262 or Business and Professions Code section 7108.5, as 
applicable;  (C)  disregards  laws,  ordinances,  rules,  regulations,  or  orders  of  a  public  authority  having 
jurisdiction; or (D) otherwise is in substantial breach of a provision of the Contract Documents. 


 
When any of the above reasons exist, the Owner may, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of 
the Owner and after giving the Contractor and the Contractor's surety, if any, written notice of seven (7) 
days, terminate the Contract and may, subject to any prior rights of the surety, (A) take possession of the 
site and of all material, equipment, tools, and construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by 
the Contractor, (B) accept assignment of subcontracts, and (C) complete the Work by whatever reasonable 
method the Owner may deem expedient. 
 
If the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of completing the Work, including compensation 
for professional services and expenses made necessary thereby, such excess shall be paid to the Contractor.  
If such costs exceed the unpaid balance, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner.  This payment 
obligation shall survive completion of the Contract. 


 
14.2  Suspension or Termination by the Owner for Convenience 


The Owner may, without cause, order the Contractor in writing to suspend, delay, or interrupt the Work in 
whole or in part for such period of time as the Owner may determine.  An adjustment shall be made for 
increases in the cost of performance of the Contract, including profit on the increased cost of performance 
caused  by  suspension,  delay,  or  interruption.    No  adjustment  shall  be  made  to  the  extent  (A)that 
performance is, was or would have been so suspended, delayed, or interrupted by another cause for which 
the  Contractor  is  responsible;  or  (B)  that  an  equitable  adjustment  is made  or  denied  under  another 
provision of this Contract.  Adjustments made in the cost of performance may have a mutually agreed fixed 
or percentage fee. 
 
 


395 of 462







  21


The Owner may, at any time, terminate the Contract for the Owner’s convenience and without cause.  Upon 
receipt of written notice from the Owner of such termination for the Owner’s convenience, the Contractor 
shall (1) cease operations as directed by the Owner  in the notice; (2) take actions necessary, or that the 
Owner may direct, for the protection and preservation of the Work; and (3) except for Work directed to be 
performed prior to the effective date of termination stated in the notice, terminate all existing subcontracts 
and  purchase  orders  and  enter  into  no  further  subcontracts  and  purchase  orders.    In  case  of  such 
termination for the Owner’s convenience, the Contractor shall be entitled to receive payment for Work 
executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination, along with reasonable overhead and profit on 
the Work not executed. 


 
14.3   Termination by Contractor 


Contractor may not terminate for convenience.   Contractor may only terminate for cause  if the Work  is 
stopped by others for a period of one hundred eighty (180) consecutive days through no act or fault of the 
Contractor,  a  Subcontractor  of  any  tier,  their  agents  or  employees,  or  any  other  persons  performing 
portions of the Work for whom the Contractor is contractually responsible, and the Worked was stopped 
by others for one of the following reasons:   (A) Issuance of an order of a court or other public authority 
having jurisdiction which requires Owner to stop all Work; or (B) an act of government, such as a declaration 
of national emergency, making material unavailable which requires Owner to stop all Work.  If such grounds 
exist, the Contractor may serve written notice of such belief on Owner and demand a meet‐and‐confer 
conference to negotiate a resolution in good faith within twenty (20) days of receipt of such notice.  If such 
conference does not  lead  to  resolution and Contractor believes  the grounds  for  termination  still exist, 
Contractor may terminate the contract and recover from the Owner payment for Work executed and for 
reasonable  verified  costs  with  respect  to  materials,  equipment,  tools,  construction  equipment,  and 
machinery,  including  reasonable  overhead,  profit,  and  damages  for  the Work  executed,  but  excluding 
overhead (field and home office) and profit for (i) Work not performed and (ii) the period of time that the 
Work was stopped. 


 
14.4   Not a Waiver 


Any suspension or termination by Owner for convenience or cause under this Article 14 shall not act as a 
waiver of any claims by Owner against Contractor or others  for damages based on breach of contract, 
negligence or other grounds. 


 


396 of 462







397 of 462







This page has been left blank







 


                            
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.12 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Leach Group Proposal for DSA Inspector of Record Services 


at Soquel High School and Branciforte Small Schools. 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Leach Group proposal for DSA inspector of record services for the Soquel High School 
swimming pool, concession building and portables/interim housing, and for the Branciforte Small 
Schools playground and shade structure projects. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposal is based on the requirement to have a DSA inspector on each and every DSA project the 
District engages in.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$22,350.00 Measure ‘A’ Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing  0.15% of the overall site budget for 
Soquel High School 
  
$7,500.00, Measure ‘B’ Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.02% of the overall site budget for 
Branciforte Small Schools 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


399 of 462







This page has been left blank







1 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICES AGREEMENT   


 


 


This Independent Contractor Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered 


into effective April 25, 2018 (the “Effective Date”) by and between Santa Cruz City 


Schools (“District”) and                      _____________                          (“Contractor”). 


 


1. Contractor Services.  Contractor agrees to provide the following services: 


_______________________________________________________________________ 


  _______________________________________________________________________  


  _______________________________________________________________________ 


 


2. Contractor Qualifications.  Contractor represents that it or its principals or employees 


assigned to provide services under this Agreement have or shall have in effect all licenses, 


credentials, permits and has otherwise all legal qualifications to perform this Agreement.  


[OPTIONAL: Contractor shall provide District with a copy of a current curriculum vitae 


for each principal or employee assigned to work on District projects.] 


 


3.    Term.  This Agreement shall begin on April 25th, 2018, and shall terminate upon 


completion of the scope of work.  There shall be no extension of the term of this 


Agreement without express written consent by the District and Contractor.  


 


4.  Termination.  The District may terminate this Agreement immediately at any time by 


giving written notice to the Contractor.  Such written notice shall be sufficient to stop 


further performance of services by Contractor.  In the event of termination prior to the end 


of the term of this Agreement, Contractor shall invoice the District for any work 


performed up to the date of termination, and shall promptly return any District property or 


records, and any copies thereof, in its possession to the District.  The District may then 


proceed with the work in any manner the District deems proper. 


 


5. Payment.  Total payment by District to Contractor shall not exceed 


$_______________________.  District agrees to pay Contractor within thirty (30) days of 


receipt of a detailed invoice.  


 


6. Indemnity.  The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its 


agents, employees, Board of Education, and members of the Board of Education, from and 


against claims, damages, losses, and expenses (including, but not limited to attorney’s fees 


and costs including fees of consultants) arising out of or resulting from performance of this 


Agreement including, but not limited to, the Contractor’s use of the site; the Contractor’s 


completion of its duties under this Agreement; injury to or death of persons or damage to 


property or delay or damage to the District, its agents, employees, Board of Education, 


members of the Board of Education, for any act, omission, negligence, or willful 


misconduct of the Contractor or its respective agents, subcontractors, employees, material 


or equipment suppliers, invitees, or licensees.  Such obligation shall not be construed to 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 384FF522-E93A-45C5-8DFE-2E0D15B4B723


DSA Inspection Service


Leach Group INC.


401 of 462







 


2 


negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity, which would otherwise 


exist as to a party, person, or entity described in this paragraph.    


 


7. Comprehensive General Liability and Automobile Insurance.  Without limiting 


Contractor’s indemnification as set forth in Section 6 hereof, Contractor shall, before 


beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement, secure 


and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, the following 


insurance (check all that apply): 


 


   □ Comprehensive General Liability, in an amount not less than: 


     □ $500,000.00 per occurrence 


     □ $1,000,000.00 per occurrence 


 


   □ Automobile Insurance, in an amount not less than: 


     □ $500,000.00 per occurrence 


     □ $1,000,000.00 per occurrence 


 


 The District shall be named as an additional insured on Contractor’s insurance policy by 


endorsement.  The policy shall provide that it is primary such that insurance maintained by 


the District, if any, shall be excess and not co-primary.  A copy of the declarations page of 


Contractor’s insurance policy shall be attached to this Agreement as proof of insurance.  


 


8. Independent Contractor Status.  While engaged in carrying out the terms and conditions of 


this Agreement, the Contractor is an independent Contractor, and not an officer, 


employee, agent, partner, or joint venturer of the District.  


 


9. Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  Contractor agrees to provide all necessary workers’ 


compensation insurance for Contractor’s principals and employees, if any, at Contractor’s 


own cost and expense. 


 


10. Fingerprinting.  Contractor shall at all times comply with the fingerprinting and criminal 


background investigation requirements of the California Education Code (“Education 


Code”) section 45125.1.  Accordingly, by checking the applicable boxes below, 


Contractor and District agree to the following: 


 


  A.  Contractor and principals, employees, and subcontractors assigned to provide 


services under this Agreement will have only limited or no contact with District 


students at all times during the Term of this Agreement. 


 


11. Taxes.  Contractor agrees that Contractor has no entitlement to any future work from the 


District or to any employment or fringe benefits from the District.  Payments to the 


Contractor pursuant to this Agreement will be reported to Federal and State taxing 


authorities as required.  District will not withhold any money from compensation payable 


to Contractor.  In particular, District will not withhold FICA (social security); state or 


federal unemployment insurance contributions, state or federal income tax or disability 


insurance.  Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold District harmless from all 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 384FF522-E93A-45C5-8DFE-2E0D15B4B723


402 of 462







 


3 


State and Federal tax consequences and any related consequences stemming from or 


related to this Agreement.  Contractor is independently responsible for the payment of all 


applicable taxes. 


 


12. Assignment.  The Contractor shall not assign or transfer by operation of law or otherwise 


any or all of its rights, burdens, duties or obligations under this Agreement without the 


prior written consent of the District. 


 


13. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the 


Contractor and the District and their respective successors and assigns. 


 


14. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by 


a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable 


any other provision of this Agreement.  


 


15. Amendments.  The terms of the Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, 


supplemented or amended in any manner whatsoever except by written agreement signed 


by both parties. 


 


16. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 


the laws of the State of California and any action or proceeding seeking any relief under or 


with respect to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior Court of the State of 


California for Santa Cruz County, subject to any motion for transfer of venue. 


 


17. Written Notice.  Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in 


person to the Contractor, or if delivered at or sent by registered or certified mail to the last 


business address known to the person who sends the notice. 


 


District: Contractor: 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


405 Soquel-San Jose Road 


Soquel, CA 95073 


Attn:  Assistant Superintendent,  


Business Services 


 


[FILL] 


 


18. Compliance with Law.  Each and every provision of law and clause required by law to be 


inserted into this Agreement shall be deemed to be inserted herein and this Agreement 


shall be read and enforced as though it were included therein.  Contractor shall comply 


with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances, 


including fingerprinting under Education Code section 45125.1, confidentiality of records, 


Education Code section 49406 and others.  Contractor agrees that it shall comply with all 


legal requirements for the performance of duties under this agreement and that failure to 


do so shall constitute material breach. 


 


19. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement is intended by the Parties as the final expression of 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 384FF522-E93A-45C5-8DFE-2E0D15B4B723


403 of 462







 


4 


their agreement with respect to such terms as are included herein and as the complete and 


exclusive statement of its terms and may not be contradicted by evidence of any prior 


agreement or of a contemporaneous oral agreement, nor explained or supplemented by 


evidence of consistent additional terms. 


 


20. Execution of Other Documents.  The Parties to this Agreement shall cooperate fully in the 


execution of any and all other documents and in the completion of any additional actions 


that may be necessary or appropriate to give full force and effect to the terms and intent of 


this Agreement. 


 


21. Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the 


signatures may appear on separate signature pages.  A copy, facsimile, or an original, with 


all signatures appended together, shall be deemed a fully executed Agreement. 


 


22. Board Approval/Ratification.  The effectiveness of this Agreement is contingent upon 


approval or ratification by the District’s Governing Board. 


 


 


 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS CONTRACTOR 


 


 


 


By: ________________________________ 


 


Name:   ____________________________ 


 


Title:  ______________________________ 


 


Date: _______________________________ 


 


 


 


 


By: ________________________________ 


 


Name: _____________________________  


 


Title:   _____________________________ 


 


Date: _______________________________ 


 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 384FF522-E93A-45C5-8DFE-2E0D15B4B723


Brandon Leach, DSA #4924


President - Leach Group INC.


5/31/2018 1:10:08 PM PDT


404 of 462







Brandon Leach 
DSA # 4924 


5016 Monterey St. 
Carmel by the Sea, Ca 93923 
T 661-599-5393 
leachgroup@me.com 


Proposal
LEACH GROUP INC.


Attention : Santa Cruz City School District 
Date : 5/31/18 
PROJECT TITLE: Soquel High School Concessions Building 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Onsite Inspection  Varies 
P.O. NUMBER:  N/A 


Term and conditions : These projections are based on the contractor performing per the 
approved schedule. 


Proposed  :                                                  $ 7,500.00



________________________________________

Brandon Leach , DSA#4924


Description Cost
Onsite inspection. 01-117608
Flat rate. $	 7,500.00


Total $ 7,500.00


DocuSign Envelope ID: 384FF522-E93A-45C5-8DFE-2E0D15B4B723


405 of 462



mailto:leachgroup@me.com

mailto:leachgroup@me.com





Brandon Leach 
DSA # 4924 


5016 Monterey St. 
Carmel by the Sea, Ca 93923 
T 661-599-5393 
leachgroup@me.com 


Proposal
LEACH GROUP INC.


Attention : Santa Cruz City School District 
Date : 5/31/18 
PROJECT TITLE: Branciforte Shade and playground. 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Onsite Inspection  Varies 
P.O. NUMBER:  N/A 


Term and conditions : These projections are based on the contractor performing per the 
approved schedule. 


Proposed  :                                                  $ 7,500.00



________________________________________

Brandon Leach , DSA#4924


Description Cost
Onsite inspection. 01-117561
Flat rate. $	 7,500.00


Total $ 9,850.00


DocuSign Envelope ID: 384FF522-E93A-45C5-8DFE-2E0D15B4B723


406 of 462



mailto:leachgroup@me.com

mailto:leachgroup@me.com





Brandon Leach 
DSA # 4924 


5016 Monterey St. 
Carmel by the Sea, Ca 93923 
T 661-599-5393 
leachgroup@me.com 


Proposal
LEACH GROUP INC.


Attention : Santa Cruz City School District 
Date : 5/31/18 
PROJECT TITLE: Soquel Portables/Interim Housing 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Onsite Inspection  Varies 
P.O. NUMBER:  N/A 


Term and conditions : These projections are based on the contractor performing per the 
approved schedule. 


Proposed  :                                                  $ 5,000.00



________________________________________

Brandon Leach , DSA#4924


Description Cost
Onsite inspection. 01-117609
Flat rate. $	 5,000.00


Total $ 9,850.00


DocuSign Envelope ID: 384FF522-E93A-45C5-8DFE-2E0D15B4B723


407 of 462



mailto:leachgroup@me.com

mailto:leachgroup@me.com





Brandon Leach 
DSA # 4924 


5016 Monterey St. 
Carmel by the Sea, Ca 93923 
T 661-599-5393 
leachgroup@me.com 


Proposal
LEACH GROUP INC.


Attention : Santa Cruz City School District 
Date : 5/31/18 
PROJECT TITLE: Soquel Pool 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Onsite Inspection  Varies 
P.O. NUMBER:  N/A 


Term and conditions : These projections are based on the contractor performing per the 
approved schedule. 


Proposed  :                                                  $ 9,850.00



________________________________________

Brandon Leach , DSA#4924


Description Cost
Onsite inspection. 01-117198
One hundred hours at 98.50 with three hour minimum. $	 9,850.00


Total $ 9,850.00


DocuSign Envelope ID: 384FF522-E93A-45C5-8DFE-2E0D15B4B723


408 of 462



mailto:leachgroup@me.com

mailto:leachgroup@me.com





AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.13 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve CRW Industries, Inc.  Bid for Minor Repairs of the Gymnasium 


and Parking Lot at Natural Bridges Elementary School 
 


MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the CRW Industries, Inc. bid for minor repairs of the gymnasium and parking lot at Natural 
Bridges Elementary School. 


 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
The proposed project will entail minor interior repairs and new finishes at the gymnasium and 
parking lot improvements at the front of the school.  
 
A request for bids was sent out to all contractors on our Uniform Construction Cost Accounting 
Construction Application list, noticed to the builder’s plan rooms and advertised in the local 
newspapers.  Two bids were received. CRW Industries was the successful low bidder. 


BID SUMMARY 
 


CONTRACTOR CITY BASE BID 
CEN-Con Inc. Santa Cruz $428,000.00 
CRW Industries Scotts Valley $399,562.00 
   
LOW BID CRW Industries $399,562.00 


     
Staff recommends that the bid be awarded to CRW Industries, Inc., the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$399,562.00, Measure ‘B’ Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 7.5% of the site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management  
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


409 of 462







This page has been left blank







41
1 


of
 4


62







41
2 


of
 4


62







41
3 


of
 4


62







41
4 


of
 4


62







41
5 


of
 4


62







41
6 


of
 4


62







AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.14 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve CRW Industries, Inc. Bid and Contract for Site Work at 


Branciforte Small Schools  
 


MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the CRW Industries, Inc. bid and contract for site work at Branciforte Small Schools. 


 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
The proposed project will entail a new playground, ADA concrete ramp and pre-manufactured shade 
structure. 
 
A request for bids was sent out to all contractors on our Uniform Construction Cost Accounting 
Construction Application list, noticed to the builder’s plan rooms and advertised in the local 
newspapers.  One bid was received. CRW Industries, Inc. was the successful low bidder. 


BID SUMMARY 
 


CONTRACTOR CITY BASE BID 
CRW Industries Scotts Valley $257,779.00 
   
LOW BID CRW Industries $257,779.00 


     
Staff recommends that the bid be awarded to CRW Industries, Inc., the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$257,779.00, Measure ‘B’ Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 1.9% of the site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management  
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


417 of 462







This page has been left blank







41
9 


of
 4


62







42
0 


of
 4


62







42
1 


of
 4


62







42
2 


of
 4


62







42
3 


of
 4


62







42
4 


of
 4


62







 


                            
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.15 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Landscape Structures Revised Proposal for Material and 


Installation of PIP Rubber Surfacing for Branciforte Small Schools  
      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Landscape Structures revised proposal for material and installation of PIP Rubber Surfacing 
for Branciforte Small Schools. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposed project to relocate the playground and install a new lunch shelter at Branciforte Small 
Schools has been revised with a fully ADA inclusive design in place of the regular ADA accessible 
structure. The additional equipment, with design, will be an additional $15,470.70 more than the 
previously approved H-GAC contract amount of $167,288.13. We are purchasing the material through 
the Houston-Galveston Area Council of Governments (H-GAC) buy program, a cooperative purchasing 
organization. Landscape Structures was awarded contract PR11-16. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$182,758.83, Measure ‘B’ Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 1.38% of the overall site budget  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


425 of 462







This page has been left blank







 


$182,758.83


 


00025460


4-6 weeksEst Lead Time


6/15/2018Quote Exp Date


6/4/2018Quote Date


 


ALL PURCHASE ORDERS, CONTRACTS, AND 
CHECKS TO BE MADE OUT TO:


LANDSCAPE STRUCTURES, INC.
601 7TH STREET SOUTH


DELANO, MN 55328 U.S.A.


763-972-3391 800-328-0035
Fax: 763-972-3185


00025460Quote Number


Branciforte Small SchoolsOpportunity Name


Branciforte Small Schools Playground (HGAC
Contract)


Quote Name


 


HGAC Contract # PR 11-16 


 


840 North Branciforte Avenue
Santa Cruz, California 95062-1000
United States


Ship To


Branciforte SchoolShip To Name


(831) 429-3904Phone


405 Old San Jose Road
Soquel, California 95073
United States


Bill To


Santa Cruz City SchoolsBill To Name


Trevor MillerContact Name


 


caseyh@rossrec.com


 


(831) 689-9110
 


Ross Recreation Equipment, Inc.


 


Casey Hilbert


Landscape Structures Representative


Prepared For:


Quantity Product Product Description Sales Price Total Price


1.00
PlayBooster,
5-12


Landscape Structures PlayBooster Design #1125359-04-03, for Ages 5-12. Color Palette
"BD" 


* Updated inclusive design


$98,512.00 $98,512.00


1.00
HGAC - LSI
Discount


HGAC 3% LSI Discount on Equipment 
Contract #PR 11-16


($2,955.36) ($2,955.36)


1.00
HGAC -
Ross
Discount


HGAC 5% Ross Recreation Discount on Equipment ($4,925.60) ($4,925.60)


1.00 Installation


Installation of Landscape Structures PlayBooster Design #1125359-04-03 (Single structure;
updated inclusive design) by a manufacturer certified installer. 


*Project DIR # needed for State Prevailing Wage projects.


$32,840.00 $32,840.00


1.00 PIP Rubber


Surface America Poured-In-Place Rubber surfacing; approximately 2,575 sqft at 3"
thickness to meet requirement for 7' fall height of Design #1125359-04-03, Aromatic Binder,
50% Black/50% BEIGE speckled mix. Color(s) TBD 


* Does not include sub-base materials. Acceptable sub-base materials include concrete,
asphalt or compacted Class II base rock. Additional information available upon request. 


* Please verify all colors and square footage prior to placing order. 


* Teal, Yellow, Purple, and Primary Red are considered premium colors, and if used for
more than 25% of color mix an additional materials charge will apply. 


* Any change in color, thickness, square footage or binder type will require a change order.
Contractors bidding are responsible to verify that quoted material meets the project


$26,800.00 $26,800.00


427 of 462







 


$182,758.83


 


00025460


 


 


Thank you for the opportunity to quote your
upcoming project. PLEASE NOTE: quote does
not include payment and performance bonds,
engineering calculations, security, storage,
permits, inspection, or safety surfacing unless
otherwise noted. 


** Due to recent tariffs on steel and aluminum, a
3% surcharge may apply to all play equipment
orders placed after 6/8/18. Delivery date can be
delayed until site is ready, but PO must be
received prior to 6/8/18 to hold quoted pricing.


 


Signature _________________________________
 
Name ____________________________________ 


Title _____________________________________


Date _____________________________________


 


SIGNATURE BELOW ACCEPTING THIS PROPOSAL WILL
CONSTITUTE A PURCHASE ORDER ONLY UPON APPROVAL BY
LANDSCAPE STRUCTURES, INC. CUSTOMER RECEIPT OF AN
ORDER ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CONSTITUTES SUCH
APPROVAL. 


$182,758.83Total


$7,609.00Freight Amount


$47,150.00Labor Total


$10,568.79Tax Amount


$117,431.04Materials Amount


requirements. 


* Any revision to materials will require a revised quote and may result in a price increase. 


* Thickness quoted to meet industry standards for ASTM testing of 1000 HIC/200GMax.


1.00
Install-
Rubber
Surfacing


Installation of approximately 2,575 square feet of PIP rubber surfacing at 3" thickness by a
manufacturer certified installer at Prevailing Wage Rates. Price does not include sub-base
preparation, drainage, design work or inspections. Surfacing will be installed to follow slope
of the sub base. 


* Installations over 2,000 sqft may have visible seams in the finish surface to installation
taking more than one day. 


* Security and/or temporary fencing not included. Minimum 24 hour cure time necessary for
newly installed surfacing.


$14,310.00 $14,310.00


Notes to Customer


428 of 462







429 of 462







430 of 462







431 of 462







432 of 462







433 of 462







This page has been left blank







 


                            
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.16 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Landscape Structures Proposal for Material and Installation 


of PIP Rubber Surfacing for Bay View Elementary Schools Playground 
Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Landscape Structures proposal for material and installation of PIP Rubber Surfacing for Bay 
View Elementary playground project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposed project will include excavation and disposal of the existing wood fiber, installation of 
drainage, ADA ramp, installation of compacted aggregate sub base material and installation of 
approximately 8,970 sq ft of PIP rubber surfacing for the new playground. We are purchasing the 
material through the Houston-Galveston Area Council of Governments (H-GAC) buy program, a 
cooperative purchasing organization. Landscape Structures was awarded contract PR11-16.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$237,134.03, Measure ‘B’ Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 1.69% of the overall site budget  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


435 of 462







This page has been left blank







 


$237,134.03


 


00026011


4-6 weeksEst Lead Time


9/5/2018Quote Exp Date


6/5/2018Quote Date


 


ALL PURCHASE ORDERS, CONTRACTS, AND 
CHECKS TO BE MADE OUT TO:


LANDSCAPE STRUCTURES, INC.
601 7TH STREET SOUTH


DELANO, MN 55328 U.S.A.


763-972-3391 800-328-0035
Fax: 763-972-3185


00026011Quote Number


Bay View ES PIP SurfacingOpportunity Name


Bay View Elementary PIP Rubber SurfacingQuote Name


 


HGAC Contract # PR 11-16 


 


1231 Bay Street
Santa Cruz, California 95060-4708
United States


Ship To


Bay View ElementaryShip To Name


(831) 429-3904Phone


405 Old San Jose Road
Soquel, California 95073
United States


Bill To


Santa Cruz City SchoolsBill To Name


Trevor MillerContact Name


 


caseyh@rossrec.com


 


(831) 689-9110
 


Ross Recreation Equipment, Inc.


 


Casey Hilbert


Landscape Structures Representative


Prepared For:


Quantity Product Product Description Sales Price Total Price


1.00 Demolition Excavation and disposal of existing wood fiber surfacing down to soil base $33,223.00 $33,223.00


1.00 Site Work
Installation of approximately 175 linear feet of 4" perforated subdrain as specified on sheet
C1.3


$2,967.00 $2,967.00


1.00 Site Work Installation of ADA Ramp, roughly 25' L x 5' W, with 6" high curb as specified on sheet C1.3 $5,223.00 $5,223.00


1.00 Site Work
Installation approximately 9,000 sqft of Class II compacted aggregate base rock, at minimum
8" depth, compacted at 90-95%, sloped at 0.5% as specified, set 3-1/2" below finished grade
to allow PIP surfacing to sit flush with surrounding concrete curb border.


$53,122.00 $53,122.00


1.00
PIP
Rubber


Surface America Poured-In-Place Rubber surfacing materials: 
~Square Footage: 9,000 sqft 
~Thickness: 3-1/2” (per 8’ CFH of existing play equipment) 
~Binder: Aromatic Urethane  
~Color: 50% Color & 50% Black speckled mix. Color(s) TBD 


* Rubber follows the contour of the subbase and will be 3-1/2" thick throughout the play area. 


* Teal, Yellow, Purple, and Primary Red are considered premium colors, if any are used for
more than 25% of the color mix, an additional materials charge will apply. 


* Any change in color, thickness, square footage or binder type will require a change order.
Contractors bidding are responsible to verify that quoted material meets the project
requirements.  


* Does not include sub-base materials. Acceptable sub-base materials include: Concrete,
Asphalt, or Crushed Stone. More details available upon request. 


* Please verify all colors and square footage prior to placing order. Any revision to materials


$95,067.00 $95,067.00


437 of 462







 


$237,134.03


 


00026011


 


 


Thank you for the opportunity to quote your
upcoming project. PLEASE NOTE: quote does
not include installation, offload, payment and
performance bonds, engineering calculations,
security, storage, permits, inspection, or safety
surfacing unless otherwise noted.


 


Signature _________________________________
 
Name ____________________________________ 


Title _____________________________________


Date _____________________________________


 


SIGNATURE BELOW ACCEPTING THIS PROPOSAL WILL
CONSTITUTE A PURCHASE ORDER ONLY UPON APPROVAL BY
LANDSCAPE STRUCTURES, INC. CUSTOMER RECEIPT OF AN
ORDER ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CONSTITUTES SUCH
APPROVAL. 


$237,134.03Total


$4,834.00Freight Amount


$131,402.00Labor Total


$8,331.03Tax Amount


$92,567.00Materials Amount


will require a revised quote. 


* Thicknesses quoted to meet industry standards for ASTM testing of 1000 HIC/200GMax.


1.00
Discount-
CH


Ross Recreation Discount on Materials - CH ($2,500.00) ($2,500.00)


1.00
Install-
Rubber
Surfacing


Installation of approximately 9,000 square feet of poured-in-place rubber by a manufacturer
certified installer. Price does not include sub-base preparation, drainage, design work or
inspections. Customer is responsible for verifying that sub-base is prepared at the proper hold
down from finish grade. Surfacing will be installed to follow slope of the sub base and
thickness of safety surfacing quoted to be kept consistent; surfacing will not be installed
thicker over drains unless requested.  Please advise if installation is to be installed in any
other manner so quote can be adjusted. 


*Installations over 2000 sqft may have seams in the finish surface.


$39,867.00 $39,867.00


1.00
Discount -
Labor


Ross Recreation Labor Discount ($3,000.00) ($3,000.00)


Notes to Customer


438 of 462







439 of 462







440 of 462







441 of 462







442 of 462







443 of 462







This page has been left blank







 


                            
  AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.17 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Artistic Coverings, Inc. Contract for Wall Padding at the 


Santa Cruz High School Gymnasium  
      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Artistic Coverings, Inc. contract for wall padding at the Santa Cruz High School gymnasium. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposed project will include wall padding installation on the interior walls/doors and over the 
utility boxes of the Santa Cruz High School gymnasium. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$52,734.85, Measure ‘A’ Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.15% of the overall site budget  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


445 of 462







This page has been left blank







447 of 462







448 of 462







449 of 462







450 of 462







451 of 462







452 of 462







 


                            
  AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.18 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Proposal  from Flint Builders for Fire Line Work at Bay View 


Elementary  
      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Flint Builders proposal for fire line work at Bay View Elementary. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposed project will include the installation of a new fire line and hydrant at the back of the 
campus as required by the local fire dept. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$238,375.00, Measure ‘B’ Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 1.71% of the overall site budget  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


453 of 462







This page has been left blank







New Bid6/1/2018 - Provide Fire Line work only


Perform Fire Line work from Increment 3 (BV Portables) ONLY


Increment #3 - BP #1


D&V Quote - 2018-05-31 $39,800


Increment #3 - BP #1 - Fire Line


New fire water piping, per Addendum 2 480 lf $180.00 $86,400 $86,400


New fire water connection to (e) service, per Ad. 2 1 ea $13,500.00 $13,500 $13,500


New fire water backflow/DDC assembly, per Ad. 2 1 ea $15,000.00 $15,000 $15,000


New fire Tee & SOV, per Ad. 2 1 ea $5,000.00 $5,000 $5,000


New Fire hydrant, per Ad. 2 2 ea $7,500.00 $15,000 $15,000


Provide bollards at new fire hydrants, per Ad. 2 8 ea $1,000.00 $8,000 $8,000


Testing & Cholorination 1 ls $8,500.00 $8,500 $8,500


Allowance - Enroachment Permit 1 ls $10,000.00 $10,000 $10,000


Increment #3 - BP #1 - Temp Fencing / SWPPP


Temporary fencing 1,500 lf $8.00 $12,000 $12,000


SWPP plan 1 ls $2,000.00 $2,000 $2,000


Inlet protection 1 ls $2,000.00 $2,000 $2,000


Straw wattles / silt fence 850 lf $3.50 $2,975 $2,975


Maintenance of SWPP 1 ls $3,000.00 $3,000 $3,000


Increment #3 - BP #3


General labor and clean-up (3 months) 85 hrs $120.00 $10,200 $10,200


Increment #3 - BP #4


Survey 1 ls $5,000.00 $5,000 $5,000


PACKAGE TOTAL 238,375$           


455 of 462







13 LF-


8"FS


(C900)


37 LF-


8"FS


(C900)


1


4


1


 


L


F


-


8


"


F


S


 


(


C


9


0


0


)


1


0


2


 
L


F


-


8


"


F


S


 
(


C


9


0


0


)


9
1
 L


F
-
8
"
F


S
 (


C
9
0
0
)


5


2


 


L


F


-


8


"


F


S


(


C


9


0


0


)


8 LF-


8"FS


(C900)


(N)FIRE HYDRANT &


BOLLARDS


INSTALL PER CSCWD


DETAILS 10 & 20


CONNECT


TO (E)14"


WATER


25 LF-


8"FS


(C900)


THRUST BLOCK (TYP)


SEE DETAIL SHEET C5.2


(N)8"BACKFLOW &


DOUBLE CHECK


DETECTOR ASSEMBLY


THRUST BLOCK (TYP)


SEE DETAIL SHEET C5.2


THRUST BLOCK (TYP)


SEE DETAIL SHEET C5.2


PROVIDE TEE &


SHUT-OFF VALVE


(N)FIRE


HYDRANT &


BOLLARDS


INSTALL PER


CSCWD


DETAILS 10 & 20


C5.1


ARCHITECT


OWNER


CONSULTANT


SHEET NAME:


ISSUE DATES


REV DESCRIPTION


PROFESSIONAL STAMP:


PROJECT:


START DATE:                   02/01/18


PROJECT CODE:                         CSBV-02


© 2018


1231 BAY ST.
SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS
405 SOQUEL SAN JOSE RD.


SOQUEL, CA 95073


AGENCY APPROVAL:


DATE


SHEET NUMBER:


A R C H I T E C T U R E  +  P L A N N I N G


WWW.MADI-ARCH.COM
P I  800.725.0571


303 POTRERO STREET, SUITE 7B I SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060
40 SOUTH FIRST STREET, SUITE A | SAN JOSE, CA 95113


RELOCATED
PORTABLE


BUILDINGS AT
BAY VIEW E.S.


- DSA SUBMITTAL 03/16/18


RE
LO


CA
TE


D 
PO


RT
AB


LE
 B


U
IL


DI
N


GS
 A


T 
BA


Y 
VI


EW
 E


.S
.


SA
N


TA
 C


RU
Z 


CI
TY


 S
CH


O
O


LS


ADD FIRE PROTECTION PLANS04/05/18
BID SET 04/18/18


FIRE PROTECTION
PLAN


456 of 462



CSmart

Polygon



CSmart

Callout

Base Bid - Provide Underground Fire Line







 


                            
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.19 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the HGACBuy Cooperative Purchasing Agreement 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the HGACBuy Cooperative Purchasing Agreement. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This agreement, like CMAS, is a cooperative buying agreement that allows the District to secure 
products and services more efficiently utilizing the nationwide procurement service. All contracts 
available to participating members of the HGACBuy have been awarded by virtue of a public competitive 
procurement process compliant with the state statutes.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no fiscal impact to this agreement.  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


457 of 462







This page has been left blank







459 of 462







460 of 462







461 of 462







462 of 462





		Agenda 6-13-18 FINAL

		Minutes 5-23-18 Reviewed

		Minutes 5-30-18 Reviewed

		Cover - Item 8.1.1- Certificated Personnel Actions

		Attachment - Item 8.1.1 - Certificated Personnel Actions.doc

		Cover - Item 8.1.2- Classified Personnel Actions

		Attachment - Item 8.1.2- Classified Personnel Actions -

		POs over $2500 cover

		Purchase Orders over $2500 list

		vendor warrants cover

		vendor warrants list

		Res Authorized Signatures1819 cover

		Res - District Signature Authorization - Patrick Gaffney

		Res to Accept Summer 2018 Bids  cover

		Delegate Auth to Award Bids Summer 2018

		Res. Education Projection Act 1819 cover

		Res. Education Projection Act 1819

		RESOLUTION NO.  26-17-18

		2018-19 Education Protection Act budget

		Cover - Item 8.1.8 - Authorizing Approval of Personnel Actions during Summer Months

		Attachment - Item 8.1.8 - Authorizing Approval of Personnel Actions during Summer Months

		SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT

		RESOLUTION #27-17-18

		SUMMER PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS

		Claudia Vestal, President

		Cvr Plan for Expelled Students.Final.docx

		COE Plan to educate expelled students.SCCS update to 2015 doc

		CVR OOState Assessment 061318

		2017-18 PTOC annual report cover

		2017-18 Parcel Tax Oversight Committee Annual Report

		surplus cover

		SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS

		AGENDA ITEM:  Disposition of Surplus Property

		FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services

		THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent

		RECOMMENDATION:

		BACKGROUND:

		Surplus DLV furniture

		SITE: DELAVEAGA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

		Surplus Fac Sv surplus truck #57

		SITE:   FACILITY SERVICES

		Surplus Gault Macbook

		SITE:   GAULT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

		Cvr Lozano Smith Agreement 2018-19

		2018-2019 Lozano Smith Agreement for Legal Services

		Cvr DWK Agreement 2018-19

		2018-19 DWK Agreement for Legal Services

		Cvr F3 Agreement 2018-19

		2018-19 F3 Agreement for Legal Services

		Cvr CSBA GAMUT.Manual Maintenance 2018-19

		Invoice GAMUT Online.Manual Maintenance 2018-19

		Cvr 2018-19 CSBA Membership Fees

		Invoice CSBA Membership.ELA Membership 2018-19

		Cvr Document Tracking Services final

		180514_DTS_Renewal_License and Invoice

		LICENSING AGREEMENT

		The Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

		Document Tracking Services, LLC

		Licensee

		Exhibit A

		The following are standard documents to be used in conjunction with the license.

		CVR Vision to LearnCSA.MOU.6.13.18

		CSA Vision to Learn

		MOU.SCCS.VisiontoLearn

		CVR CSA HCW 6-13-18

		CSA HCW

		CVR 2017-18 SEEDS CSA & MOU final

		CSA SEEDS Community Resolution

		18-06-04 Santa Cruz City Schools-SEEDS MOU.Corrected

		CVR CSA vision and hearing supportShahe 6-13-18

		CSA Moutafian

		CVR CSA vision and hearing support.Lacey 6-13-18

		CSA Lacey

		CVR NWEA MAP Contract 6.13.18 final

		NWEA Contract 2018-19

		CVR CSA Organized Binder HHS final

		CSA HHS Organized Binder

		CVR NPS-oosDiamond Ranch Academy 61318

		1718 oosNPS-MC  - Diamond Ranch  61318

		CVR NPS-oosLa Europa Academy 61318

		1718 oosNPS-MC.LaEuropaAcademy

		CVR SpEd MOUs with Neighbor Districts.FINAL

		Sample MOU for ADA Revenue

		CVR 1819 NPA - Easter Seals 061318

		1819-NPA-MC - Easter Seals  61318

		CVR 1819 NPA - Balance4Kids 061318

		1819-NPA-MC - Balance4Kids 61318

		CVR APS-SpeechRighter  061318

		esyAPS - SpeechRighter 61318

		CVR APS-Sunbelt Staffing  061318

		esyAPS - Sunbelt Staffing 61318

		Locatelli Moving Bid Cover

		Locatelli proposal moving svces for DO

		Sheet1

		School Services of CA agreement  Cover

		School Services 1819 Fiscal Budget Services Agreement

		Lightspeed System's Relay Content Filter quote cover

		BorderLAN Proposal Santa Cruz City SD Lightspeed Relay 2 signed

		Bogard Construction Proposal 133 Mission Cover

		Bogard Construction Contract 133 Mission

		Belli Amendment HH B40MS MusicMPR Improvements Cover

		Belli Amendment HH B40MS MusicMPR Improvements

		Belli Amendment HH Track & Field Cover

		Belli Amendment HH Track & Field

		Butano Change Order1 HH Track & Field Cover

		SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

		Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services

		Butano Change Order1 HH Track & Field

		CEL Consulting Proposal B40SS Modernization Cover

		SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

		CEL Consulting Proposal B40SS Modernization

		CEL Consulting Agreement B40SS Modernization

		Garland Corrected Material Proposal B40MS ReRoof Cover

		SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

		Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services

		Garland Corrected Material Proposal B40MS ReRoof

		Garland CMAS B40MS Reroof

		Garland Corrected Material Proposal HH ReRoof Cover

		SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

		Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services

		Garland Corrected Material Proposal HH ReRoof

		Garland CMAS HHS Reroof

		M3 Environmental Proposal B40MS ReRoof Cover

		M3 Environmental Proposal B40MS ReRoof

		M3 Environmental Contract B40MS ReRoof

		XL Construction Change Order1 and 2 HH Track & Field Cover

		XL Construction Charge Order #1 Harbor High Field and Track

		XL Construction Charge Order #2 Harbor High Field and Track

		Garland Proposal SCH ReRoof Cover

		Garland Proposal SCH ReRoof

		Garland CMAS SCH Reroof

		Kleinfelder Proposal DLV Parking Lot and Shade Structure Cover

		Kleinfelder Proposal DLV Parking Lot and Shade Structure

		1

		2

		D and T Painting Bid SCHS Gym Painting Cover

		SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

		Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services

		D and T Painting Contract SCHS Gym Painting

		Leach Group Proposal SHS Concessions B40SS Shade and Playground SHS Portables SHS Pool Cover

		Leach Group Contract & Proposal SHS Concessions B40SS Shade and Playground SHS Portables SHS PoOl

		INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICES AGREEMENT

		CRW Industries Bid  NB Minor Gym Repairs Cover

		SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

		Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services

		CRW Industries Contract NB Minor Gym Repairs

		CRW Industries Bid  B40SS Repairs Cover

		SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

		Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services

		CRW Industries Contract  B40SS Repairs

		Landscape Structures Revised Proposal B40SS Relocate Playground and Lunch Shelters Project Cover

		Landscape Structures HGAC Revised Proposal B40SS Relocate Playground and Lunch Shelters Project

		Landscape Structures HGAC Contract B40SS Relocate Playground and Lunch Shelters Project

		Landscape Structures Proposal BV  PIP Rubber Surfacing _ Site Work DROPS Cover

		Landscape Structures Revised Proposal BV  PIP Rubber Surfacing _ Site Work DROPS

		Landscape Structures HGACContract BV Relocate Playground and Lunch Shelters Project

		Artistic Coverings Inc Contract SCH Gymnasium Wall Padding Cover

		Artistic Coverings Inc Contract SCH Gymnasium Wall Padding

		Flint Revised Base Bid Bay View ES Portable FIRE LINE ONLY Cover

		Flint Revised Base Bid Bay View ES Portable FIRE LINE ONLY

		HGACBuy Contract Cover

		HGACBuy Contract



				2018-05-18T09:23:28-0700

		Jeff Herbage





				2018-05-31T15:42:18-0700

		Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com










